


Devoted to bringing you great taste and a smile to your face
MR BIE IR R E DK

Nissin Foods is committed to providing the highest quality products to customers. We do so by
continuously conducting research and product development meticulously, and always attaching
great importance to innovation, food quality and safety. We have also kept investing in people and
improving our production process and capabilities, so as to strengthen our overall competitiveness
and ensure sustainable growth.

Following our Group Philosophy - to be the Earth Food Creator, we contribute to society by
gratifying people with the pleasure of eating, and to the world by creating food, good food.
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“Nissin Foodium™ for you to discover more wonders and
surprises from Nissin Foods
[BieRniEiziE] — HRBSEMIIES

To further enhance customer experience and connect with consumers, Nissin Foods has launched
its first-ever membership programme in Hong Kong and Mainland China. “Nissin Foodium”, a
WeChat mini program, offers a host of exclusive benefits, exciting rewards and interactive games
for members to discover and enjoy, in addition to providing the latest brand and product news. In
Mainland China, it is also an e-commerce platform. “Nissin Foodium” connects us to our
end-consumers, allowing direct communication for us to better understand consumer
preferences, behaviours and changing consumption trends.

We, at Nissin Foods, never stop learning and innovating.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT E£5 R ¥ &5

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Nissin Foods
Company Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the
Annual Report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

PROFIT GROWTH FOR SEVEN CONSECUTIVE YEARS SINCE LISTING

The year 2023 marked the resumption of normal economic activities
in both Mainland China and Hong Kong following the uplift of
restrictions against pandemics. Although there were strong hopes for
economic recovery at the beginning of the year, economic activities
gradually weakened, the economic outlook became increasingly
uncertain, and consumer sentiment tended to decline. Against this
backdrop, the Group has contributed to people’s health and society
by providing the pleasure of eating and taste of food to people, in line
with our founder, Mr. Momofuku Ando’s corporate philosophy that
“food-related job is a sacred profession (& & E2H)".
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The Group’s revenue decreased by 5.8% year-on-year due to a decline
in consumption sentiment in instant noodles, the absence of extra
demand for bag-type noodles caused by the pandemic in Hong
Kong, and the effect of the depreciation of the Renminbi in currency
translation. On the other hand, operating profit increased by 2.2%
year-on-year, and the operating profit margin improved by 0.9%
points year-on-year to 11.4% due to lower raw material prices and
lower selling, general and administration (SG&A) expenses such as
distribution costs and sales promotion costs. Net profit attributable
to owners of the Company increased by 5.6% mainly due to the
acquisition of minority interests in Zhuhai Golden Coast Winner
Food Products Limited and the consolidation of Nissin Food Vietnam
Co., Ltd (“Nissin Vietnam”). Net profit margin improved by 0.9%
points year-on-year to 8.6%. The Group has grown profitably for the
seventh consecutive year since listing. (Note: Due to the acquisition of
Nissin Vietnam, the financial figures for FY2022 have been restated,
according to Hong Kong Accounting Guideline, for year-on-year
comparisons).

MARKETING

Nissin Foodium (R R 4853 £8), a membership program launched in
Hong Kong and Mainland China in July and August 2022, respectively,
to increase brand loyalty, has expanded its target products from Cup
Noodles (£4#& ) to various Nissin Brand’s instant noodles since its
launch, with registered members growing every month. Members can
scan WeChat QR codes to accumulate points via WeChat and redeem
their accumulated points for reward prizes on the WeChat. Through
this program, the Company can collect a variety of information while
creating new rewards and prizes to increase customer loyalty and
retention and to develop new products. We have also resumed tasting
activities across Mainland China, with approximately 30,000 tasting
activities and 5 million people tasting our products this year, raising
awareness of the Nissin brand and the taste of our products. These
marketing activities have led consumers to purchase Nissin brand
instant noodles.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ("R&D")

In Mainland China, per capita income has increased over the past
decade, consumption quality has become more pervasive in people’s
lives. In addition, consumers in Hong Kong and Mainland China
have higher requirements on price, health, nutrition, food safety and
security. Our R&D team has developed products, introduced new
technologies and optimised costs amid such conditions. In 2023, the
Company launched Nissin Chicken Ramen and Japanese formula
Cup Noodles in Hong Kong and Mainland China, bringing consumers
new food discovery and enjoyment. Nissin Chicken Ramen, the
world’s first instant noodle, and Cup Noodles, the world’s first cup-
type noodles in Japanese formula, have been successfully recreated by

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A
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our production lines in Mainland China and have been well-received
by consumers. Moreover, applying food technology to develop plant-
based meat alternatives drives innovation. Using some animal-
derived materials in raw materials is in breach of regulations in some
consuming countries. It may lead to loss of business opportunities as
the products may not be allowed to be imported or sold. In addition,
plant-based meat alternatives are environmentally friendly and the
demand is expected to be increasing as consumers become more
health-conscious. The fact that a professional R&D team leads these
R&D activities is one of our obvious competitive advantages.

INVESTMENT IN PRODUCTION FACILITIES

According to the announcement of the Company dated 11 May
2021, several instant noodle production lines in a plant have been
successfully relocated to another plant in the same industrial park
in Tai Po Industrial Estate Hong Kong. Smart Factory has been
implemented by introducing automated equipment and various IT
equipment to save manpower, improve work safety and homogenise
product quality. In addition, production lines have been consolidated
to improve efficiency, increase production capacity and reduce costs.

BUSINESS INVESTMENT

In June 2023, the Company acquired an approximately 66% stake in
Nissin Vietnam, making it a consolidated subsidiary of the Company
and extending the scope of the Company’s business from Greater
China to Vietnam. We expect to expand our market share in the
Vietnamese market and boost the shipment volume of instant noodles
to Mainland China and other regions by deploying the talented and
know-how in sales account, management and manufacturing that
we have developed in Hong Kong and Mainland China to Vietnam.
In addition, we established a wholly-owned subsidiary in Taiwan
engaging in trading activities in December 2023 to boost the sales of
our products. In the past, we have expanded our business via local
wholesalers in Taiwan. Still, due to the growing interest in Nissin-
brand instant noodles and non-noodle products, we have decided to
establish a subsidiary to employ local personnel to engage in trading
business and expand our business territory.
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SUSTAINABILITY

In line with our founder, Mr. Momofuku Ando’s corporate philosophy
that “Create food to serve society (R&IAt)”, we are committed
to be sustainable management as a responsible corporate citizen
and contribute to environmental issues such as emissions and the
sustainable development of local communities. Furthermore, we
consider the treatment, motivation and engagement, and diversity
of our employees, will lead to long-term corporate value creation.
In 2023, to strengthen human capital, the Company made the
Philosophy Game mobile app to use gamified content to allow users
to interactively understand the corporate philosophy and the founder’s
entrepreneurship through digital learning. The Company aimed to
create a sense of company-wide unification by sharing the corporate
philosophy and our work’s significance. Various initiatives conducted
for sustainable management resulted in an ESG rating of A from
MSCI.

OUTLOOK FOR 2024

Despite the uncertainty surrounding our business environment due to
the impact of geopolitical tensions on international trade and capital
account balance, we believe there are positive signs for the future due
to steady economic growth in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

In our Mainland China business, we will expand sales of Cup Noodles
(A% ) and the premium bag-type noodles like Demae Iccho (&
Fi—T), Nissin Raoh, and Nissin Chicken Ramen. Furthermore,
we will continue to expand our geographical sales network and
find wholesalers to significantly increase the sales volume of instant
noodles while continuing tasting activities. In the non-noodle business,
we will strive to expand the distribution and beverage businesses.

The Hong Kong business will focus on expanding sales of Demae
Iccho (4 57—T), made from 100% Hokkaido flour, Nissin Raoh,
Nissin Chicken Ramen, Vietnamese Pho, which are rice noodles, and
various other premium bag-type noodles. With regard to frozen foods,
we will aim to expand sales of premium frozen ramen and frozen
dim sum products. Furthermore, sales to the catering industry will be
strengthened due to the recovery of inbound tourists to Hong Kong.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A
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The Vietnam business, consolidated in FY2023, aims to expand its
sales channels to increase sales in the local market. The sales office
in Taiwan works with the wholesalers and major retailers to increase
transactions and boost sales. The Company will further strengthen
marketing and sales activities to expand Nissin brand products.

DETERMINATION OF CHAIRMAN

| am determined to maximise business outcomes while efficiently
developing the Group’s business operation and organisation and
aiming to create long-term value for all stakeholders, including
shareholders and investors of the Company. The Group is also
committed to contributing to local communities to bring them
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sustainable growth.
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With such goals in mind, again, | believe in enriching the lives of
consumers through tasty, secure, and affordable food, and | share
with you the corporate philosophy of our founder, Mr. Momofuku
Ando, that “Create food to serve society (B &l Att)".
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS B3 IR ES

KEY HIGHLIGHTS £ ZEif =
FY2023 FY2022 +/-%
2023 BIEREE | 2022 IEEFE
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEAETT
(restated)
(&%)
Revenue ON 3,833.2 4,067.7 -5.8%
Gross Profit E7 1,303.1 1,302.8 +0.0%
34.0% 32.0% -
Profit attributable to owners of RARER AERRT]
the Company 330.2 312.8 +5.6%
8.6% 7.7% -
Segment Results DEEE 435.7 426.1 +2.2%
11.4% 10.5% -
Adjusted EBITDA & AFE EBITDA 607.8 605.4 +0.4%
15.9% 14.9% -
Total Assets BREE 4,683.7 4,599.8 +1.8%
Net Assets attributable to owners of the RARHEE ANEIEEEFE
Company 3,631.4 3,555.8 +2.1%
Final Dividend per share (HK cents) ERE AR ERRR B (BIL) 15.82 15.16 +4.4%
Basic Earnings per share (HK cents) EREGRAF (B 31.64 29.96 +5.6%
Dividend Payout Ratio (%) k2 (%) 50.0% 50.6% -
Net Asset per share (HK$) SREEFE (BT) 3.48 3.41 +2.1%
TRACK RECORD 1 45 5C £k
Revenue in Mainland China Segment Results in Mainland China Proportion of Revenue
FRE A U A PE Rl I HEE by Geographical Region
HK$million B &# 7T HKSmillion B BATT RBEE D 2 WA H
2500 350
300 |
2000
250 F
1500 F 20 F [ Mainland China = ER:
W H s W H bxE 60 9
L 150 | %
wor BE Rk +8.7« | +14.1% R
Hong Kong &%
500 Wy yEEE so | | R
%
+2.1% +4.8 « 39.1
2021 2022 2021 2022
Revenue in Hong Kong Segment Results in Hong Kong Proportion of Results
BEBRA BB EHEE by Geographical Region
HKS$million B &4 7T HKSmillion B &% 7T d‘:ﬁi&E%ﬂﬁZ%%tb@]
1800 200
1500
150
1200 p [ Mainland China #Elps
900 | | RIT=cs 100 WH s 72 3
%
600 +11o4% '5.0% *
0 F Hong Kong &%
300 f W Fy BEEE Wy sEsEE
: +74% 2.8+ 27.7%
2021 2022 2021 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS E IR E 51w 72T

The Board is pleased to announce the annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Macro-economy Saw Steady Recovery; Opportunities and
Challenges Coexist

In 2023, the global economy saw a resilient and better-than-expected
recovery, though it grew patchily and unevenly. Still, the impact of
weaker international trade has become increasingly apparent, leading
to a downturn of business and erosion in consumer confidence among
the after-effects.

In Mainland China, the rebound of consumer spending early in the
year arising from the lifting of the COVID-19 related restrictions has
faded. Despite the implementation of various stimulus measures by
the government authorities to stimulate and sustain economic growth,
including the expansion of government debt issuance to support
public spending, consumer confidence still remained weak.

In Hong Kong, consumer spending was encouraged by the
government through the launching of Consumption Voucher Scheme
to a certain extent. Nonetheless, the soar of international and cross-
border outbound travel since the reopening of borders unfavourably
impacted certain local businesses, including retail and food and
beverage industries.

The Group has remained committed to continuous product upgrades
and cost optimisation against this backdrop. We are dedicated to
pursuing a premiumisation strategy and providing good quality food
that bring contentment and enjoyment to our valued consumers.
Riding on our solid foundation and footholds in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, as well as the rich and diversified product portfolio
developed over the years, we sail through good times and bad.

As a responsible corporate citizen, we are committed to protecting
consumers’ well-being by providing a stable food supply. We also
attach tremendous importance to food safety by conducting regular
product testings and pursuing relevant research and development.
Moreover, the Company adopts a wide range of measures and policies
to reduce environmental impact in this new era of global boiling, such
as the installation of solar panels in various production plants.
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FINANCIALS

In terms of preparation of financial results for the Group, the
consolidated financial statements of the current financial year have
been prepared using the principles of merger accounting in accordance
with Hong Kong Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations” (“AG 5"”) issued by the HKICPA and
the figures of the previous financial year were therefore restated to
include the results of Nissin Vietnam correspondingly because of the
acquisition of Nissin Vietnam. On 29 June 2023, the Company and
Nissin Foods Asia Co., Ltd. (“Nissin Asia”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Nissin Foods Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Nissin Japan”) entered into a
capital transfer agreement (”Capital Transfer Agreement”) in relation
to (i) the acquisition of 66.01% of the assigned contribution capital
(the “Acquisition”) of Nissin Vietnam; and (ii) capital contribution
of USD2 million to the capital of Nissin Vietnam (the “Capital
Contribution”) after the completion of the Acquisition.

For the year under review, the Group’s overall business was dampened
because of the weakened consumption sentiment for instant noodles,
the absence of a sudden surge in demand driven by the pandemic
in 2022 and the negative effects of foreign currency translation for
Hong Kong Dollars against Renminbi. Revenue decreased by 5.8%
to HK$3,833.2 million (2022 restated: HK$4,067.7 million), primarily
attributable to the decrease in consumption and the negative effects
of foreign exchange rate. Gross profit remained flat at HK$1,303.1
million (2022 restated: HK$1,302.8 million), while gross profit margin
was boosted by 2.0 percentage points to 34.0% in 2023 from 32.0%
(restated) in 2022. The increase in gross profit margin was mainly
attributable to the price adjustments implemented in both Hong Kong
and Mainland China in 2022 to offset the surge in manufacturing
costs, as well as the easing of the key raw material costs.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company increased by 5.6% to
HK$330.2 million (2022 restated: HK$312.8 million), representing
the net profit margin of 8.6% for the year (2022 restated: 7.7%).
Profit and profitability improved over the last year mainly due to the
profit contribution from the acquisition of minority interests in Zhuhai
Golden Coast Winner Food Products Limited and the consolidation of
Nissin Vietnam.

The Group’s basic earnings per share increased to 31.64 HK cents for
the year (2022 restated: 29.96 HK cents). For the fiscal year of 2023,
the Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of 15.82
HK cents per share (2022: 15.16 HK cents), representing a dividend
payout ratio of 50.0% (2022 restated: 50.6%) for the year.
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At the Adjusted EBITDA level ™, the Group slightly increased by 0.4%
to HK$607.8 million (2022 restated: HK$605.4 million), representing
the Adjusted EBITDA margin of 15.9% for the year (2022 restated:
14.9%).

Note: Adjusted EBITDA is a non-HKFRS measurement used by the management
to assess the performance of operating segments, allocate resources and
make strategic decisions. The measurement basis of Adjusted EBITDA is
defined as net profit before net interest expenses, tax, depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, depreciation of the right-of-use asset
and amortisation of intangible asset. This also excludes share of material
gains or losses which are of capital nature or non-operational related
and fair value changes on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Hong Kong and other Asia Operations

The Hong Kong economy continued to recover during 2023 as
the real gross domestic product (“GDP") recorded a year-on-year
growth of 3.2%. Led by the recovery of inbound tourism and private
consumption, there were significant year-on-year increases in visitor
arrivals and total retail sales. According to the Hong Kong Tourism
Board and the Census and Statistics Department, the number of visitor
arrivals reached 34.0 million and the value of total retail sales jumped
by 16.2% year-on-year in 2023.

However, the retail sales value of supermarkets and supermarket
sections of department stores presented an opposite landscape,
recording a twelve-month-consecutive decline of 7.1% compared to
that of the previous year, as it was negatively impacted by the public’s
preference to eat out, and deteriorated by the outbound international
and cross-border travel after ease of the pandemic. The monthly
outbound cross-border passenger traffic of Hong Kong residents to
Shenzhen climbed from 4.5 million in July to 6.0 million in December
in the second half of the year, based on the Statistics on Passenger

Traffic from the Immigration Department.
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Furthermore, despite the number of visitor arrivals exceeding the
initial target, the number of inbound travellers still lagged behind the
pre-pandemic level, accounting for around 60% of visitor arrivals in
2019. As a market leader in instant noodles and frozen food products
in Hong Kong, the Company has suffered from the disappointing
consumption sentiment on daily necessities.

Revenue from Hong Kong and other Asia operations decreased by
6.5% to HK$1,513.2 million (2022 restated: HK$1,617.9 million),
owing to the absence of a sudden surge in demand in Hong Kong,
especially for bag-type instant noodles and frozen foods, which was
evident during the pandemic last year. Currently, revenue from Hong
Kong and other Asia operations accounted for 39.5% (2022 restated:
39.8%) of the Group’s total revenue.

In terms of segment results, the Hong Kong and other Asia operations
decreased by 24.5% to HK$85.1 million (2022 restated: HK$112.7
million) as reduced sales volume diminished the optimisation of certain
fixed costs and expenses.

Instant Noodles Business

For the year under review, the performance of instant noodles was
mediocre as consumers moved away from the work-from-home and
stay-at-home lifestyles, which were the norms during the pandemic,
and favoured eating out as well as travelling. To encourage and
stimulate more consumer spending, the Company continued to add
new flavours to its signature brands Cup Noodles and Demae Iccho
during the year, including three flavours (seafood, prawn and curry)
under the Cup Noodles Japan Formula Style Series, Demae Iccho
Hokkaido Wheat Flour Tori Paitan Flavour and Demae Iccho Hokkaido
Wheat Flour Korean Shin Flavour.

To further enrich our instant noodles portfolio, the Company launched
different new flavours under the Nissin Raoh, Nissin U.F.O, Fuku
and Doll brands, such as Nissin Chicken Ramen Instant Noodles
and Doll Fried Noodle Hong Kong Style Satay Beef Flavour Instant
Noodle. In response to the public’s health awareness and to cater for
the growing consumer demand for healthy products, the Company
introduced rice noodles and plant-meat products comprising non-
allergic and non-meat ingredients during the year. It launched the
Nissin Viet Signature Series, bringing the No-Cook Vietnamese pho
rice noodles for consumers to enjoy in three-minute time. It also
collaborated with an apparel company to launch the Demae Iccho
Bow! Tonkotsu Flavour Instant Noodle (Bow! Noodle)(Non meat)
and Demae Iccho Bowl! Spicy Tonkotsu Flavour Instant Noodle (Bowl!
Noodle)(Non meat).
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Non-Noodles Business

The diversification of our product portfolio into the non-noodles
business has been underway and has provided us with a solid
foundation to develop the mainstay of our business and overcome
adversity. It enables our non-noodles business to capitalise on the
management expertise and distribution network of the instant
noodles business to create synergy, and enhance the Company’s
overall competitiveness.

Frozen food products

As the competitive landscape of the industry has further intensified,
the Company extended its focus on the premium frozen food
products. While offering a wider product range with premium
products under the NISSIN brand, the Company further expanded
its exposure in various sales channels, including the catering industry
and overseas exports, to increase its sales volume. During the year, the
Company continued to launch new products including Nissin Frozen
Tempura Udon, Nissin Black Pepper Flavour Fried Dumpling and Nissin
Linguine in Korean-style Three Cheese Sauce.

Distribution business

MC Marketing & Sales (Hong Kong) Limited is engaged in the
distribution of beverages, confectionery, snacks, Japanese brand
seasoning sauce and chilled products in Hong Kong. Its business
recorded a rebound during the year as a result of the subsidence
of the pandemic and the revival of economic activities. A gradual
increase in the number of tourist arrivals also contributed to the
growth in sales.
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KAGOME, Nissin Granola, Fresh-cut vegetable and Nissin
Yogurt

The Company continued to expand the sales channels of KAGOME
business in different regions, including convenience stores, business
offices, fine-dining restaurants and airline lounge and thus positive
response from consumers has been received.

The Company replicated the success of Nissin Granola in Hong Kong
and Mainland China to the new markets in Southeast Asia, and both
sales value and volume grew in Singapore, where it is able to secure
a leading market position. A new Granola Royal Milk Tea Flavour was
added during the year to further enhance our product collection.

The fresh-cut vegetable business developed in December 2020 has
shown an increasing demand. The distribution channels have been
expanded with both sales value and volume recording growth in
2023.

In order to capture the opportunities arising from the healthy living
lifestyle of consumers, the Company enriched its product line with the
launching of the low-fat Nissin Yogurt Series during the year. Plain
and strawberry flavours were introduced, serving in the form of both
yoghurt cup and yoghurt drink.

Nissin Vietham

On 29 June 2023, the Company and Nissin Asia entered into the
Capital Transfer Agreement in relation to the Acquisition and the
Capital Contribution in Nissin Vietnam. The total consideration for the
Acquisition and the Capital Contribution was approximately USD11.5
million. Upon the completion of the Acquisition and the Capital
Contribution on 10 July 2023 and 4 August 2023 respectively, Nissin
Vietnam is held as to 67% by the Company and becomes a non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and its financial results have
been consolidated into that of the Company according to the relevant
accounting policy (AG 5).

The Acquisition allowed the Company to gain control over Nissin
Vietnam, thereby expanding the geographic portfolio of the Group’s
businesses. In addition, the Company can leverage the human
resources, expertise and experiences from the Hong Kong and
Mainland China operations to accelerate Nissin Vietnam’s business
growth and capitalise on the long-term growth trends in the
Vietnamese instant noodles market, which will in turn increase the
overall income and profitability of the Company.
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The Vietnam's economy growth had been accelerating throughout
2023, with quarterly GDP growth rates ranging from 3.41% to
6.72%, resulting in full year GDP growth of 5.05% year-on-year, as
reported by General Statistics Office of Vietnam. In addition, the total
retail sales of consumer goods and services grew by 9.6% while the
food and food stuffs category increased by 11.7%. The overall socio-
economic situation in Vietnam was on a good track.

Nissin Vietnam primarily engages in the production and sale of bag-
type instant noodles, with brands including Mi Cay Nissin, 365 Non-
fried Noodles and Nissin Raoh. During the year under review, its
performance improved and the overall outlook was positive.

Mainland China Operations

The Mainland China’s economy grew 5.2% year-on-year in 2023 as
reported by the National Bureau of Statistics of China, slightly above
the official target. The GDP in the fourth quarter increased by 5.2%
from the previous year, quickening from 4.9% in the third quarter.
However, GDP grew 1.0% on a quarter-by-quarter basis, slowing
from a 1.5% gain in the previous quarter. On the other hand, the
total retail sales of consumer goods climbed 7.2% year-on-year but
supermarket retail sales fell 0.4% year-on-year. The China economy
faced a patchy economic recovery in 2023.

At the beginning of the year, the Mainland China’s economy enjoyed a
post-pandemic rebound. Nevertheless, its economic recovery showed
a sign of losing further momentum as a lack of confidence among
households and businesses battered consumer spending. Furthermore,
the contracted manufacturing activities and the complicated
employment prospects eroded consumer sentiment.
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For the year under review, revenue declined by 5.3% (in local currency:
-1.1%) to HK$2,320.0 million (2022 restated: HK$2,449.8 million),
owing to the slower consumption growth momentum in Mainland
China and the negative effects of foreign currency translation.
Currently, revenue from the Mainland China operations accounted for
60.5% (2022 restated: 60.2%) of the Group's total revenue.

In terms of segment results, the Mainland China operations increased
by 11.8% (in local currency: +16.8%) to HK$350.6 million (2022
restated: HK$313.5 million), mainly attributable to the implementation
of price adjustment in 2022 and the easing of raw material costs
during the year.

Instant Noodles Business

During the year, the overall performance of the instant noodles
business slightly retreated due to the weak consumption sentiment
caused by heightened economic uncertainty. Nonetheless, the
Company continued to implement its geographical business expansion
strategy in Mainland China and explored certain new markets in
the western and northern regions of China. Amid stiff industry
competition, the Company adhered to its premiumisation strategy, and
same as in Hong Kong, it offered consumers three Japanese flavours
of Cup Noodles. The Japan Formula Style Series was introduced
to provide authentic Japanese taste, and these products further
strengthen our position in pursuing the premiumisation strategy.
Moreover, the Company continued to develop various brands of its
premium bag-type instant noodles including Demae-Iccho, Nissin
Raoh and Nissin Chicken Ramen in Mainland China. In addition
to offering new flavours, the Company collaborated with different
parties to bring fun and joy to our consumers. These included a
collaboration with a membership warehouse club in Shenzhen for the
“Cup Noodles Bucket” and Cup Noodles crossovers with Japanese
anime “BLEACH" (JEHf) and “Onmyoji” (BB ).

Non-Noodles Business
Leveraging our presence as a premium instant noodles manufacturer,

the Company moves forward to the non-noodles business to pursue
product diversification and business opportunities in the region.
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Distribution Business

The Company’s distribution business through Shanghai Eastpeak
Trading Co. Ltd. (“Shanghai Eastpeak”) is engaged in the distribution
of confectionery and beverages of the Company’s own brands as
well as numerous well-known third-party Japanese brands with
growth potential. Its sales network comprises large domestic chain
stores, high-end supermarkets, convenience stores and major online
platforms in Mainland China. The Company acquired the remaining
19% shareholding interest in Hong Kong Eastpeak Limited (“Hong
Kong Eastpeak”), which wholly-owns Shanghai Eastpeak, via the
exercise of call option and the two companies became wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company on 3 July 2023.

Other Products

Nissin Crisp Choco, our baked corn flakes chocolate snack, has
received a massive positive response as there are a few alternatives
in the market. The exclusive strawberry and white chocolate flavours
have been introduced alongside the original cacao flavour to enrich
the product collection.

After the pandemic, consumers in Mainland China were motivated
to purchase healthy and nutritious food due to their growing health
consciousness. As a result, the Japanese kale vegetable drink “Aojiru”
or literally “green juices” branded as Demae Iccho Yingyou Aojiru
Vegetable and Fruit Mixed Juice (Apple Flavour and White Peach
Flavour), was strategically added to our portfolio.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2023, the total assets of the Group amounted
to HK$4,683.7 million (31 December 2022 restated: HK$4,599.8
million), and the total equity was HK$3,674.7 million (31 December
2022 restated: HK$3,599.7 million). The Group’s working capital was
HK$1,608.0 million (31 December 2022 restated: HK$1,569.6 million),
represented by the difference between the total current assets of
HK$2,504.2 million (31 December 2022 restated: HK$2,496.5 million)
and the total current liabilities of HK$896.2 million (31 December
2022 restated: HK$927.0 million). The current ratio was 2.8 as at 31
December 2023 (31 December 2022 restated: 2.7).

The financial position of the Group remained healthy, with net cash
of approximately HK$1,310.4 million (31 December 2022 restated:
HK$1,277.6 million) and HK$820.0 million (31 December 2022:
HK$820.0 million) in available banking facilities as at 31 December
2023. The Group had no external borrowing, and the gearing ratio
was nil as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: Nil).

Capital Expenditure

The Group’s capital expenditure was approximately HK$329.6 million
during the year under review (2022 restated: HK$634.0 million),
which was mainly due to the acquisition of Nissin Vietnam and
the capital investments in the production plants in Hong Kong and
Mainland China.

Capital Commitments

The Group had a capital commitment for the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment contracted for but not provided HK$50.0 million
as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: HK$93.0 million).

Financial Risk Management

The Group had not entered into nor traded derivative financial
instruments for hedging or speculative purposes. The Company and
several subsidiaries have foreign currency sales and purchases, which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk. As HK Dollar is currently
pegged to US Dollar, the Company considered that the Group’s
exposure to fluctuation in HK Dollar against US Dollar is limited. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily the Japanese Yen and
Renminbi against HK Dollar. The Company continues to manage and
monitor these exposures to ensure that appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner.
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Contingent Liability

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no material contingent
liability (31 December 2022: Nil).

Pledge of Assets

The Group did not have pledged assets as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
Nil).

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Company is cautiously optimistic about the long-term business
development in the regions and continues to control costs and
improve operational efficiency. Premiumisation and diversification
strategies are the keys to achieving growth amid market turbulence
and volatility.

In Hong Kong, economic activities have revived and inbound tourism
has been recovering gradually. The expansion of Individual Visit
Scheme for Mainland travellers to Hong Kong further helps boosting
tourist spending. The Company continues to roll out more premium
products to delight consumers, offering them great taste and superior
ingredients. Moreover, in view of rising health awareness among
consumers, the Company will pursue further diversification of the
business portfolio to non-noodles business, enriching the product lines
to broaden the income base.
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In Mainland China, overall consumer consumption continues to grow.
The per capita spending continues to rise and the per capita income
gap between urban and rural residents is narrowing. Expanding
effective domestic consumption continues to be a key mission of the
Chinese government in 2024. The Company increased its promotional
activities at locations with huge human traffic flow, such as retail
outlets and transportation hubs, bringing the irresistible taste of
our Cup Noodles, as well as our premium bag-type instant noodles
including Demae Iccho, Nissin Raoh and Nissin Chicken Ramen to
consumers. Moreover, the Company continues to expand its business
territory and penetrate into other areas alongside the development of
additional sales channels.

In Vietnam, annual per capita expenditure on food and beverages
continues to grow every year. The pandemic has significantly increased
consumer awareness of health and well-being. As such, consumers
tend to opt for quality instant noodles products. The Company
believes that this trend will continue and there will be ample
opportunities for expansion of the premium instant noodles products
market in Vietnam.

In addition, the Company established a subsidiary and developed a
sales office in Taiwan, in order to penetrate into other regions and
further expand its sales channels. Riding on our solid foundation and
strong footholds in Hong Kong and Mainland China, it will broaden
the income base and generate additional sales.

To echo the belief of our founder Mr. Momofuku Ando that “Eating
and sports are the two axles of health”, the Company has been
actively promoting healthy lifestyles. In addition to offering consumers
healthy food product choices to meet the post-pandemic lifestyles,
it has been a veteran supporter of sports development. Nissin Foods
has been an Official Food Partner of the Football’'s Hong Kong, China
Representative Team (HKRT), supporting its campaign at the AFC
Asian Cup Qatar 2023™ and the FIFA World Cup 2026 and AFC Asian
Cup Saudi Arabia 2027™ Preliminary Joint Qualification Round 2.
Themed Cup Noodles and Nissin Koikeya Potato Chips featuring
the head coach and several key football players have been launched
for consumers to enjoy while watching the Asian Cup and the World
Cup.

Building on its solid foundation and pursuing a well-diversified product
portfolio and the premiumisation strategy, the Company is well-
positioned to deliver continuous revenue and earnings growth, as well
as to expand business territories with increasing brand recognition in
Hong Kong and Mainland China for years to come.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 29 June 2023, the Company and Nissin Asia entered into the
Capital Transfer Agreement in relation to the Acquisition and
Capital Contribution in Nissin Vietnam at a total consideration of
approximately USD11.5 million. Upon completion of Acquisition and
Capital Contribution which took place on 10 July 2023 and 4 August
2023 respectively, Nissin Vietnam became a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 29 June 2023 for details.

The Company acquired the remaining 19% shareholding interest in
Hong Kong Eastpeak, which wholly-owns Shanghai Eastpeak, at a
consideration of approximately RMBO0.5 million via the exercise of call
option and the two companies became wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company on 3 July 2023. The exercise of the call option did not
constitute notifiable transaction of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

During the year under review, except for the aforesaid acquisitions,
there were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures by the Group and the Group did not
hold any significant investments.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2023, the total number of employees of the
Group was 3,409 (31 December 2022: 3,274), with staff costs
(excluding directors’ remuneration) amounting to approximately
HK$705.5 million for the year. The remuneration package is
determined concerning the individual performance, qualification and
experience of employees concerned and prevailing industry practices.
The Group also provides medical benefits, internal and external
training and discretionary bonuses based on individual performance.
The share award scheme is in place to provide long-term incentives to
the selected key staff of the Group.
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As at 26 March 2024
M202463 A26H

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Kiyotaka Ando

Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa

Mr. Shinji Tatsutani

Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka (resigned on 1 July 2023)
Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada

Mr. Katsunori Hiroi (appointed on 1 July 2023)
Mr. Xi Xiaotong (appointed on 1 July 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto (resigned on 1 July 2023)
Mr. Masaru Takahashi

Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano

Professor Toshiaki Sakai

Professor Keiko Ito (appointed on 1 July 2023)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Masaru Takahashi (Chairman)
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto (resigned on 1 July 2023)
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano

Professor Toshiaki Sakai (appointed on 1 July 2023)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Masaru Takahashi (Chairman)
Mr. Kiyotaka Ando
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto (resigned on 1 July 2023)

Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano (appointed on 1 July 2023)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Kiyotaka Ando (Chairman)
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto (resigned on 1 July 2023)
Mr. Masaru Takahashi

Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano (appointed on 1 July 2023)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lo Tai On

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

LEGAL ADVISORS

CFN Lawyers
Broad & Bright Law Firm
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Gu Chunlei

Mr. Takeshi Kikunaga

Mr. Yutaka Komori

Mr. Lau Wing Leung Max (appointed on 1 July 2023)

Mr. Gen Matsunobu

Mr. Kiyoshi Matsuura

Mr. Takeshi Shigemi

Ms. Tang Yuen Man Amy

Mr. Tse Chi Ping Roy

Ms. Wong Wai Fong Blanche

Mr. Zhao Xiongda

(The order is alphabetised by the last names
of the senior management members.)

REGISTERED OFFICE

21-23 Dai Shing Street
Tai Po Industrial Estate
Tai Po

New Territories

Hong Kong

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

11-13 Dai Shun Street
Tai Po Industrial Estate
Tai Po

New Territories

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Mizuho Bank, Ltd.
MUFG Bank, Ltd.

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

CONTACT INFORMATION

Website: www.nissingroup.com.hk
Investor Relations Email: ir@nissinfoods.com.hk
Media Relations Email: pr@nissinfoods.com.hk

STOCK CODE
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Kiyotaka Ando, aged 44, is Executive Director, Chairman of
the Board and Chief Executive Officer. He is responsible for strategic
planning and managing the overall business and operations of the
Group. Mr. Ando joined the Group in March 2009 and has been
a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ando
obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from Keio University
in Japan in March 2004. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ando worked
in Mitsubishi Corporation from April 2004 to December 2007. In
January 2008, Mr. Ando joined Nissin Foods Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Nissin
Japan”) and its subsidiaries (“Nissin Japan Group”) as the deputy
general manager of marketing division and is currently a managing
executive officer and chief representative, East Asia of Nissin Japan,
and a director of seven subsidiaries of Nissin Japan (non-executive in
nature).

Currently, Mr. Ando is a guest member of the standing committee
of Tier | Association and vice president of Tier Il Association of
Noodle Products Branch of the Chinese Institute of Foods Science
and Technology; a member of the Foods Wise Hong Kong Steering
Committee under the Environment and Ecology Bureau, the HKSAR
Government; the chairman of the advisory committee, Nissin Foods
(Hong Kong) Charity Fund; a vice chairman of the International Affairs
Committee, Federation of Hong Kong Industries; a director of The
Hong Kong Japanese Chamber of Commerce & Industry; a director
of School Management Committee, Hong Kong Japanese School and
Japanese International School, Hong Kong; a member of the advisory
board of the Research Centre for Comparative Japanese Studies, The
Chinese University of Hong Kong; and an advisor to Our Hong Kong
Foundation.

Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa, aged 64, is Executive Director. He is a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company and is responsible
for overseeing and managing overall research and development
functions of the Group. Before joining the Group, Mr. Fujinawa
joined Nissin Japan in 1982 with his last position being the executive
officer and deputy head of NISSIN Global Innovation Center of Nissin
Japan. Between April 2008 and March 2014, Mr. Fujinawa served as
deputy managing director of research and development division of
the Company. Mr. Fujinawa has extensive experience in the fields of
research and development related to food products. He obtained a
Bachelor of Agriculture degree from Obihiro University of Agriculture
and Veterinary Medicine in Japan in March 1982. In May 2021, Mr.
Fujinawa was appointed as a member of the standing committee of
Tier Il Association of Noodle Products Branch of the Chinese Institute
of Foods Science and Technology.
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Mr. Shinji Tatsutani, aged 59, is Executive Director, and Chief
Financial Officer of the Group. He is responsible for overseeing and
managing overall finance functions of the Group. Mr. Tatsutani
obtained a Bachelor of Economics degree from Osaka Prefecture
University in Japan in March 1987. Mr. Tatsutani has over 32 years
of experience in finance and accounting. Mr. Tatsutani joined Nissin
Japan in April 1987 and worked in accounting division until November
1996. From November 1996 to March 2002, Mr. Tatsutani was
assigned to Guangdong Shunde Nissin Food Co., Ltd.. From March
2002 to March 2008, Mr. Tatsutani was re-assigned to Nissin Japan
with his last position being manager in finance division. In March
2008, after re-joining the Group, Mr. Tatsutani has been a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company and is also a director of
Food Safety Evaluation & Research Institute Co., Ltd. (“Food Safety
Institute”).

Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada, aged 66, is Executive Director, and Chief
Production Officer of the Group. He is responsible for overseeing and
managing overall production functions of the Group. He is a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Yamada obtained a
Bachelor of Agriculture degree from Kobe University in Japan in March
1981. Before joining the Group, Mr. Yamada was the Chief Production
Officer of Nissin Japan, and oversaw its chilled and frozen foods,
confectionery and beverages businesses. Mr. Yamada joined Nissin
Japan in 1981 and has served in various positions in Nissin Japan.

Mr. Katsunori Hiroi, aged 50, is Executive Director, and the general
manager of eastern and northern China of the Group, responsible
for overseeing and managing overall sales. He is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He was the chairman and managing
director of Zhuhai Golden Coast Winner Food Products Limited and a
director of Winner Food Products Limited between September 2019
and March 2023. Mr. Hiroi obtained a Bachelor of Arts in International
Relations from Ritsumeikan University in Japan in March 1996. Mr.
Hiroi joined Nissin Japan in April 1996 and worked in various roles in
marketing and sales function until March 2013. He joined the Group
in March 2013 and was appointed as a director of the Company until
May 2015. From May 2015 to September 2019, he was the deputy
managing director of Nissin Foods (Thailand) Co., Ltd.. He rejoined the
Group in September 2019.

Mr. Xi Xiaotong, aged 54, is Executive Director, and the general
manager of southern China of the Group, responsible for overseeing
and managing overall sales. He is a director of Nissin Food (China)
Holding Co., Limited. Mr. Xi obtained a Bachelor of Economics degree
from Nihon University in Japan in March 1996. Before joining the
Group, Mr. Xi had worked in Nissin Japan in April 1996 and had
served various positions until December 2013, and had been assigned
to Shanghai Nissin Foods Co., Ltd. between 2001 and 2004 and
between 2008 and 2009. He joined the Group in December 2013.
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Mr. Masaru Takahashi, aged 71, is Independent Non-executive
Director appointed by the Company on 1 July 2021. Mr. Takahashi
is currently a special advisor of CENXUS GROUP, a tax accounting
corporation in Japan since January 2018, and a non-executive director
of Fukui Computer Holdings Inc., a company listed on the Tokyo Stock
Exchange (stock code: 9790) since June 2018 and a non-executive
auditor of Mental Health Technologies Co., Ltd., a company listed on
the Tokyo Stock Exchange (stock code: 9218) since March 2022.

From October 1980 to December 2017, Mr. Takahashi worked in
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in Japan with his last position being a
partner and served as a specially-appointed professor in international
accounting in the Graduate School of Asia University in Japan from
April 2014 to March 2020. Mr. Takahashi obtained a Bachelor of
Law degree from Gakushu-in University in Japan in March 1976. He
qualified as a Certified Public Accountant in Japan in 1984.

Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano, aged 59, is Independent Non-
executive Director appointed by the Company on 21 November 2017.
Professor Nakano obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree from Carleton
College in 1987, a Master of Philosophy degree from Yale University in
the United States in 1990 and a Doctor of Philosophy degree in 1998
from the same University. Since August 1995, Professor Nakano has
been working in The Chinese University of Hong Kong and is currently
the chairman and a professor at the department of Japanese studies.

Professor Toshiaki Sakai, aged 49, is Independent Non-executive
Director appointed by the Company on 1 April 2020. He is currently a
professor of Physical Education of Keio University Institute in Japan, an
executive director of Japan Tennis Association and a deputy director
of Keio University Athletic Association in Japan. Professor Sakai
has extensive experience in the sport coaching and management,
specializing in tennis. Professor Sakai is a director of Kabushikikaisha
Egg Ball ((kx\& TV 7KR—)JL), a limited liability company
incorporated in Japan, which is principally engaged in tennis coaching
business. Professor Sakai obtained a Bachelor’s degree in political
science from the Faculty of Law of Keio University in Japan in March
1997, a Master’s degree in sports science from Waseda University in
Japan in March 2007 and a Doctoral’s degree from Keio University
Graduate School of Media and Governance from Keio University in
Japan in February 2014.
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Professor Keiko Ito, aged 52, is Independent non-executive Director
appointed by the Company on 1 July 2023. Professor Ito is currently a
professor at the Graduate School of Social Sciences of Chiba University
in Japan. From April 2018 to March 2022, she was a professor at the
Faculty of Commerce of Chuo University in Japan. From April 2004 to
March 2018, she worked in Senshu University in Japan, with her last
position as a professor of the Faculty of Economics. From April 2002
to March 2004, she was a senior research fellow at the International
Centre for the Study of East Asian Development. Professor Ito
obtained a Bachelor’s degree in industrial management from the
Faculty of Science and Engineering of Waseda University in Japan
in March 1994, a Master's degree in area studies from University of
Tsukuba in Japan in March 1999 and a Doctoral’s degree in economics
from Hitotsubashi University in Japan in March 2002. She is an
economist whose research focuses on trade and economic policy in
the Asian region, including China.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Gu Chunlei, aged 47, joined the Group in February 2014 and is
currently the acting general manager of Nissin Foods (China) Holdings
Company Limited, responsible for overseeing and managing overall
sales of the group in southern China. Mr. Gu graduated from Jiangxi
Open University in 1998, majoring in Finance. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Gu worked in Dingyi Food Co., Ltd. and Jinmailang Foods
Co., Ltd.. He has extensive experience in food sales and marketing.

Mr. Takeshi Kikunaga, aged 51, joined the Group in March 2014
and is currently deputy managing director of Nissin Foods (H.K.)
Company Limited and managing director of Kagome Nissin Foods
(H.K.) Co., Limited, responsible for overseeing the sales functions in
Hong Kong. Mr. Kikunaga is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the company. He joined Nissin Japan in April 1997 and performed
various sales and marketing positions in Nissin Japan until March
2014. Mr. Kikunaga obtained a Bachelor of Engineering degree from
Aoyama Gakuin University in Japan in March 1997.

Mr. Yutaka Komori, aged 60, joined the Group in October 2019 and
is the chairman and general manager of Shanghai Eastpeak Trading
Co. Ltd. and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr.
Komori was appointed as senior executive officer for sales in northern
China of the Group from March 2020 to March 2021, responsible
for overseeing and managing overall sales in northern China region.
Before this, Mr. Komori was the deputy head of northern China
Business. Mr. Komori obtained a Bachelor of Law degree from
Waseda University in Japan in March 1986. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Komori worked in Mitsubishi Corporation from April 1986 to
September 2019, with his last position being the general manager
of overseas marketing group of Mitsubishi Shokuhin, a subsidiary of
Mitsubishi Corporation.
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Mr. Lau Wing Leung Max, aged 59, joined the Group since August
2018 and is currently the managing director of Winner Foods Products
Limited, responsible for overseeing and managing overall business and
operational matters. Mr. Lau obtained a Master of Arts degree (major
in marketing) from Macquarie University in Australia in October 1995,
a Master of Business Administration degree from Asia International
Open University (Macau) in July 1996 and a Master of Electronic
Business degree from City University of Hong Kong in November
2002, and Advanced Management Programme from INSEAD of France
in 2004. Before joining the Group, Mr. Lau had worked in Cony
Electronic, British American Tobacco and Lee Kum Kee between 1983
and 1988. And he worked with John Swire & Sons (H.K.) Limited
between July 1988 and December 2017, and had been assigned to
Taikoo Sugar Limited between 1988 and 2011 with last position as
director and general manager and to Swire Foods Holdings Limited as
managing director between 2012 and 2017.

Mr. Gen Matsunobu, aged 53, joined the Group in March 2010
and is currently managing director of Zhuhai Golden Coast Winner
Food Products Limited and a director of Winner Food Products
Limited, responsible for overseeing and managing overall business
and operational matters. Before this, he was general manager of
marketing for Mainland China. Mr. Matsunobu graduated from
the Department of Biochemical Science and Technology, Faculty of
Agriculture, Kagoshima University in Japan in March 1994 and further
obtained a Master of Agriculture degree from the same University
in March 1996. From April 1996 to March 2010, Mr. Matsunobu
worked in Nissin Japan, with his last position being a supervisor in the
marketing division.

Mr. Kiyoshi Matsuura, aged 56, joined the Group in March 2020
is currently the general manager (China & Hong Kong production),
responsible for overseeing and managing overall production of the
Group. Before this, he was a general manager of Zhejiang Nissin
Foods Company Limited and a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Group. Mr. Matsuura graduated from Kochi University in Japan
majoring in Agronomic Chemistry in 1991. Mr. Matsuura joined Nissin
Japan in April 1991 and worked in various production plants. From
March 2012 to March 2016, he was appointed as a director of Nissin
Foods Vietnam Co., Ltd.. From March 2016 to March 2020, he was
appointed as a director of Nissin Foods (Thailand) Co., Ltd..
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Mr. Takeshi Shigemi, aged 61, joined the Group in March 2014
and is currently director in Nissin Foods (H.K.) Management Co., Ltd,
in charge of administration, public relations and business planning
functions. In March 2015 he was first appointed as senior executive
officer for sales in southern China of the Group, responsible for
overseeing and managing overall sales in southern China of the
Group. From April 2017 to March 2018, Mr. Shigemi was responsible
for overseeing and managing overall sales in eastern China of the
Group and his title was changed to senior executive officer for sales in
eastern China. He graduated from the Chinese language curriculum
of Kyoto Sangyo University in Japan in March 1985. He has nearly 26
years of experience in sales and marketing. From April 1985 to August
2013, Mr. Shigemi worked in Panasonic Corporation, with his last
position being head of the marketing division. From August 2013 to
March 2014, Mr. Shigemi was the manager of the marketing division
of Nissin Japan.

Ms. Tang Yuen Man Amy, aged 58, joined the Group since
September 2003. She is currently the general manager of quality
management department, responsible for overseeing and managing
overall quality management matters of the Group. Ms. Tang obtained
Bachelor of Science degree and Master of Quality Management
degree from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1992 and 1998
respectively. Ms. Tang was responsible for lab testing and quality
management work of edible oil factory and refinery under Hop Hing
Group during 1988-2003 before she joined the Group.

Mr. Tse Chi Ping Roy, aged 63, joined the Group in January 2008
and is currently the general manager of human resources department
(China and Hong Kong). Before this, Mr. Tse was a senior executive
officer for sales in Nissin Foods (H.K.) Company Limited (“Nissin
Foods HK"), responsible for overseeing and managing the sales
functions of Nissin Foods HK. Mr. Tse obtained an Honours Diploma
in Business Management from the Hong Kong Baptist University
(previously known as Hong Kong Baptist College) in November 1985
and obtained a Master of Business Administration degree from the
Open University of Hong Kong in June 2002. Mr. Tse has accumulated
34 years of experience in sales and marketing of consumable
products having previously worked under sales department in various
companies.
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Ms. Wong Wai Fong Blanche, aged 52, joined the Group in
May 2018. She is currently the general manager of public relations
department, responsible for overseeing corporate affairs, media
relations, customer care centre, community relations, and internal
communication of the Group. Ms. Wong obtained a Bachelor of
Social Sciences in Communication (Journalism) degree from the Hong
Kong Baptist University in 1994 and a Master of International and
Public Affairs degree from the University of Hong Kong in 2005. She
started her career as a court reporter and then spent five years in the
marketing of U.S. produce in Mainland China and Hong Kong. She
began serving as an in-house public relations professional in 2004,
and brings with her a wealth of experience from industries across
home appliances, payments, banking and NGO. Currently, Ms. Wong
is serving as an executive committee member of Group 8 (Food,
beverages and tobacco), Federation of Hong Kong Industries.

Mr. Zhao Xiongda, aged 54, joined the Group in February 2001.
He is currently the general manager for sales in western China of
the Group, responsible for overseeing and managing overall sales.
Mr. Zhao obtained a Bachelor of Engineering degree in enterprise
management from Shanghai University of Engineering Science in July
1991. Before joining the Group, Mr. Zhao worked for Pepsi Cola,
US Campbell’s and other food manufacturing companies. He has
extensive experience in food sales and marketing.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT [P E)E

The Company is committed to the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices, with reference to the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code"”) as set out in Appendix C1
to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange. The Board is of the
opinion that during the year, the Company had complied with the
code provisions as set out in the CG Code except for the following
deviation:

Pursuant to Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Kiyotaka Ando is currently the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer, responsible for
strategic planning and managing of the Group’s overall business and
operations. Mr. Ando has been responsible for overall management
of the Group since 2009. The Board believes that the current structure
enables the Company to make and implement business decision swiftly
and effectively which promotes the Group’s development in line with
other strategies and business direction. The Board considers that the
balance of power and authority, accountability and independent
decision-making under the present arrangement will not be impaired
because of the diverse background and experience of the independent
non-executive directors. Further, the Audit Committee, which consists
exclusively of independent non-executive directors, has free and
direct access to the Company’s external auditors and independent
professional advisers when it considers necessary.

In order to maintain good corporate governance, the Board will
regularly review the need to appoint different individuals to perform
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer separately.

CULTURE

The Company upholds high standards of integrity, transparency,
and accountability in its business. It strives to foster a culture of
compliance, good corporate governance, and ethical behaviour with
its stakeholders to build trust and credibility.

“Peace will come to the world when there is enough food (& & tF)",
“Create foods to serve society (R &) &tt)”, “Eat wisely for beauty and
health (2B &)” and “Food related jobs are sacred profession (& &
EEE%)", the four tenets adopted by Mr. Momofuku Ando, the founder
of Nissin Japan, provide the basis for the Group’s philosophy and serve
as the abiding values of its foundation. The Board is committed to
developing a positive culture that is built on its core values to provide
guidance on employees' conduct and behaviours as well as the
business activities, and to ensure they are embedded throughout the
Group's vision, mission, policies and business strategies.
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DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
C3 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities
of the Company by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, upon
specific enquiries made by the Company that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year.
To ensure Directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company (the
“Securities”) are conducted in accordance with the Model Code, each
Director is required to notify the Chairman of the Board in writing and
obtain a written acknowledgement from the Chairman or designated
director prior to any dealings in the Securities. Relevant employees
of the Company are also bound by the Model Code, which prohibits
them to deal in the Securities at any time when they possess inside
information.

THE BOARD

Board Composition
During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the Board
comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kiyotaka Ando (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa

Mr. Shinji Tatsutani

Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka (resigned on 1 July 2023)

Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada

Mr. Katsunori Hiroi (appointed on 1 July 2023)

Mr. Xi Xiaotong (appointed on 1 July 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto (resigned on 1 July 2023)
Mr. Masaru Takahashi

Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano

Professor Toshiaki Sakai

Professor Keiko Ito (appointed on 1 July 2023)

The biographies of all Directors are set out in the section headed
“Board of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
The Company publishes and maintains on its website and on the
Stock Exchange’s website an updated list of the Directors identifying
their roles and functions. The Chairman is responsible for formulating
business strategies and providing leadership to the Board, ensuring
effective running of the Board, including that all appropriate issues
are discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman ensures
that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at the Board
Meetings and receive adequate, complete and reliable information.
The Chairman also encourages all Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board’s affairs and take the lead to ensure that it
acts in the best interests of the Company.

The Directors have devoted sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Group, and they have disclosed to the Company their
commitments (e.g. directorship) in other listed companies and
organisations as well as updated the Company on any subsequent
changes.
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During the year, the Board at all times has met the requirement of
Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors with at least one
independent non-executive director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee has assessed their independence based on the guidelines
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and the Company
considered them to be independent.

The Independent Non-executive Directors come from diverse business,
varied background and experience. Through the participation in the
Board Meetings and various Committee Meetings, the Independent
Non-executive Directors bring in independent judgment, extensive
experience and valuable contribution to the Board. The Board believes
that the composition of Executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient
balances that protect the interests of the shareholders and the Group
as a whole.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE

The Company recognises that Board independence is pivotal in
good corporate governance and Board effectiveness. Following
mechanisms are adopted by the Board and reviewed annually by the
Board to ensure their effectiveness and the Board considered that the
mechanism was effective for the year under review:

1. The Board must have at least three Independent Non-executive
Directors and must appoint Independent Non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board. Currently
there are four Independent Non-executive Directors on the
Board, accounting for 40% of the Board.

2. Onan annual basis, all Independent Non-executive Directors are
required to confirm in writing their compliance of independence
requirements pursuant to the Listing Rules, and to disclose the
number and nature of offices held by them in public companies
or organisations and other significant commitments.

3. External independent professional advice is available as and
when required by individual Directors.

4. The Chairman of the Board meets with Independent Non-
executive Directors annually without the presence of the
Executive Directors.
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THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Group. It
oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions, internal control,
risk management and performances. The management team is
delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the
daily management of the Group. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the management including: (1)
the preparation of interim and annual reports and announcements
for the Board’s approval before publishing; (2) implementation of
adequate risk management and internal control systems; and (3)
compliance with relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and
rules and regulations. It is the responsibility of the Board to determine
the appropriate corporate governance practices applicable to the
Company'’s circumstances and to ensure processes and procedures are
in place to achieve the Company’s corporate governance objectives.
There is a procedure agreed by the Board to ensure the Directors,
upon reasonable request, to seek the independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstance, at the Company’s expenses.

The Board has maintained the necessary balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the business requirements and objectives of the Group
and for the exercise of independent judgement. The Directors with
various professional qualifications, experience and related financial
management expertise have contributed to the effective direction
of the Company and provided adequate checks and balances to
safeguard the interests of both the Group and the shareholders.
Hence, the Board believes that the current Board composition satisfies
the corporate governance requirements with regard to the balance of
expertise, skills and experience as well as the ongoing development
and management of its business activities.

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall strategy
as well as the operation and financial performance of the Group. The
Directors may participate either in person or through electronic means
of communications. The Directors are given an opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. At least 14 days’' notice prior
to the date of regular Board Meeting is given to the Directors and
the agenda together with Board papers are normally sent to them at
least three days before the intended date of a Board Meeting. Draft
minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to all Directors for their
comment before being tabled at the next Board Meeting for approval.
All minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection by any Director.

Pursuant to Code Provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, the Board should
meet regularly and board meetings should be held as least four times
a year. The Board convened six meetings during the year.

To the best knowledge of the Board, the Directors do not have any
material financial, business, family or other relationships among
members of the Board. Should a Director has a potential conflict of
interest in a matter being considered at the Board Meeting, he or she
will abstain from voting and the Independent Non-executive Directors
will be present on dealing with such conflict of interest issues.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy of the Company (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) which specifies the objective and approach
to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance
the effectiveness of the Board. The Board Diversity Policy provides that
the Company should endeavour to ensure that the Board members
have the appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives that are required to support the execution of its business
strategy.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Company seeks to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to professional experience, skills, knowledge,
gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity and length
of service. The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness and will
disclose in the corporate governance report about the implementation
of the Board Diversity Policy on annual basis. The Board considered
that the Board Diversity Policy was effective for the year under review.

Summary and Measurable Objectives of the Board
Diversity Policy
During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the diversity
of the Board from perspectives the composition of the Board from
diversified angles:

Gender Age Group
TR Fhe#a R

No. of Directors

No. of Directors

EEIN EFEAY
Female Z 14 41 —50
® Male Bt 51 —60
® 61—70
® 71—80

* The length of service is calculated since listing.

The Nomination Committee considered that the Board had achieved
gender diversity and possessed skill and expertise and a diverse mix
appropriate for the business of the Company and will review the
composition and diversity of the Board on an annual basis to ensure
its continued effectiveness.

The Company has also taken and will continue to take steps to
promote gender diversity at all levels of the Company, including but
not limited to the Board and senior management levels and improve
the composition of the Board in order to develop a pipeline of
potential successors.
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Length of Service (year)*

RIEFH () *

No. of Directors
BEEAH

0—3
® 4—38
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s total workforce gender diversity
is approximately at 0.9:1.0 male to female ratio. The gender diversity
ratio for senior management is at 4.5:1.0 male to female ratio. The
Group will continue its endeavor to maintain female representation in
its workforce.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management members
by band for the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out below:

MR2023F 12 318 AEBEE2EBETHRIZ T
£ Bathflg50.9:1.0° 2REEBHRZT
It BrHIAE451.0 NREBEFEES NRET
ZHEE TEBFRREE -

EEEgNEREEEMNE
HZE2023F12A31HIEFE  EERaRERE
ABZMEHESHINWOT ¢

T8

Number of Personnel

Emoluments B < N ¢
Nil to HK$2,000,000 Z 2 2,000,000 77T 17
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7T E 3,000,000 7T 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 B 7T E 4,000,000 7T 2
HK$7,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 7,000,001 BT E 8,000,000 7T 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix D2 to the Listing Rules are set out in Notes 12 and 13 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company, whereas each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company.
Their term of service is set out below:

Directors =
Executive Directors HITEE
Kiyotaka Ando ZHEEE
Toshimichi Fujinawa BRERm
Shinji Tatsutani RAER
Yasuhiro Yamada LA
Katsunori Hiroi EH A
Xi Xiaotong B
Independent Non-executive Directors HUHPITEE
Masaru Takahashi Stz
Lynne Yukie Nakano REFSET
Toshiaki Sakai WHAE
Keiko Ito FREEET
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FATHE 2 E—THBERANFREE P ER
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ZEREESS

BTEFHEARRG ARG HE - S B
WITEFHEARRGI LR TR - HERRS LR
AT

Term of Service

P75 HARR

1/7/2023 - 30/6/2026
1/7/2021 - 30/6/2024
1/7/2023 - 30/6/2026
1/7/2021 - 30/6/2024
1/7/2023 - 30/6/2026
1/7/2023 - 30/6/2026

1/7/2021 - 30/6/2024
1/7/2023 - 30/6/2026
1/4/2023 - 30/6/2025
1/7/2023 - 30/6/2026



Their service agreements and letters of appointment are subject to
the termination in accordance with the respective terms and may
be renewed in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”) and applicable Listing Rules.
Pursuant to the Articles of Association, all directors are required to
retire from office by rotation at annual general meeting.

Pursuant to Article 107 of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the directors (including the managing
director) or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, the
number which is nearest to and is at least one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation. A retiring director shall be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Mr. Kiyotaka Ando, Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa and Mr.
Masaru Takahashi will retire by rotation and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles of Association, the directors
may appoint a person who is willing to act to be a director, either
to fill a vacancy or as an additional director, provided that the
appointment does not cause the number of directors to exceed any
number fixed as the maximum number of directors. A director so
appointed shall hold office only until the next annual general meeting
and shall then be eligible for re-election, but shall not be taken into
account in determining the directors who are to retire by rotation
at the meeting. All directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. Accordingly, Mr. Katsunori Hiroi, Mr. Xi
Xiaotong and Professor Keiko Ito, being new Directors appointed on
1 July 2023, shall hold office until the forthcoming annual general
meeting and being eligible, shall offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS' INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Upon appointment of director(s), each new director receives an
induction package covering business operations, policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other
relevant regulatory requirements.

The Directors, on an ongoing basis, will receive updates on the relevant
laws, rules and regulations. The Company encourages the Directors
to enrol in a wide range of professional development courses and
seminars relating to the Listing Rules, Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”), and corporate governance practices so that they can
continuously acquire their relevant knowledge and skills. Pursuant to
Code Provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, during the year, the Company
has organized a seminar conducted by qualified professionals and has
provided updates on the Group’s business, operations, and financial
information, as well as other information and briefings from time to
time to all Directors.
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The participation of each of the Directors in continuous professional

development (“CPD") during the year is summarized as follows:

REEFNAFEL2EFER
R Mgt T

¥R ([HEEXRE

Participated in CPD (Mote)

Directors o) SEARHEH IR ()
Executive Directors HITEE

Kiyotaka Ando ZEERE v
Toshimichi Fujinawa i3kt il 4
Shinji Tatsutani REER 4
Kazuo Kawasaka (resigned on 1 July 2023) JNBRFA (202347 A 1 BEHE) v
Yasuhiro Yamada L SR v/
Katsunori Hiroi (appointed on 1 July 2023) EHFR (120237 41 HEZFF) v
Xi Xiaotong (appointed on 1 July 2023) EEEY (1202347 51 H#EZ(F) v
Independent Non-executive Directors BN TEF

Sumio Matsumoto (resigned on 1 July 2023) NARAER (7 2023F7 5 1 HEHE) v
Masaru Takahashi IStk v/
Lynne Yukie Nakano FEETL v
Toshiaki Sakai WHAE v
Keiko Ito (appointed on 1 July 2023) FEERT (R2023%€7 7 1 HEZFF) v

Note: Attended a seminar arranged by the Company or read relevant materials.

DIRECTORS' AND OFFICERS” LIABILITIES

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken
against Directors and senior management arising out of corporate

activities. Such insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance

duties as set out below:

1.

develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance, including the board diversity
policy, mechanisms to ensure independent views of the
Board and shareholders communication policy, and make
recommendations;

2. review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under Appendix
C1 to the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Board has performed the above duties.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees (the “Board Committees”)
and has delegated various responsibilities to the committees including
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. The Board Committees perform their distinct roles
in accordance with their respective terms of reference which are
available to shareholders on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange respectively. The Board Committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek the independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A Nomination Committee has been established by the Board on 21
November 2017 with specific terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors, and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively.

The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director and two
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kiyotaka Ando, Mr.
Masaru Takahashi and Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano. Mr. Kiyotaka
Ando is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year, two Nomination Committee meetings were held
to (i) review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
have concluded that members of the Board have possessed the
expertise and independence to carry out the Board’s functions and
responsibilities, (i) assess the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors, (iii) review and consider the appointment of
new directors and make recommendation to the Board and (iv)
recommend, amongst its other duties, to the Board retiring Directors
standing for re-election at the annual general meeting.

The Board has adopted a nomination policy. The nomination of
candidate(s) is made in accordance with certain selection criteria:
(a) reputation for integrity; (b) accomplishment and experience; (c)
commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest; and
(d) diversity in all aspects including but not limited to professional
experiences, business perspectives, skills, knowledge, gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity and length of service,
in assessing and selecting proposed candidates for directorship.
The relevant procedures are set out in nomination policy for the
Nomination Committee to follow subject to provisions in the Articles
of Association and applicable Listing Rules. The Board recognizes
the need for appointment or re-election of directors, the following
nomination procedures should be followed:
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(@)  The Nomination Committee shall review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

(b)  The Nomination Committee shall identify individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships.

() The Nomination Committee shall assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors.

(d)  The Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or re-election of directors and
succession planning for directors.

(e)  Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as
an independent non-executive director at the general meeting,
the Nomination Committee should set out in the circular to
shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying the
notice of the relevant general meeting.

(f)  The Board shall have the final decision on all matters in respect
of the recommendation of candidates to stand for election or
reelection at any general meeting.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Remuneration Committee has been established by the Board on
21 November 2017 with specific terms of reference in compliance
with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code and the majority
of the members of the Remuneration Committee are Independent
Non-executive Directors. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee include making recommendations to the Board on the
policy and structure for all Directors’ remuneration, reviewing and
approving the management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively.

Each of the Directors will receive a fee which is subject to an annual
adjustment at a rate to be reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
and be determined at the discretion of the Board.

The Remuneration Committee comprises one Executive Director and
two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kiyotaka Ando,
Mr. Masaru Takahashi and Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano. Mr. Masaru
Takahashi is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
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During the year, two Remuneration Committee meetings were held to
review and make recommendations to the Board on the policy and the
remuneration packages of new directors and structure for directors’
and senior management'’s remuneration.

The Board has adopted a directors’ remuneration policy. It aims to set
out the Company’s policy in respect of remuneration paid to Executive
Directors and Non-executive Directors.

The directors’ remuneration policy sets out the remuneration structure
that allows the Company to attract, motivate and retain qualified
Directors who can manage and lead the Company in achieving its
strategic objective and contribute to the Company’s performance and
sustainable growth, and to provide Directors with a balanced and
competitive remuneration. Such policy will be reviewed and updated
from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.

The directors’ remuneration package is determined with reference to
a matrix of factors including the individual performance, qualification
and experience of Directors concerned and prevailing market practices.
No Directors or any of his/her associates is involved in deciding his/her
own remuneration.

Details of emoluments paid to each Director are set out in Note 12 to
the consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An Audit Committee has been established by the Board on 21
November 2017 with specific terms of reference in compliance
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee include the review and supervision
of the Group’s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems, review of the Group’s financial information,
overseeing the relationship with external auditor of the Company
(including but not limited to making recommendation to the Board
on appointment and/or removal of external auditor, approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of that external auditor,
reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards), and overseeing the corporate governance
and compliance matters. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange respectively.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Masaru Takahashi, Professor Lynne Yukie
Nakano and Professor Toshiaki Sakai. Mr. Masaru Takahashi is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.
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During the year, four Audit Committee meetings were held to review
the Group’s financial results including the annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2022 and the interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2023 before their submission to the Board and
monitored the integrity of such financial statements.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and considers
them to be effective and adequate.

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings,
committee meetings and annual general meeting during the year are
set out below:

FR - BERZECERTMNASH  BHEAEE
MBS - BIEEIZE2022F 12 A3 HIEFE
MEFEENEZE2023F6 A30RIE~EAZ
PHIEBERFIRRRTEES  UERZSUG
WERZTEM -

EnZBaNCAEENEREE M AEIEE
R BRIEETREN  XRBZFERTREN
BR -

EXEEREEEER
ERFRAFELEFFERH ZEREHR

BEREFRE 2 HEHNMT

Meetings attended/held
BHRE /B2 e%
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
- BEREZEE Iz Ee REZEE IR
Directors % eF ] o5 % BERE
Executive Directors HITEE
Kiyotaka Ando ZHEEE 6/6 - 2/2 22 11
Toshimichi Fujinawa BB 6/6 - - - 1/1
Shinji Tatsutani RABER 6/6 - - - 1/1
Kazuo Kawasaka' JBRANA 33 - - - 11
Yasuhiro Yamada EN 6/6 - - - 1”1
Katsunori Hiroi? EFH 7 A2 33 - - - -
Xi Xiaotong? 3 3/3 - - - -
Independent BUHHTEE
Non-executive Directors
Sumio Matsumoto® VAT 3/3 2/2 2/2 22 171
Masaru Takahashi Blidi 6/6 4/4 22 212 171
Lynne Yukie Nakano FEF =T 6/6 4/4 - - 171
Toshiaki Sakai BRI 6/6 212 - - i
Keiko Ito® PEEFS 33 - - - -
Notes: s -
1. Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka has resigned as Executive Director with effect from 1. JRMAESCERHEWMITES * B12023F7A1H
1 July 2023. FBAER o
2. Mr. Katsunori Hiroi has been appointed as Executive Director with effect 2. BHRRAIEEREZERHNITES - A2023F7 A
from 1 July 2023. 1 HEBAER o
3. Mr. Xi Xiaotong has been appointed as Executive Director with effect 3. EBEMAEEZERNITES - 202347 A1
from 1 July 2023. HBA o
4, Dr. Sumio Matsumoto has resigned as Independent Non-executive 4, A KIETBEBUIERNITES - H2023F7
Director with effect from 1 July 2023. A1 BEBER-
5. Professor Keiko Ito has been appointed as Independent Non-executive 5. FPHEETFHEREZTABIYIENITES » B2023

Director with effect from 1 July 2023.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board has entire responsibility to ensure the integrity of the
Group’s accounting, financial reporting and the effective systems of
risk management and internal control are in place.
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Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects in
annual report, interim report, inside information and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. In
addition, the Board, supporting by the finance functions of the Group,
is responsible for overseeing the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements which shall give a true and fair view of the
Group’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

The Directors ensure that all applicable accounting standards have
been followed to prepare the financial statements with appropriate
accounting policies, consistently applied and supported by reasonable
and prudent judgments and estimates and ensure the financial
statements in compliance with the requirements of the Companies
Ordinance and the Listing Rules.

The management has provided sufficient explanation and information
of the Group’s financial, operational performance as well as business
development and also with management accounts and monthly
updates to the Board to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the Group’'s performance, financial position and
Group'’s prospects to enable the Board and each Director to discharge
their duties. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Group recognises that the independence of an external auditor
is a fundamental governance principle. External auditor provides
the Board and shareholders an objective assurance on whether
the financial statements fairly represent the financial position and
performance of the Group in all material aspects.

The working scope and reporting responsibilities of the external
auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, are set out on pages 87 to 92 in
the Independent Auditor’s Report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Group has formulated and adopted the risk management policy in
providing direction in identifying, evaluating and managing significant
risks. The main features of the risk management processes comprise 5
core stages: (a) risk identification, (b) risk assessment and prioritisation,
() risk response, (d) risk monitoring and (e) risk reporting.

The appropriate risk mitigation plans are determined based on the
following risk responses:

- Acceptance: Risks are considered immaterial and acceptable
based on Group’s risk appetite, and therefore no action is
considered necessary.

PAHEER 3R
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REBZPHRR - PBRBERRERE °
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- Reduction: Risks cannot be considered immaterial, and actions
such as controls have to be taken to reduce the impact and
vulnerability to an acceptable level.

- Sharing: Risks cannot be considered immaterial, and the Group
itself cannot effectively reduce the risks to an acceptably low
level, therefore a portion of the risks has to be transferred to or
shared with other parties by insurance, outsourcing, etc.

- Avoidance: Risks are so significant that there is no measure,
both internally and externally, to reduce the risk to an
acceptable level or involve unreasonably high costs to reduce
the risk to an acceptable level. Therefore, activities giving rise to
risks should be avoided.

The Group has adopted the COSO ERM Framework, the “Top-Down”
approach, in establishing its risk management framework, which
consists of the Board, the Audit Committee, the Risk Management
Taskforce and various departments within the Group.

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. The
Board determines the nature and extent of risks that shall be taken in
achieving the Group’s business objectives. The Board has the overall
responsibility for monitoring the design, implementation and the
overall effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems.

The role of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in overseeing
financial reporting, risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and conduct independent annual reviews on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.

The Risk Management Taskforce, which consists of key management
staff, is to assist the Board and the Audit Committee in overseeing
the risk management and internal control systems and ensures that
sufficient resources are allocated to maintain the adequacy and
effectiveness of such systems within the Group in order to reduce the
risks or potential risks to acceptable levels when achieving the Group’s
objectives.

Each department is responsible for identifying, assessing and
managing risks within its operation, ensuring that appropriate
internal controls for effective risk management are implemented
and any significant internal control deficiency is reported to the Risk
Management Taskforce timely for prompt mitigation action.

At least on an annual basis, the Risk Management Taskforce identifies
risks including environmental, social and governance (“ESG") risks
that would adversely affect the achievement of the Group’s objectives.
The identified risks are then assessed and prioritised according to
a set of standard criteria. For significant risks, mitigation plans are
designed and managed by corresponding risk owners. The report on
risk management and internal control is submitted to the Board and
the Audit Committee annually.
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In addition, internal audit department (“IAD") assists the Board
and the Audit Committee in evaluating the internal controls and
management procedures of the Group. For any deficiencies in the
design and implementation of internal controls, recommendations
for improvement will be made to the management. Significant
deficiencies are reported to the Board and the Audit Committee
on a timely basis ensuring remedial actions are taken promptly.
The IAD submits an annual report with a summary of findings and
recommendations to the Board and the Audit Committee.

Business Ethics

The Group upholds its values of integrity and fosters trust with our
business partners and stakeholders by maintaining good corporate
governance. When it comes to any part of the Group’s operations,
the Company has zero tolerance approach for all kind of bribery,
fraud, and corruption. On top of complying with relevant laws and
regulations, the Group has Code of Conduct and policies for all
employees to carry out their responsibilities honestly and ethically.
Nissin Foods maintains good governance in all facets of its operations,
upholding high standards of ethics, accountability, openness, probity,
and transparency.

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to preventing, detecting, and reporting to
any levels of bribery and corruption. The Board has adopted an anti-
corruption policy of the Company (the “Anti-corruption Policy”) to
provide principles for all directors, officers, and employees at all levels
of the Company, its subsidiaries, and joint ventures or companies in
which the Company holds a controlling interest to follow in order
to conduct business honestly and lower the likelihood of corruption
and bribery. The Group conducts periodic and systematic fraud
risk assessments to mitigate fraud risks identified internally and
externally. The Anti-corruption Policy further stipulates that offering
and accepting of any gift are strictly prohibited since it will affect
employee’s neutrality when conducting business, act against the
interest of Nissin Foods, or raise suspicions of impropriety. Proper
trainings and briefings on bribery, corruption, conflicts of interest,
money laundering, financing of terrorism and non-compliance with
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance will be provided to all employees.

All potential frauds will be investigated by IAD. Relevant advice from
in-house or external legal counsel will be obtained where appropriate.
IAD will report material breaches of this policy to the Board at least
annually. The details to be reported include all material fraud and any
fraud committed by employees which could impact the integrity and
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls system, the number
of fraud cases reported, the nature of important investigations and
the results of these investigations. The Board will be responsible for
monitoring the fraud ultimately.
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Whistleblowing

The Board has adopted a whistleblowing policy of the Company (the
“Whistleblowing Policy”) to provide guidance on the procedure of
reporting allegations of fraud and misconduct by directors, officers
and employees at all levels of the Company and its subsidiaries and
stakeholders. All whistleblowing reports and the identity of the
whistleblower are treated in strict confidence with the procedures
set out in the Whistleblowing Policy. The matter raised may be
investigated internally and referred to the Audit Committee or
management committee, or referred to external lawyers or auditors.

Once the investigation is completed, a report including the impact
of the matter reported and an action plan will be prepared by the
Group’s Compliance Committee. The responsible line management
will decide on any necessary disciplinary and other actions, after that,
the Compliance Committee will review and make a recommendation
to the management for a final decision on the actions required. The
whistleblowers will be informed the final results of the investigation in
writing.

Review of the Effectiveness of Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

During the year, the Board performed an annual review on the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems of
the Group based on the requirement of Code Provision D.2 of the
CG Code. The coverage of the review includes but not limited to the
Group’s ability to cope with its business transformation and changing
external environment; the scope and quality of management’s review
on risk management and internal control systems; the result of
internal audit work with consideration and management responses
on major findings; the extent and frequency of communication
with the Board regarding the result of the risk and internal control
review; significant failures or weaknesses identified and their related
implications; and the status of compliance with the Listing Rules. The
Board considered the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group are effective and adequate in all material respects.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminating the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. External independent
professional consultants will be engaged if the Board considers it
necessary.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company has in place a formal policy on engaging non-audit
services from its independent auditor to ensure that the independence
and objectivity of the external auditor would not be impaired by its
provision of any non-audit services to the Group.

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was set out as follows:

ZE N =

ARRIEHIEENRE - RIEF L AZBENRHIE
BRRE  WRERINEZBEM TSR/ ARERE
HEMER RS MIEE LB R Z I -

REBER - BN EAEE « BERS G160
TZBE#FT

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered PR AR 75 B TR E R
HK$'000

FETT

Audit services ZERTE 4,427
Non-audit services FERZBR TS 2,990
Total 4aEr 7,417

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Board has implemented procedures and internal control for
handling and dissemination of inside information. The Company has in
place the inside information policy which sets out the guidelines and
procedures for directors and certain employees who, because of their
office or position in the Company may from time to time encounter
inside information (as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")), to ensure that
they understand the principles underlying the obligations in order to
comply with the disclosure requirements so that inside information is
handled with prudence and disseminated to the public in equal and
timely manner. The Group discloses inside information to the public
as soon as reasonably practicable unless the information falls within
any of the safe harbours as provided in the SFO. The Group ensures
the information is kept strictly confidential before the information
is disclosed to the public. If the Group believes that the necessary
degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality
may have been breached, the Group will immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Group is committed to ensuring that
information contained in announcements is not false or misleading,
or false or misleading through omission of a material fact with a view
of presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company’s secretarial functions are outsourced to external
services provider. Mr. Lo Tai On (“Mr. Lo") was appointed as the
Company Secretary in March 2016. Mr. Lo is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, with over 30 years
of experience in the field of company secretarial services. According
to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Lo has taken no less than 15
hours of the relevant professional training during the year ended
31 December 2023.
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Mr. Takeshi Shigemi, director of Nissin Foods (H.K.) Management
Company Limited, who is responsible for overseeing and managing
overall business planning, public relations and administration and
compliance matters of the Company, is the primary contact person of
the Company with Mr. Lo.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established shareholders’ communication policy to
ensure shareholders and the investment community to have equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information and allow
shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner.

Information will be communicated to shareholders mainly through
the Company’s financial reports, annual general meeting and other
general meetings as well as the published disclosures submitted to the
Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s official websites.

The Board and management maintain a continuing dialogue with
the shareholders and other stakeholders through various channels
including but not limited to the Company’s general meetings. The
Company encourages shareholders to attend general meeting which
provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange views with the
Board. During the year, an annual general meeting of the Company
was held to pass resolutions which are significant to the operations
and business of the Company.

To facilitate more timely and effective communication, the Company
has revamped its corporate website (www.nissingroup.com.hk) where
information and updates on the Company’s business developments
and operations, financial information, corporate governance practices,
sustainability, and other information are available for public access.

The implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders’
communication policy was reviewed by the Board during the year.
The Board considered the current channels would be sufficient for the
Company to communicate with the shareholders. Thus, the policy was
considered as effective.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 55 of the Articles of Association, the Directors may,
whenever they think fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting,
and extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on such
requisition, or in default, may be convened by such requisitionists,
as provided by the Companies Ordinance. If at any time there are
not within Hong Kong sufficient Directors capable of acting to
form a quorum, any Director or any two or more members of the
Company representing at least 10.0% of the total voting rights of all
members having a right to vote at general meetings, may convene
an extraordinary general meeting in the same manner as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the Directors.
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Pursuant to Section 567 of the Companies Ordinance, the directors
must call a meeting within 21 days after the date on which they
become subject to the requirement under Section 566 of the
Companies Ordinance and such meeting must be held on a date not
more than 28 days after the date of the notice convening the general
meeting.

Putting forward Proposals at a General Meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, shareholders representing not
less than one-fortieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders;
or not less than 50 shareholders holding shares in the Company may
make requisition in writing for proposing resolution or business to be
dealt with at the next general meeting. Shareholders should follow the
requirements and procedures as set out in the Companies Ordinance
for putting forward a proposal at a general meeting.

Voting by Poll
Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll.

Sending Enquiries to the Board by Shareholders
Shareholders are welcome to send their enquiries and concern to the
Board at the Company’s headquarters at 11-13 Dai Shun Street, Tai Po
Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND CORPORATE COMMUNICATION

The management of the Company is committed to meeting with
shareholders, institutional investors, research analysts and financial
media regularly and providing timely updates on the financial and
business performance and recent development. Investors are welcome
to direct their enquiries to the Company’s Investor Relations Department
at ir@nissinfoods.com.hk. A dedicated Investor Relations section is
also available on the Company’s website (www.nissingroup.com.hk).
Information on the website is updated on a regular basis.

Investors and analysts briefings and one-on-one meetings, telephone
conferences, roadshows, media interviews, marketing activities for
investors and specialist industry forums will be conducted from time
to time in order to facilitate communication between the Company,
shareholders and the investment community. In 2023, the Company
conducted more than 100 meetings (2022: 91 meetings) with over
260 institutional investors (2022: 211 institutional investors) and
research analysts in Hong Kong and elsewhere. During the year, the
Company was covered by 6 investment banks and securities firms
(2022: 8 investment banks and securities firms) to encourage mutual
communication with the investment community.
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Major Investor Relations Events in Financial Year 2023
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2023 Event Organiser Location

2023 TEE 2iE o B
Post Result NDR Guoyuan Hong Kong
FERKE BT &5
Post Result NDR First Shanghai Hong Kong
RERER £— 18 B
CGS-CIMB 2nd Consumer Virtual Conference 2023 CGS-CIMB Hong Kong
CGS-CIMB 2nd Consumer Virtual Conference 2023 HBn — BEES B

Q4 NDR Mizuho Hong Kong

EuES HERFIIR i o

Shareholders are also encouraged to access the corporate AABNEERREEEZHA ARG Bz ¥
communication posted on the Company’s website for better A BRERATEBRAQT -
understanding of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT HBEREH
The Company has published the Articles of Association on the respective RARBREBR T RAR T A HHEAMER
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. During the year, A o FR - AR AEBER T ELS) -

there was no change in the Company’s constitutional document.
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The Directors present this annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and sales of
instant noodles and is the vehicle holding interest of its subsidiaries,
whereas the Group is engaged in manufacturing and sales of
noodles, retort foods, frozen foods, beverage products and snacks,
vegetable products, and provision of publicity services in Hong Kong
and China. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group's principal activities during the year ended 31 December 2023.
Analysis of the principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out in Note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 93 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to the
shareholders to be its goal and endeavours to maintain a dividend
policy to achieve such a goal.

The Board has adopted a dividend policy with effect from 1 January
2019, which provides the guiding principles and procedures for
making decisions on dividend payment. In deciding whether to
propose dividends, and in determining the dividend amount, the
Board shall take into account, inter alia: (i) the Group’s unappropriated
profits/ earnings and the impact on the Group’s long-term earning
capacity; (ii) the Group’s results of operations, earnings performance,
cashflows, financial condition, future prospects, statutory and
regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends; and (iii) any other
factors that the Board considers relevant.

The payment of dividend by the Company is also subject to any
restrictions under the Articles of Association. The dividend policy will
be reviewed periodically and when necessary in light of changes in
circumstances and regulatory requirements. There is no assurance that
a dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific periods.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of 15.82 HK
cents per share in cash to the shareholders for the year ended 31
December 2023, which will not be subject to any withholding tax in
Hong Kong. The proposed final dividend is subject to the approval
of the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to
be held on 5 June 2024. Upon approval, the proposed final dividend
will be distributed on 27 June 2024 to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 17 June 2024.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Detailed business review of the Group during the year as required
by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, including indication of
likely future developments in the Group’s business and analysis of the
Group's performance using financial key performance indicators are
set out in the sections headed Chairman’s Statement, Management
Discussion and Analysis and Five-year Financial Summary of this
annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of risks and uncertainties faced by the Group may affect its
performance, business operations or future prospects. Some of these
are inherent to the specific circumstances of the Group, and some are
from external threats or challenges. Significant risks are summarised
below.

(i) Food Safety Risk

The Group’s success depends on its branding and reputation and
consumers’ recognition and trust in its products. Food safety is the
Group’s lifeblood. Food safety incidents may damage its reputation
and cause a loss of consumers’ trust in its products. The profitability
of the Group may be impacted as a result.

As a food manufacturer, the Group places high emphasis on food
safety and quality management to ensure the health and safety of
consumers. Therefore, the food production plants of the Group are
all certified under ISO 22000 (an international standard for quality
management systems), FSSC 22000 (an international standard
that incorporates food defence approaches) reflecting the Group's
commitment to a high standard of food safety, and HACCP system
(except Nissin Vietnam) to identify hazardous substances and reduce
risk on production. These certifications also ensure the production of
safe and high-quality food products.

The Group has also applied rigorous analysis and inspections on raw
materials and products. Food Safety Institute located in Shanghai,
Mainland China, in which the Group owns a 5% stake, provides
technical support to the Group to perform quality inspections in each
stage of production, from raw materials to final products. The Food
Safety Institute is accredited by the China National Accreditation
Service for Conformity Assessment (“CNAS”) with ISO/IEC 17025.
This shows that the Food Safety Institute’s operating system and
testing capabilities are nationally recognised. To further demonstrate
the professionalism of the Food Safety Institute, it has obtained a
certificate from the China Inspection Body and Laboratory Mandatory
Approval (“CMA"). The CMA Certification proves that the Food Safety
Institute has been recognised by the State.

(i) Labour Supply Risk

Due to keen competition in the labour markets in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, the ability to retain experienced and competent
production workers is one of the critical success factors for the Group.
Control over the turnover rate will minimise training and recruitment
costs and reduce the impact on business expansion plans.
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Employees are the most valuable assets of the Group. As part of the
measures to mitigate the labour supply risk, the Group will continue
to enhance production automation to improve efficiencies and reduce
reliance on manual labour, as well as continue to improve working
conditions and launch engagement programs to increase employee
loyalty.

(iii) Supply Chain Management Risk
On top of the challenges on the supply chain due to the climate,
geopolitical and macroeconomic issues have created supply issues,
resulting in a sharp increase in commodity prices. These issues posed
further challenges to the Group’s operations.

The Group has been making the greatest efforts to maintain a stable
supply of our products to customers through multiple mitigation
measures.

(iv) Understanding Consumer Needs Risk
Consumers’ needs are ever changing and it is important to understand
the trend.

The Group’s success partly depends on its ability to anticipate, identify
and react to changes in consumers’ tastes, preferences, perceptions,
income, lifestyle and health awareness and promptly offer new
products that appeal to the consumers.

The Group continues to strengthen its communication with consumers
through multi-faceted marketing strategies in order to respond
to their demands, as well as to enhance its brand recognition and
awareness among various customer segments.

(v) Legal and Regulatory Compliance

Given the ever-changing global social and economic environment,
there might be a greater likelihood for the Group to face challenging
changes in governmental policies/regulatory requirements in the
normal course of business.

Environmental Protection related regulations and laws

As different environmental protection related regulations and laws
have been/will be effective, the Group continues to communicate with
government authorities and adjust the Group’s practices to ensure
regulations compliance.

Trade (and Tariff) Policies

The increasing uncertainty over the political environment and
evolving changes in trade policies may limit the Group’s operational
effectiveness. By engaging external counsels to provide regular
updates, legal guidance and regular staff training, the Group will
continue to ensure all Group practices comply with relevant laws and
regulations.
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(vi) Increase in awareness of ESG and Climate Risk

There has been a growing concern about ESG issues and their
disclosure from stakeholders. In addition, with the increasing climate-
related problems, identifying and mitigating significant climate issues
are becoming more crucial for business operations. The Group will
continue to review ESG issues and monitor climate change to reduce
risks and seek opportunities.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

Relationship with Customers and Consumers

Establishing and maintaining strong and stable business relationships
with customers and consumers is a top priority for the Group. It
achieves this through its unwavering commitment to providing safe,
delicious, unique and trendy products. Moreover, the Group continues
to develop and launch new products to fulfil the demands of different
types of consumers. It also stays connected with customers and
consumers through marketing tools like the Company’s website,
promotions, marketing materials and incentives, and social media to
keep abreast of the changing consumer preferences.

Relationship with Distributors

The Group has developed a strong distribution network, enabling
it to maintain a leading position in the market. To maintain a long-
term and stable business relationship with its distributors, the Group
enters into distribution agreements with its major distributors. The
distributors place purchase orders from time to time that typically set
out the types, prices and quantities of products purchased.

Relationship with Suppliers

Most of the raw materials purchased by the Group are sourced from
independent third-party suppliers, both domestically and overseas. To
avoid relying too heavily on any one supplier, the Group uses different
suppliers for each type of raw material for its operations in Hong
Kong, Mainland China and Vietnam. Meanwhile, the Group obtains
certain raw materials, such as a soup base, seasoning and condiments
from Nissin Japan, with the belief that they have better quality control
and that some of the raw materials are unique. The Group also
carefully selects its suppliers by evaluating their overall track record,
financial strengths, reliability, competitiveness, supply stability, quality
control measures, pricing and logistics arrangements to meet our
Group’s policies and standards. It also closely communicates with
and monitors its suppliers and requires them to provide food safety
certificates for their supply of raw materials.

Relationship with Employees

Employees are one of the greatest assets of the Group. As at 31
December 2023, the Group has a total of 3,409 employees in
Hong Kong, Mainland China and Vietnam. For sustainable business
development, the Group spares no effort in recruiting talented
professionals. It also provides employees with continuing education
and internal and external training programmes to employees to
improve their skills and develop their potential. The Group believes
that the working environment and the support and benefits provided
to the employees have contributed to maintaining good working
relationships.
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In Hong Kong, the Group provides mandatory provident fund
entitlements to its employees. For its companies located in Mainland
China, the Group contributes funds to a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan organised by relevant government authorities
on a monthly basis, based on a certain percentage of employees’
salaries. In Vietnam, the Group joins in the social insurance program
provided by the government for the local employees.

SIGNIFICANT TREASURY INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group held unlisted structured
notes in an aggregate fair value of US$27.6 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$215.7 million) (“Structured Notes”) issued by a
financial institution in Hong Kong. The Structured Notes are interest-
rate linked instrument with enhanced interest rates which accrues
interest based on accrual interest rate, and can be extended and rolled
over on a monthly basis unless the Group exercises the right to redeem
the Structured Notes on maturity date. The Structured Notes carried
interest ranging from 4.9% to 5.9% per annum during the year (2022:
ranging from 1.05% to 4.32%), and represented approximately
4.5% of the total assets of the Group as at 31 December 2023. The
purchases of the Structured Notes were funded by internal resources
of the Group as a cash management tool in order to utilise surplus
fund to generate income and were conducted in accordance with
the Company’s established treasury policy to enhance returns for its
shareholders.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no significant investments of
individual fair value of 5% or above of the Group’s total assets during
the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s sales to its five
largest customers accounted for 52.6% (2022 restated: 58.7%) of the
Group's total revenue and the largest customer accounted for 18.4%
(2022 restated: 20.2%) of the Group’s total revenue. The Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for 22.6% (2022 restated: 24.3%) of the
Group's total purchases and the largest supplier accounted for 7.6%
(2022 restated: 8.4%) of the Group's total purchases.

None of the Directors, their respective associates, or any of the
existing shareholders who, to the best knowledge of the Directors
owned 5.0% or more of the issued share capital of the Company, has
a beneficial interest in any of the five largest suppliers or customers of
the Group.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A

AEEATBNE TRERFIEARES MR - &
SEURFEAMNAREAGRBEETITEN
—E L Pl FERE BUR # B AR A — TR IR S 5 &
B - R AEBENABRFAZHES
Rt RAT Sl -

EXEHHRE

M2023F 12 A31 8  AEEBEREH—EEES
BB T L MAAREZRANTEA27.6
AEET (HAERQ215.7HE8ET) ([HEBL
R ABUEERATRENTA  AFR
SR IZEAFREEFE - BRIEAEBMNE
HBRTEERABEZEORTR - TRIEZA
ERIEE - RFAN - BEEEBEOFRENT
49%%E59%(2022F : NMF1.05%E4.32%) -
AR EBN2023FE12A3NBNEERLEYN
45% o BASBHEZHRIUAEBABERIELSR
SEETE  LBARBRESELRA  TRE
AR B REE A BUR AR B AN B R o

B EFTRE - RER - AKENEEMER R
FEBBAEBEERES%RIALNERRE

TERPRMES

HZE2023F12A31HLEFE  AEERERK
R ZHEER N AEBELRUA52.6% (2022 F4&
B5]:58.7%) r MERAZFE ZIHEBEARER
BUTA18.4% (2022 F L EFI - 202%) » KN&E
B R AHEEE RS EBRETE226%(20224F
KEET]  24.3%) + MERAMERLASEE BEKE
EH7.6% (2022 F4EEY| - 8.4%) ©

BMEESR FESAZBBARRESINEANT
MEEARNRT B EBITIRAS.0% A EZBERK
BERASETAAANEERNRFT AR HEERE

)
ZS o
I



PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment at
a cost of HK$246.0 million, and property, plant and equipment with
carrying values of HK$110.0 million were disposed.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefit schemes are set out in Note
34 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities for the year ended 31
December 2023.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s distributable reserve at 31 December 2023 amounted
to approximately HK$744.1 million (2022: HK$528.6 million) which
represented retained profits of the Company as at that date.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kiyotaka Ando

Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa

Mr. Shinji Tatsutani

Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka (resigned on 1 July 2023)
Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada

Mr. Katsunori Hiroi (appointed on 1 July 2023)
Mr. Xi Xiaotong (appointed on 1 July 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto (resigned on 1 July 2023)
Mr. Masaru Takahashi

Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano

Professor Toshiaki Sakai

Professor Keiko Ito (appointed on 1 July 2023)

Pursuant to Article 107 of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the directors (including the managing
director) or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, the
number which is nearest to and is at least one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation at the annual general meeting. A retiring director
shall be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Kiyotaka Ando, Mr.
Toshimichi Fujinawa and Mr. Masaru Takahashi will retire from office
as Directors by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a vacancy or as an addition to the Board
shall hold office only until the forthcoming annual general meeting
and shall then be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Katsunori
Hiroi, Mr. Xi Xiaotong and Professor Keiko Ito, being new Directors
appointed on 1 July 2023, shall hold office until the forthcoming
annual general meeting and being eligible, shall offer themselves for
re-election.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, Independent Non-executive
Directors were appointed for specific term. All Directors are also
subject to the retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles
of Association. None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of the associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a)
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any
interest or short positions which were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or (b) were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein, or (c)
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Long position in shares

RRGBzHAE

Directors

5=

Kiyotaka Ando
LHEBRE

Toshimichi Fujinawa
REARAE

Shinji Tatsutani
RAER

Kazuo Kawasaka*

ISR A 4

Yasuhiro Yamada
NN

Xi Xiaotong®
EL A

Toshiaki Sakai
RHFE

Capacity/Nature
51,/ ME

Beneficial owner

EmEa A

Interest of spouse

[T

Beneficial owner

EmEa A

Beneficial owner

EmEa A

Beneficial owner

EmEa A

Beneficial owner

EmEE A

Beneficial owner

EmEa A

Beneficial owner
EmnEAA

EERERITHAEBRESTLZ
FE &=

2023412 A31H EERAREESTERA
BRARRIRETMIEEEE (TEREHLBE
EGBIEXVER) 2G5 - FEREIRD R ERE
BQQEREZEFLHAERIEXVEET7 RS
HAGARRRBRMzERZRAR (BIERE
BERAEKRIIZEG W EERABEE 2T
RERSAR) » 3 (b) BIRIEESH R BAEEHIE
352 IE R AZIGFT e & el 2 RS AR » (o)
RBIZ ST RIZB NG ANR A KB FT 2 ek A
BT

Number of shares Percentage
held/interested of interest
Fis /PR 80 B ERAL
18,859,480' 1.81%
917,5703 0.09%
1,101,000? 0.10%
95,8403 0.01%
87,270° 0.01%
59,9803 0.01%
32,050° 0.00%
5,220 0.00%
25,000 0.00%
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Long position in shares of associated corporation

=N

namely BB RmIEE B FKE, as a nominee of the respective Director.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A

REESEBRD 2=
Directors Associated corporation  Capacity/Nature
5= ik ZNE] H1n,/ 8
Kiyotaka Ando Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
LB HEBAR BEmlBA
Toshimichi Fujinawa Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
REABAIA HEBAR EREAA
Shinji Tatsutani Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
RAEER HEBAR BEmlBA
Kazuo Kawasaka* Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
JISRFN A HEBAR E=REAA
Yasuhiro Yamada Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
)R HEBAR BEmlBA
Katsunori Hiroi® Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
s Ehg=F:N BEEEAA
Xi Xiaotong® Nissin Japan Beneficial owner
e HEBAR EnlEBA
Notes: ik -
1. These shares are held by Mr. Kiyotaka Ando directly in his personal 1.
name.
Mrs. Aina Ando is the spouse of Mr. Kiyotaka Ando. By virtue of the 2.
SFO, Mr. Kiyotaka Ando is deemed to be interested in all the shares in
which Mrs. Aina Ando is interested or deemed to be interested under
the SFO.
These shares are the shares granted by the Company pursuant to the 3.
Share Award Scheme as set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.
Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka has resigned as Executive Director with effect from 4.
1 July 2023.
Mr. Katsunori Hiroi has been appointed as Executive Director with effect 5.
from 1 July 2023.
Mr. Xi Xiaotong has been appointed as Executive Director with effect 6.
from 1 July 2023.
Among 10,030 shares of Nissin Japan held by Mr. Kiyotaka Ando, 7.
10,000 shares were held directly by him and 30 shares were held by a
director share ownership association, namely Ei&E R M&BHKE, as a
nominee of Mr. Kiyotaka Ando.
These shares were held by an employee share ownership association, 8.

Number of shares Percentage
held/interested of interest

PiT¥s /PR B B BEBEDH
10,0307 0.01%

1,325% 0.00%

1,9248 0.00%

4,200 0.00%

8058 0.00%

3,5828 0.00%

1958 0.00%

ZEBRDBLZHEBEEENEBEALGREEER
5o

Aina Ando %z & /% % B8 & 5 £ BB o IRIE
FEHFRAEED - REBERERRRBK Ana
AndoZx LA Rz LR IERE F R E KPR
REEEENMERND P HEEER -

ZERD RAA BRIEERA M IR M T 32 P
B fn S2EDET B K 2 Bt -

JIIRMAE S EFHERITES - B2023F7 A 18
HBARR o

BHTAIEEERTANTES - H2023F7 A
1BRBERK -

EBRPEEREZERNITES  H2023F7 A1
HARAR -

RZEEER & A48 210,030 B/ B ARG
#10,000 R R AR EHEFE - 30RAR B
EERRBEABFRLREFGRE (EATHE
BEREZREBAN) FE -

ZERGOBETHRHEHERMAUEEFRE

(ERBEFZRBAN) A °



SHARE AWARD SCHEME

Purpose

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme” or the “Scheme"”)
was adopted by the Company on 7 March 2016 (the “Adoption
Date”) and amended on 26 March 2024. The purpose of the Share
Award Scheme is to recognise the contribution of certain selected
employees (including but not limited to directors, executives, officers
and other employees, whether full-time or part-time, of any members
of our Group) and to provide the employees with incentives in order
to retain them for the continual operation and development of the
Group.

Eligible participants

Participants include any employee, including without limitation,
the director (including former director), executive, officer and other
employees, whether full-time or part-time, of any member of the
Group from time to time.

Term

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board
pursuant to the Scheme Rules, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid
and effective from the Adoption Date for a term of 10 years. The
remaining life of Scheme is approximately 1 year and 11 months as at
the date of this annual report.

Grant and acceptance

Subject to the terms of the Scheme and the Listing Rules, the Board
may, from time to time, grant awards to any eligible participant who
the Board considers to have contributed or will contribute to the
Group.

To satisfy the awards, the Company may transfer to the trustee the
necessary funds and instruct the trustee to acquire shares through on-
market transactions at the prevailing market price.

Vesting

The awarded shares and related income shall be vested in the selected
employee at no cost to such selected employee on the vesting date
subject to the terms of the Scheme and the following conditions:

(@) fulfilment of such vesting conditions (if any) as specified by the
Board in the offer letter issued by the Company to the selected
employee up to the reasonable satisfaction of the Board;

(b)  the selected employee remaining under the employment of
any member of the Group up to and including the vesting date
and no notice of termination of employment of such selected
employee is subsisting as at such date; and

() the execution by the selected employee of the relevant
documents to effect the transfer of the awarded shares and the
related income from the trustee to the selected employee within
the stipulated period.

Bz 1 22 B =1 &l

am

ARATN2016E3 878 ([HRMAE]) A
1%@d§ﬂﬁ&@ﬁmﬁ§HiFa%%H'ﬁ
J‘5A2024¢3H 26 HEYERT - fxfh SBE)EHEI/ B

MRRAA RO KETERE (BRETNRRAEE
&T"JEXE BINES THAER SABENE

fEE (2RI FRE)) AR YAEERT
®E) > NWBERSRASENHELENERY
# o

AERSHEE

SLEERFEEE  BREIRRAEEER
RERARTKMNES (BFEMES) - 1TTHAR -
SABBLEMER (ZRERE) -

HABR

MIEZEZEFSRIBEZAT AR AR A MIRATR L
FrBR - B 2@ st 2R B HiRR ST 10 F IR A
MBRER - BEAFHRAH  ZT8WRBRFR
KE1VFINEAR -

R RES
BIERZETEINGR R ETRAIRR - E5E
AR RERRE R RAEEEH TR Z EA
BERSEERNER -

REZBRE  ARFEAXFEASBEMTES

YURREAAREFNEEBSLARXZWER
{/‘\o
BB

RIBZET A R A T 51 - 22BN AR 1D AR

LlﬁU\FEb”\EmJ*HHHLATWKEBJ*EAEF@”« LE R

(a) ‘%W$“ﬂﬁﬂkiﬁfﬁ?‘ﬁd%%%@&lqﬂ
EEgRENEAEEBRGN (WAR) A%
ExgaEmE

b)) KETEEBZHEBHEH (BEEH) —H
RENRAEEEFAKERR  BZBLE
MHREEEREMBRBN &

(0 KETEEBZZJMEXM  EREVHR
MR EER D RAERABZETEABEER

BIEESR
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Maximum number of shares to be awarded

The Board shall not make any further award in any given financial year
which will result in the total number of the awarded shares awarded
and approved by the Board, without taking into account the awarded
shares that are rejected by a selected employee or which have lapsed,
under the Scheme, to be in excess of 5% of the number of all issued
shares of the Company as at the Adoption Date or Listing Date or
the beginning of such financial year of the Company, whichever is
the highest. As at the date of this report, the total number of shares
available for issue in respect of awards which may be granted under
the Scheme is zero.

The maximum number of shares which may be awarded to a selected
employee under the Scheme shall not exceed 1% per cent of the
number of all issued shares of the Company as at the Adoption Date
or Listing Date or the beginning of the financial year of the Company,
whichever is the highest, when the relevant award is made.

Amount payable on acceptance of the award
Nil consideration is required to be paid by the eligible participants for
the grant of awards under the Share Award Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, a total of 266,420 shares,
representing 0.026% of the Company’s total number of issued shares
as at 1 January 2023, were awarded to selected employees (including
the Executive Directors) pursuant to the Share Award Scheme.

Details of movement of shares awarded during the year are as follows:

AR RO BE LR

fif 2 =g MEAIHEE M R F R — PR R
B - MG EHMEE SN %A 8ITR TR L it/ER
RER B (T RZTEETREEREEE
ERNOZBRMNIERBHERBERD) BBAR
BIERAN A Bk BT A IS AR R Rl R IR E A HA
ZEHEBITRM Z5% CARSERE) - AIT
/R - RARE A REZABTRE 28
B A BT ZRDEBST -

REBEZE AR —REETRE ZBNES BN
2B N RER L NSRBI R B sk
mHMR AR R RFEEH2 M BTN
(A= ERE) 21% °

B RBASZIHRIE
AEBDEEEZTRRMO RS E TR LA
B ASRAE -
RELE2023F 12 A31 BIEFE - IREBERD EE
FTE] - A 3£266,420 8% (FHEREZ=2023F
1ATEHARREBITRMEE Z0.026%) B
FRIETFRE (BIERTES) -

FARDBROHESFBOT

Number of awarded shares

RERHEE
Vesting QOutstanding as at Granted during Vested during ~ Cancelled/lapsed ~ Outstanding as at
Grantees Date of grant date 1Jan 2023 the year the year during the year 31 Dec 2023
M2023% M 2023F
1A1H 124318
EEA bufs] 5EH HATTHE ENEH FREE  FREE/RN HATE
Executive Directors
HiTEE
Kiyotaka Ando 6/4/2023 6/4/2023 - 71,400 (71,400) - -
vHiEk 29/9/2023 29/9/2023 - 129,790 (129,790) - -
Toshimichi Fujinawa 6/4/2023 6/4/2023 - 8,560 (8,560) -
BENE 29/9/2023 29/9/2023 - 14,160 (14,160) - -
Shinji Tatsutani 6/4/2023 6/4/2023 - 6,270 (6,270) -
RAER 29/9/2023 29/9/2023 - 10,370 (10,370) - -
Kazuo Kawasaka 6/4/2023 6/4/2023 - 6,270 (6,270) -
llpeina - - -
Yasuhiro Yamada 6/4/2023 6/4/2023 - 7,380 (7,380) -
WIBA 29/9/2023 29/9/2023 - 12,220 (12,220) - -
Total &4t 266,420 (266,420) -

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | HE
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Notes:

Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka has resigned as Executive Director with effect from
1 July 2023.

The closing price of the shares immediately before the date the award
shares were granted on 6 April 2023 and 29 September 2023 was
HK$6.78 per Share and HK$6.0 per Share respectively.

The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the
vesting date was HK$6.78 per Share and HK$6.0 per Share respectively.

The award shares were awarded and vested to grantees at no
consideration and without any performance target.

The estimated fair values of the award shares granted on 6 April
2023 and 29 September 2023 are approximately HK$684,000 and
HK$999,000 respectively. The fair value of the award Shares granted is
measured with reference to the closing price of the shares at the grant
date.

The accounting standard and policy adopted in relation to share-based
payments are as follows:

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of equity-settled share-based payments determined at
the grant date without taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share award reserve). At
the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of
all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share award reserve. For the share awards that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share awards
granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When shares awards are vested, the amount previously recognised in
share award reserve and the amount accumulated in shares held for
share award scheme will be transferred to retained profits.

In respect of the Share Award Scheme, the number of share awards
available for grant under the Scheme was 52,281,544 Shares as at 1
January 2023 and 52,015,124 Shares as at 31 December 2023.

The number of shares that may be issued in respect of award shares
granted under the Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2023
divided by the weighted average number of the Shares in issue for the
year ended 31 December 2023 is nil as the award shares are satisfied by
on-market purchase of existing shares.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any

other

body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None

of the Directors and their respective associates (as defined in the

Listing Rules) have any competing interests directly or indirectly with
the business of the Group which require to be disclosed as defined in
the Listing Rules during the year.

GEE

a. JNIRF AL A B ENITES © 5202367 A1
B4R °

b. SR EERYD BRI R EMRG K 2023F4 A6
AX2023F9A29 BN MES R AER6.78
BTk ER6.0%8TT

c EEHEHBNRONIETFHETED AT
Be6.78 BT B/ 6.08TT

d. BEPHEATRER T REBNARA - BX
EEEUERE -

e. BHAERRRD 2 B AFER2023F4 A6 H
%2023 9 A29 H iU E 5 B4 A684,000
7570 % 999,000 7T  E LRI SEEIIR D 2 ATFE
TS 2ER T BEROHKTERTZ -

f. ;ﬁ‘E@Fﬁﬁé%ﬁL‘AH&‘T’ﬁ%%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@@%ﬁiﬂ”&ﬂ%ﬁ
N

A B 1 I PARE s A8 H DA R E RN BRI
ARSI AZ ATFEFE -

AR 25 45 H AR 4D A3 BT R0 R SHE IR IR H A
HIEEE (WEE RAAAFEMSBEBGN) - WiRIE
AEEBREKTHEBOER TANME - NE
BEINAERESE - Migs (RO ZEEE)
SIREIEM - NEMESHR - AREEREHE
TRRAIETH 45 53 B IR 1 RV ST S AT TR R R B My i 25
TAZKBMMEE - BIREGEFNOTE (0F)
RIBE P HER - AR REHFSTRBYERT (A5 - 3
Bzt REFEFIELAERTRE - SRR A R
i 55 B M SRENT 5 - PRI LB RE 2 D F
BRI FER I

ERMNEBEIFER - SRR IRD EE TR
SREARRBRER D REEFE 2ROMERE
SREHERERBAT -

g. ZIRMD RN ETEI A E - &t EIE T A HE AR
fnHEENEE 20234 1 A1 H&20234 12 A 31
H /452,281,544 1% % 52,015,124 f% °

h. R ERENAR ) TyB RSN BB A RN MEN
WA ZE 202312 A 31 B It FEREZTEIR
R SRR DR IAB E 20234 12 B31 HILEE
BEITROIMETFHEMAIEEITZROHEKE A

Bl REREEZZH
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SUBSTANTIAL AND OTHERS SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2023, so far as known to any Directors, the
following person (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares which fell to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

TEREMBERRES T ZER

72023F 12 8318 gHERESAA - THA
T (WHEZERARBRHITHAL) RERMD K
RN D P B ZAARIEE 5 R A E 10 XV 505
2 J2 3 BRI SR AN X ) 2 B A P Y B MO M 2 s K
B WARARRAREESMEEEAE336
BEREZBLMHER AR

pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in shares

REGBzHR

Shareholders

PR3R

Nissin Japan
HEBAR

China Orient Asset Management
(International) Holding Limited
HRIRAEEER
(EIRR) 1ERBR AR

* These interests represented:

(0

(ii)

68,140,000 shares were held directly by China Orient Multi-Strategy
Master Fund. China Orient Multi-Strategy Master Fund was 100%
controlled by China Orient Multi-Strategy Fund and the latter itself was
98.3% controlled by China Orient International Fund Management
Limited (“China Orient International”). China Orient International was
100% controlled by China Orient Asset Management (International)
Holding Limited (“China Orient Asset Management”). Accordingly, as
at 31 December 2023, China Orient Asset Management, China Orient
International and China Orient Multi-Strategy Fund were all deemed to
be interested in the same batch of 68,140,000 shares held directly by
China Orient Multi-Strategy Master Fund; and

31,519,000 shares were held directly by China Orient Enhanced Income
Fund which was 100% controlled by China Orient International. China
Orient International was 100% controlled by China Orient Asset
Management. Accordingly, as at 31 December 2023, China Orient Asset
Management and China Orient International were both deemed to be
interested in the same batch of 31,519,000 shares held directly by China
Orient Enhanced Income Fund.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A

Number of shares Percentage
Capacity/Nature held/interested of interest
514,/ 144 B P R{h & 8 @ADL
Beneficial owner 752,024,000 72.05%
BEnlEBA
Interest of controlled 99,659,000* 9.54%

corporations
REAEE
*RERmIE

(i) 68,140,000% A% 5 J3 f China Orient Multi-
Strategy Master Fund & # #5 A ° China Orient
Multi-Strategy Master Fund |3 China Orient Multi-
Strategy Fundf2 1 100% : &% A& & Bl China
Orient International Fund Management Limited
([China Orient International |) %1 98.3% ° China
Orient International f 7 B 3 75 & & & 12 (
B)ERERAR (FRERSEEER]) 155
100% ° E L - 7 2023F 12 A31H - FEKRH
& FE & 3 - China Orient International & China
Orient Multi-Strategy Fund#J # & & 7 China
Orient Multi-Strategy Master Fund Fff B # #5  #
A —#t 68,140,000 FRAR R EF % ¢ I

(i) 31,519,000 8% f% %5 Jb B China Orient Enhanced
Income Fund E# 454 * T China Orient Enhanced
Income Fund BIJf5 China Orient International 4%
100% ° China Orient International i1 B 8 5 &
EEEIERI100% © it - 20235 12/8318 -
s B 3 5 & E & 3 N China Orient International
¥148 A5 China Orient Enhanced Income Fund
FrEZEEAERE—#:31,519,000 &A% {7 7 7 A #E
%o



COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries
in Hong Kong and the PRC while the Shares itself are listed on the
Stock Exchange. The Group's operations are regulated by Hong Kong
and the PRC laws. During the year ended 31 December 2023 and
up to the date of this annual report, the Company has complied
with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact
in Hong Kong and the PRC. In particular, as a food and beverage
manufacturer, the Group's operations are regulated by the food safety
and environmental protection laws and regulations in Hong Kong and
the PRC. During the year under review, the Group did not have any
material non-compliance with such laws and regulations.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save for the Share Award Scheme disclosed in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreement (as
defined in section 6 of the Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation
(Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)) was entered into during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

NON-COMPETITION CONFIRMATION

Nissin Japan (the controlling shareholder of the Company) has entered
into a deed of non-competition in favour of the Company dated
21 November 2017 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) pursuant to
Nissin Japan irrevocably undertaken, among other matters, not to,
directly or indirectly sell any of its instant noodles, frozen foods,
snack and confectionery products to Hong Kong, Mainland China,
Macau and Taiwan (i.e. the HK Group Territory) which would or may
compete with the business of the Group. Details of the Deed of Non-
Competition have been set out in the section headed “Relationship
with our Controlling Shareholder” in the Prospectus of the
Company dated 29 November 2017. The Company has received the
confirmation from Nissin Japan in respect of their compliance with the
terms of the Deed of Non-Competition.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of this annual report, (i) no contract of significance was
entered into by, and/or subsisted between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries with the controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
during the year; and (ii) there is no contract of significance in relation
to provision of services by the controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries to the Group.

BT EERER
AEBELEHARAZEBSRPBME R AE
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REREER AEEEEITERPEZEM
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EWETAEREEREBERERZIER

B2 1 b 88 1 =
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Sh » AR RIRNE P SR A R AR 45 A 4T LA
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(NEEEEEEREREL) B MEHEEFgxT
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year under review.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The following Directors have served on the Board of subsidiaries of
the Company as at 31 December 2023:

EENRS THBENZER

PN 4R A0 S0 B R T O FE B D+
AMEFEARAREMBR TS RAR ALY
ZEARS  BHRANPEEREEEEA
EPN R

B RRES

LATNESERN2023F12 A31 BETAQFHER
RIES :

Subsidiaries Place of Incorporation and Operation
)N FE B L B A th [ Directors 5=
Nissin Foods (H.K.) Company Limited Hong Kong Kiyotaka Ando ZHEBE
BEEm (F8) ARAR B Takeshi Kikunaga oK fiE
Tse Chi Ping, Roy HEF
Sadamichi Yamazaki LU £ 38
Ryosuke Hayashi E G
Nissin Foods (H.K.) Management Hong Kong Kiyotaka Ando TR
Company Limited aBE Toshimichi Fujinawa BEEERm
HERM (8%5) EBERAH Shinji Tatsutani RAER
Yasuhiro Yamada LA
Takeshi Shigemi ZLERSL
Takakazu Yamada L 2R
Hirofumi Inoue HEEX
Hiromichi Kimura VN REZT
Tse Chi Ping, Roy WEF
Nissin Koikeya Foods (China & HK) Hong Kong Kiyotaka Ando TR
Co., Limited B Takashi Koike N ZE
("Nissin Koikeya Foods") Naomichi Fujimaki BoiE
BEWBE (FE e F8) BRAR] Takeshi Kikunaga oK
([BEBEERM]) Hiromichi Kimura RiHhiE
Ryosuke Hayashi WEAGE
Winner Food Products Limited Hong Kong Lau Wing Leung Max 25k 5w
XERmMARAR BB Kiyotaka Ando ZHEERE
Shinji Tatsutani RAEIR
Yasuhiro Yamada L AN
Gen Matsunobu MIEZ,
Toshimichi Fujinawa REAB TS
MC Marketing & Sales (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Kiyotaka Ando LA
Limited B Masamune Komori NRBUR
HBRZFR LT Shinji Tatsutani RAEIR
Yutaka Komori INERAR
Wang Yu &
Wataru Mori W

i NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A



Subsidiaries

LRI=PNE]

Kagome Nissin Foods (H.K.) Co.,
Limited
AIREHEBRM (HE) ARAA

Hong Kong Eastpeak Limited
EERERR DA

ValleyFarm Holdings Limited
BRAERER AR

Ming Fong Packaging & Chemicals Limited

RERRETARAR

Nissin Foods Vietnam Co., Ltd.
HBRmMUEABRAR*

Nissin Demae Iccho Co., Ltd.
HBHA—T R AR QA

Nissin Foods (China) Holding Co.,
Limited*
HERm (FE) REBRAF

Zhejiang Nissin Foods Company
Limited*
WIRBERMBRAA

Guangdong Shunde Nissin Foods
Co. Ltd.*
ERIEERERLABR AT

Place of Incorporation and Operation
FEAT B AL J 45 i i [

Hong Kong
e

Hong Kong
e

Hong Kong
e

Hong Kong
e

Vietnam

MR

Taiwan
PN
A/=

Mainland China
H A

Mainland China

Bl

Mainland China
AR A

Directors

Kiyotaka Ando
Takeshi Kikunaga
Toshimichi Fujinawa
Ryosuke Hayashi
Hiromichi Kimura
Keiichi Inagaki
Norio Izutsu

Hiroshi Shimotsuma

Kiyotaka Ando
Katsunori Hiroi
Hiromichi Kimura

Yasuhiro Yamada
Toshimichi Fujinawa
Takeshi Kikunaga
Kozo Nagura

Takakazu Yamada
Shinji Tatsutani
Yasuhiro Yamada

Kiyotaka Ando
Akifumi Aiba
Hijiri Fukuoka

Kiyotaka Ando
Takeshi Kikunaga
Takayuki Yagi

Kiyotaka Ando
Katsunori Hiroi
Shinji Tatsutani
Xi Xiaotong
Keiji lwakiri
Yutaka Komori
Gen Matsunobu
Zhao Xiongda
Gu Chunlei

Kiyotaka Ando
Tetsuo Hanazono
Yasuhiro Yamada
Shinji Tatsutani
Katsunori Hiroi

Kiyotaka Ando
Yasuhiro Yamada
Kiyoshi Matsuura
Takayuki Yagi
Masashi Imazu
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Subsidiaries

LR)==N

Zhuhai Golden Coast Winner Food
Products Limited*

Place of Incorporation and Operation

AR SZ R A8 4 3t [

Mainland China
I

WeTEREFXERMARAR

Mainland China
R A

Dongguan Nissin Packaging Co. Ltd.*
ZHEBEARALA

Mainland China
A i

Fujian Nissin Foods Co. Ltd.*
BERERMERAA

Mainland China
AR i

Zhuhai Nissin Packaging Company
Limited*
HEREBEERAF

Mainland China
R i

Shanghai Eastpeak Trading Co. Ltd.*
EBREEZERAF

* For identification purpose only

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every directors shall be entitled
to the indemnity out of the assets of the Company against any liability
incurred by him/her in relation to the Company in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, to the extent permitted by the
Companies Ordinance. Such permitted indemnity provision was in
force during the year ended 31 December 2023 and remains in force
at the date of this annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The directors’ remuneration policy of the Company is decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company's
performance, qualification and experience of directors concerned and
prevailing market practices.
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Directors =
Kiyotaka Ando ZHEEE
Gen Matsunobu MIEZ
Shinji Tatsutani [RAEER
Takakazu Yamada L ZEF
Shogo Yonemitsu KIHE
Yasuhiro Yamada L A548
Toshimichi Fujinawa FEERm
Yasuhiro Yamada L A548
Toshiaki Miyagawa =115
Kiyotaka Ando ZHEE
Takakazu Yamada L ZEF
Kiyotaka Ando TR
Fung Kam Shing Barry RERAX,
Yasuhiro Yamada sk
Shinji Tatsutani REBER
Kiyoshi Matsuura ER
Toshimichi Fujinawa FEEFm
Kiyotaka Ando TR
Yasuhiro Yamada L AS48
Takakazu Yamada L ZEAN
Atsushi Matsuura AV
Yutaka Komori INERE
Kiyotaka Ando TR
Katsunori Hiroi EFH A
Hiromichi Kimura VN REGEE]

*
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, the Board confirms that during
the year and up to the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did not make
any charitable or other donation.

ESG

The Group has policies to promote environmental protection. In
order to reduce environmental impacts at every stage of its business
activities, the Group adopts a wide range of policies to control
pollutant emissions, encourage recycling of office supplies, use water
saving facilities, and ensure compliance with environmental laws and
regulations both in Hong Kong and the Mainland China.

The ESG Report covering the same period is available together with
this annual report on the websites of both the Company (www.
nissingroup.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company entered into
a connected transaction under the Listing Rules. We set out below
details of the connected transaction for our Group, in compliance
with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 29 June 2023, the Company and Nissin Asia, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Nissin Japan entered into the capital transfer agreement,
pursuant to which (i) Nissin Asia agreed to sell, and the Company
agreed to purchase, 66.01% of the assigned contribution capital
(the “Acquisition”) of Nissin Vietnam for the consideration of
approximately USD9.5 million, and (ii) the Company agreed to
contribute USD2.0 million to the capital of Nissin Vietnam after
completion of the Acquisition (the “Capital Contribution”). The
total consideration payable by the Company for the Acquisition
and the Capital Contribution is approximately USD11.5 million. The
consideration for the Acquisition of approximately USD9.5 million
was determined after arm’s length negotiation between the parties,
and with reference to (i) the appraised value of the 100% equity
interest of Nissin Vietnam of approximately USD14.4 million as at
30 September 2022 as determined by an independent valuer using
the income approach and proportional interest; and (ii) the future
prospects of Nissin Vietnam.

Due to the capital needs for future business development, Nissin Asia
and the Company negotiated and agreed to increase the contributed
capital of Nissin Vietnam by USD2.0 million.
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Nissin Japan holds approximately 72.05% of the total issued shares
and is therefore the Controlling Shareholder and a connected person
of the Company. Nissin Asia is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nissin
Japan. Therefore, Nissin Asia is a connected person of the Company
by virtue of it being an associate of Nissin Japan.

Upon completion of the Acquisition and the Capital Contribution
which took place on 10 July 2023 and 4 August 2023 respectively,
Nissin Vietnam is held as to 67% by the Company and 33% by the
Nissin Foods Asia and becomes a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. The Board believe that the Acquisition allows the
Company to gain control over Nissin Vietnam, thereby expanding the
geographic portfolio of the Group businesses and providing greater
flexibility to deploy the Group’s production capabilities in Vietnam to
respond to the increasing market demand and the changing business
environment. The Capital Contribution will enhance Nissin Vietnam’s
instant noodles production, sale and distribution capability. In
addition, the Company can invest its human resources, expertise and
experiences from the operations in Hong Kong and mainland China
in Nissin Vietnam to accelerate business growth and capitalise on the
long-term growth trends in the Vietnamese instant noodles market,
which will in turn increase the overall income and profitability of the
Group. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 29 June 2023.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company has entered into the following
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules required to be disclosed in this annual report.

BBAABADHEITRRMNAIT72.05% @ HAE
RAER R AARIBEAL - BERMARBER
MEAMBAR - At R ABEMNRAEA
ROBBA - AR RARNEEAL -

WEE =18 MOEE 2 RIR 2023F 7 810 H %2023
F8AHARREMKE - AEMESAAARA LA
B MIEE67% K 33% M 4E - WK AR R
FEEMBAR - EFFERAE  WEFEEARD
RIESHREUMmAIEHE  KMmEREAEEZE
BHIEAES WA R RSB AEER R
EERED ¢ DAEENETIE R AT 5 7 S BT
{EREERE - TEBNRBBEHENRAE
E - HERDIHEED - N AREAEEREE
ERPEANEFHANER  FEMFHELH
WENRBEME - HMINRERIER - WFH%
MERMMSHRAERBEE R AEEEE
WARZEFEES - BEFE - B2HA2FHH
A2023F6 A29R 2 RE -

HERER S

FR - ARARERT LA TERRFRIZE 2 HE
MERXD (EER LTHRAE14AT) o

Transaction
Transaction Agreements Connected parties involved Nature of Relationship Annual caps amount in 2023
720235
R ik R BER BEREE FE R ZRGHEH
HK$million HK$million
BEAT BRI
Technology and Nissin Japan Controlling Shareholder 34.0 17.1
Trademark Licencing
Agreement ot !
&?ﬁ&?&ﬁ%‘iiﬁ%éﬁ BERXK ERRE
(st 1)
Snacks Supply Nissin Koikeya Foods Non-wholly owned subsidiary 46.0 17.6
Agreement (ot 2 owned as to 34.0% by Koike-
Ya, Inc. which is in turn owned
as to approximately 45.12% by
Controlling Shareholder
TRftERE Y BEBLER R HIHE (mERRREEL
45.12% #ss) BB 34.0%
B R EMB AT
Snacks and Nissin Koikeya Foods Non-wholly owned subsidiary 97.0 35.2
Confectionery owned as to 34.0% by Koike-

Purchase Agreement

Ya, Inc. which is in turn owned

(Note 3) as to approximately 45.12% by
Controlling Shareholder

TRIEETREWE BEHEERS BE (REREREED
(3) 45.12% #2) ¥E8 34.0%

EaZFEANEAR
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Transaction
Transaction Agreements Connected parties involved Nature of Relationship Annual caps amount in 2023
P 20235
R ek R EER BERLEE FE R ZR5HER
HK$million HK$million
BEAT BEET
Master Raw Materials and Nissin Japan Controlling Shareholder 228.0 1403
Products Procurement
Agreement (ot
BVHRERRESHE  BEEX ERRER
(5z4)
Master Raw Materials Nissin Japan Controlling Shareholder 266.0 175.1
and Products Sale
Agreement ot
BHHRERHEELHZ BERXK ERRE
(e
Master Quality Control Food Safety Institute Subsidiary of Controlling 9.0 4.0
Support Service Shareholder
Agreement (ote®
ESERXERBLmE AW ERER 2 MEAR
(Hzz6)
Research Service Master Nissin Japan Controlling Shareholder 5.0 2.8
Agreement ot
BIRTRG B 17 BERXK ERRE
Koike-Ya Master Koike-Ya Inc. An associate of Controlling 5.2 04
Procurement Shareholder, which is owned
Agreement (Mo ® as to approximately 45.12% by
Nissin Japan
WEEERERZ Y PR ERBRE 2 BEA - mRBERE
B#145.12% RiE
Vietnam Master Supply Nissin Vietnam Non-wholly owned subsidiary 3.0 0.0
Agreement (Note9) owned as to 33% by Controlling
Shareholder
R AR 1= HIEHE PRRREE33% RiEzERE
o= NG
Vietnam Master Nissin Vietnam Non-wholly owned subsidiary 15.2 131
Procurement owned as to 33% by Controlling
Agreement (ot 10 Shareholder
HE AR o HIEHE PR REE33% RiEz kR E
o= NG
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Notes:

The Company entered into the Technology and Trademark Licencing
Agreement with Nissin Japan on 21 November 2017, pursuant to which
Nissin Japan granted:

(i) a non-exclusive licence to the Group to use certain technology
and trademarks (the “Nissin Trademarks and Technology”) in our
business in Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China, Taiwan (i.e. the
HK Group Territory) and export of its products bearing and/or
using the Nissin Trademarks and Technology; and

(i) a non-exclusive licence to the Group to use certain trademarks (the
“Nissin Koikeya Trademarks”) in distribution of products bearing
the Nissin Koikeya Trademarks in the HK Group Territory.

The term of the Technology and Trademark Licencing Agreement is three
years commencing from the Listing Date and shall be automatically
renewable for further terms of three years upon expiry subject to
the applicable requirements under the Listing Rules unless and until
terminated upon the breach of any undertakings in any material respect
by the Group or otherwise mutually terminated by the parties in writing
at least 90 days in advance.

On 13 December 2022, the Company has renewed the Technology
and Trademark Licencing Agreement for a further term of three years
commencing from 11 December 2023. For details of the transaction,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 13 December
2022.

On 21 November 2017, the Company has entered into a snacks supply
agreement (the “Snacks Supply Agreement”) with Nissin Koikeya
Foods, the connected subsidiary, pursuant to which the Company has
agreed to supply potato chips products to Nissin Koikeya Foods for its
onward sales. The term of the Snacks Supply Agreement is three years
commencing from 1 January 2017 and is renewable upon expiry for
further terms of three years subject to applicable requirements under the
Listing Rules unless otherwise agreed by the parties. The Snacks Supply
Agreement does not contain any provision which allows either the
Company or Nissin Koikeya Foods to terminate the agreement during its
term. The Directors consider that it would be more cost-efficient in the
long run to produce the potato chips products on its own and it would
ensure a more stable supply of quality products.

On 13 December 2022, the Company has renewed the Snacks Supply
Agreement for a further term of three years commencing from 1 January
2023. For details of the transaction, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 13 December 2022.
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Nissin Foods HK has entered into an agreement (the “Snacks and
Confectionery Purchase Agreement”) with Nissin Koikeya Foods on
21 November 2017 to govern the sales and purchase of snacks and
confectionery. The term of the Snacks and Confectionery Purchase
Agreement is three years from 1 January 2017 and is renewable upon
expiry for further terms of three years subject to applicable requirements
under the Listing Rules unless otherwise agreed by the parties. The
Snacks and Confectionery Purchase Agreement does not contain any
provision which allows either Nissin Foods HK or Nissin Koikeya Foods to
terminate the agreement during its term. The transactions contemplated
under the Snacks and Confectionery Purchase Agreement are intra-group
connected transactions. Before the incorporation of Nissin Foods HK
in August 2015, the Company has been performing the sales function
within the Group and it has a long term and direct business relationship
with its distributors in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China. After
the incorporation of Nissin Foods HK, it has taken up the sales function
within the Group.

On 13 December 2022, the Company renewed the Snacks and
Confectionary Purchase Agreement for a further term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2023. For details of the transaction, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 13 December 2022.

The Company has entered into an agreement (the “Master Raw
Materials and Products Procurement Agreement”) with Nissin Japan on
21 November 2017. The term of the Master Raw Materials and Products
Procurement Agreement is three years commencing from 1 January
2017 and is renewable upon expiry for further terms of three years
subject to the applicable requirements under the Listing Rules unless
otherwise agreed by the parties. The Master Raw Materials and Products
Procurement Agreement does not contain any provision which allows
either the Company or Nissin Japan to terminate the agreement during
its term. The raw materials supplied under the Master Raw Materials
and Products Procurement Agreement include seasoning, oil, addictive,
flour, milk etc. The Company mainly sources such raw materials through
the Nissin Japan Group in order to gain access to the suppliers in Japan
more efficiently and to benefit from the lower procurement cost when
purchases are made together with the Nissin Japan Group at a larger
volume. While the Company is able to source the raw materials from
Independent Third Parties in Japan or elsewhere, and believes it would
not be as cost-efficient when compared to the current arrangement to
procure through the Nissin Japan Group. The finished goods purchased
under the Master Raw Materials and Products Procurement Agreement
mainly include Japanese noodles products as well as confectionery
products. The Company considers that it is beneficial to the Group as a
whole to purchase the finished goods from the Nissin Japan Group for its
onward sale to distributors in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan and Mainland
China whom it has built a long term relationship with.
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On 9 June 2023, the Group adjusted the annual caps for 2023, 2024
and 2025 from HK$186.0 million, HK$190.0 million and HK$193.0
million to HK$228.0 million, HK$289.0 million and HK$354.0 million,
respectively, in view of the revised purchase forecast. For details of the
transaction, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
13 December 2022 and 27 March 2023 and the circular of the Company
dated 26 April 2023.

On 21 November 2017, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “Master Raw Materials and Products Sale Agreement”)
with Nissin Japan to govern the supply of raw materials and finished
goods by the Group to the Nissin Japan Group. The raw materials
supplied by the Group to the Nissin Japan Group include seasoning
powder and packaging materials and the finished goods supplied by
the Group to the Nissin Japan Group include instant noodles and potato
chips products. The term of the Master Raw Materials and Products
Sale Agreement is three years commencing from 1 January 2017 and
is renewable upon expiry for further terms of three years subject to the
applicable requirements under the Listing Rules unless otherwise agreed
by the parties. The Master Raw Materials and Products Sale Agreement
does not contain any provision which allows either the Company or
Nissin Japan to terminate the agreement during its term. For the sale
of raw materials, the Group can enjoy a lower purchasing cost by way
of bulk purchases and the resale to the Nissin Japan Group would
enhance better use of the raw materials. For the sale of finished goods,
the Company considers that the sale is conducted in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group and the terms of sale to the Nissin
Japan Group are similar to those that entered into with other distributors
who are Independent Third Parties.

On 9 June 2023, the Group adjusted the annual caps for 2023, 2024
and 2025 from HK$184.0 million, HK$188.0 million and HK$192.0
million to HK$266.0 million, HK$342.0 million and HK$405.0 million,
respectively, in view of the revised sales forecast. For details of the
transaction, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
13 December 2022 and 27 March 2023 and the circular of the Company
dated 26 April 2023.

To govern the provision of food safety tests by the Food Safety Institute
to the Group, the Company has entered into a master quality control
support service agreement (the “Master Quality Control Support Service
Agreement”) on 21 November 2017 with the Food Safety Institute.
While it can engage other Independent Third Parties to conduct the
food safety tests, the Company believes that it is more cost-efficient to
engage the Food Safety Institute to provide such services as it has good
experience in the food safety of instant foods products and it provides
quality services. Also, it can provide the service at a more favourable
rate than other Independent Third Parties providing similar services. The
term of the Master Quality Control Support Service Agreement is three
years commencing from 1 January 2017 and is renewable upon expiry
for further terms of three years subject to the applicable requirements
under the Listing Rules unless otherwise agreed by the parties. The
Master Quality Control Support Service Agreement does not contain any
provision which allows either the Company or the Food Safety Institute
to terminate the agreement during its term.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A

MR2023F 6 A9H « EREISETIRBTER « A%
E 152023 F - 2024 F K% 2025 F 2 F[E LR HF
H186.0BEBIT 190.0EEETK193.08E
BILTARE2280EEBIL 289088 B LR
3540EBETL - BERZHFHE  #284ARAA
HEIA20229F12 A13 8 202343 A278H
NERANABBEA2023F4 A26 BHEK ©

R2017F 1M A21H - AARERABERATVE
B (RMBRERBEEEHE]D)  URE
AEERAEBAEEEBREME RS - A%
EmREEASEHENEMAEEARD R
EME MASERABAAEEHENK®I
BENRENERER - RV A REREELD
FE017F1A1ARAN=F WA KEH%R
RELTTRANBERRTE—SERA=F - BRIE
K BT RIBRAN o RA R R E R E 28 1H
HIEE A AFARARS BB B AR RELERA
LIEHBRE G - iR ERMEME - A%
Er @Al SRR IRERERA - MAAE
BASEEEBEEZARME - HHEKR MM
T ARRRBZEHENRALEAER K
¥R T MRS B AEE NS N EFRER
AR EHE MBI E = DRI S E R

M2023F 6 A9R - HREEETHETER - A%
E 152023 F + 2024 F K% 2025 F 2 F[Z LR 7
R1840BEEEIL - 188 0BHEBILK1920HE
BTAEE260EEBL 32088 TR
405.0 B BB - BERSHIE  F2HAQH
AHIA20229 12 B13 A X 2023F3 A27 8K
NERAATBEIA202344 A26 BHBK °

ARERTMAAEERENRRZTERA - B
2017F 1M A28 ARG ERLHATFILE
EERYERG B ((EEEEIBREE
Wkl c BEARNRARI N EZREEMBIIE=ET
RREZ2BA - AMARFHEZRERLTHHESE
BEARBEARANE  AHENRRVBERE
2HHERLEEWREEENRS o 1o - K]
LR R EUREHBLE = EEEN
W EREEHIRE - EEERIERGA T

20171 A1 BEEAB=F - WAIREHHERE
THREIMNERREE—SER=F - BRIEFTH
T RITHTARI c BEEEIIRRGAHET
EHBAFARRBRREHR IR AR LR
HER A -



On 13 December 2022, the Company renewed the Master Quality
Control Support Service Agreement for a further term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2023. For details of the transaction, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 13 December 2022.

The Company has entered into an agreement (the “Research Service
Master Agreement”) with Nissin Japan on 19 March 2020. Pursuant
to the terms of the Research Service Master Agreement, the Group
shall provide research services to Nissin Japan which include, but not
limited to, researching raw materials, facilities and suppliers in the PRC
to enhance the research and development capability of Nissin Japan.
The Company believes that the entering of the agreement will enable
the Group to better utilize its existing business resources to expand its
source of income. Further, the provision of the research services will
enhance the overall research and development capability of Nissin Japan,
which may in turn benefit the Group as the Group is able to leverage on
Nissin Japan’s research and development advancement. The term of the
Research Service Master Agreement is for three years commenced from
the 1 April 2020 and shall be automatically renewed on the same terms
and conditions for further terms of three years upon its expiry subject to
compliance with applicable requirements under the Listing Rules unless
otherwise agreed between the parties.

On 13 December 2022, the Company renewed the Research Service
Master Agreement for a further term of three years commencing
from 1 April 2023. For details of the transaction, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 13 December 2022.

On 7 November 2019, the Company and Koike-Ya Inc. entered into a
master procurement agreement (the “Koike-Ya Master Procurement
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company has agreed to purchase
from Koike-Ya Inc. the procurement products, which comprise snack
foods under the brand of “KOIKEYA"” and other products, which include
potato chips, potato sticks and corn snacks. The term of the Koike-Ya
Master Procurement Agreement was three years commencing from 1
November 2019, renewable upon expiry for further three years, subject
to compliance with applicable requirements under the Listing Rules
unless otherwise agreed between the parties. The Koike-Ya Master
Procurement Agreement was renewed on 31 October 2022 for a further
term of three years commencing from 1 November 2022. Sourcing of
such diversified products can expand the portfolio of the products that
the Group can offer to its customers through its own well-established
distribution and sale channels already spread over Hong Kong and
Mainland China which will in turn enhance the overall income and
profitability of the Group. Hence, it is believed that the transactions
contemplated under this agreement are beneficial to the business
growth and development of the Company as a whole.
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9. On 29 June 2023, the Company entered into a master supply agreement
(the “Vietnam Master Supply Agreement”) with Nissin Vietnam,
pursuant to which the Group has agreed to sell the supply products
to Nissin Vietnam, which include granola and snacks. The term of
the Vietnam Master Procurement Agreement is from 1 July 2023 to
31 December 2025, renewable upon expiry for further three years,
subject to compliance with applicable requirements under the Listing
Rules unless otherwise agreed between the parties. In anticipation of
the expected increase in demand in the granola markets in Vietnam,
the Company believes that the sales and distribution network of Nissin
Vietnam provide an effective sale channel for the products of the Group
and the transactions contemplated under this agreement are beneficial
to the business growth and development of the Group as a whole.

10.  On 29 June 2023, the Company entered into a master procurement
agreement (the “Vietnam Master Procurement Agreement”) with Nissin
Vietnam, pursuant to which the Company has agreed to purchase from
Nissin Vietnam the procurement products, which include instant noodles
and other food products. The term of the Vietnam Master Procurement
Agreement is from 1 July 2023 to 31 December 2025, renewable upon
expiry for further three years, subject to compliance with applicable
requirements under the Listing Rules unless otherwise agreed between
the parties. The Board considers that it is beneficial to the Company
as a whole to purchase such finished goods from Nissin Vietnam for
its onward sales to distributors in Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan at a
more competitive price, which in turn is expected to enhance the overall
income and profitability of the Company. Hence, it is believed that the
transactions contemplated under this agreement are beneficial to the
business growth and development of the Company as a whole.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) have reviewed the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions of the Group and confirmed that
each of the transactions has been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) and was conducted on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii)  and in accordance with the relevant agreement governing the
transactions on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has been engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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The auditor of the Company has reviewed and issued an unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above in accordance with
rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, and confirmed to the Board that
nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that the
above continuing connected transactions:

0] have not been approved by the Board;

(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group if the transactions involve the provision of
goods or services by the Group;

(iii)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(iv)  have exceeded the caps previously disclosed in the announcement.

The Company confirms that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the connected transactions set out above.

The Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors) have
reviewed and confirmed that, except for the continuing connected
transactions as stated in the prior paragraphs, all other continuing
connected transactions entered by the Group are exempted under
Rule 14A.73 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, such transactions
are exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the other related party transactions as
disclosed in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements do not
constitute connected transactions required to be disclosed under the
Listing Rules.

RATZEENERIE ETHREIEE 14A.56 (82 E &
L%@E’Jﬁff‘az_ CHMEBEH—HEEHERAEE
RERNERBER KM  WAEESHRL

ﬁfﬂ?%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%tu%ﬁ% B 5

iy REEF=GHE:

EX G hBAEERTEERIR
BEEATEFEAREEEBRE

(ii) f‘u’%

i §§#
Fﬁ 4H§

(i) EFERTHRAERBERERZHME@R

(iv) BRBAAEAHEENTE LR -
AABHER ARG LAEEERHE
TLETHRAEVASEZHERTE -

Ex (BRBUFHNTES) CEMAER - K
LR FERRIERR SO ARBMAI 2 H
A BERBEREXSHRE MR RIS 14A.73 5%
E#% - At 2EXZEH2ET LEHHRANE
TUABE T ZHE FEERZ  AEMBIER
HERTE -

E%J:‘XF)TT&E‘?%?I\ " IR E SRR IR 37 PR ER

B H b BAESE 77 %IT%W@FJ:H?%E@'JM%%&
BrBERS
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 | —ZE = =F F 3}

i



if

DIRECTORS' REPORT E=5 235

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was appointed as independent auditor for
the year ended 31 December 2023. A resolution will be proposed to
the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as independent auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Kiyotaka Ando
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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To the Members of Nissin Foods Company Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Deloitte

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nissin Foods
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 93 to 215, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. The matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on this matter.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

Revenue recognition from sales of goods

We identified revenue
recognition from sales of
goods as a key audit matter
due to its significance to
the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The
Group's revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2023,
in respect of sales of goods,
amounted to approximately
HK$3,826,566,000.

As disclosed in note 5 to
the consolidated financial
statements, revenue from
the sales of goods (including
noodles, retort foods, frozen
foods, beverage products,
snacks and vegetable
products) is recognised
when control of the goods
has transferred. We focused
on this area because the
Group transacts with a
large number of customers
spreading over different
locations in Hong Kong and
the People’s Republic of
China.

Our procedures in relation to revenue
recognition from sales of goods
included:

e Obtaining an understanding of
the revenue recognition processes
and testing the Group’s relevant
controls over revenue recognition;

e Reviewing sales contracts with key
customers, on a sample basis, to
understand the agreed trade terms
and assess whether the related
revenue was properly recognised
in accordance with respective sales
contracts and with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

e Confirming the amounts of total
sales of goods for the year with
selected customers, on a sample
basis; and

e Testing recorded sales transactions
on a sample basis against
corresponding goods delivery
notes, shipping documents and/
or acceptance confirmations
from customers to evidence that
control of the goods have been
transferred.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used . HEEEMAEASNBERMNEE I RIED
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related Bt AR R RN S B o
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the . ﬂ%%%ﬁﬁﬁf%%@ﬁ%ﬁ“ﬁ’] \AM’\EH’E
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit g o BBMENNELRE - BE
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related CHEEERESENSENE B E’Jéﬁz_ﬁﬁm
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the - emAl B EY BRENFELE
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude BENEEEARRE MRBEMARFEE
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw ATHEEMN - AN EEZHANRE T IR
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in B ﬁﬁ% ETBREMBREPVMEBEARE
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are cREFBHENBETE - AIBMEEE
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based i‘%#ﬁﬂ%?@ BER - BMOERESENZH
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s RIS A IEFTESMBEETRE - A - K
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the REBESBERATREEH BEEBETHFE
Group to cease to continue as a going concern. FEE

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the . FEREMERENBEImA R &

consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and MAR - BIEEE  URES Eﬂ%#ﬁi‘%m
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the GHERMRZSHFEIR -

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the . Bt Eleﬁ%ﬁ‘f‘k%ﬁ‘“iﬁ@)E’J@ﬁ%%%

financial information of the entities or business activities within BERAR EENERE  UWEYHGRE
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial HBmEEERER - BMEBEE EXEEH
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision FTE M BEEMEIT c BHMABHER
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely AEERHEE -

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, PREAMEIEIN - BPIEDRIREEM T T8 E T
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit #WE - FETH  EATHERSE  2ERMAT
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in FETRHEAI L A B B (R ARG -

internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matter. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Chan, Alan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

4=\
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
i FET FHIT
(restated)
(% &E51)
Revenue ON 5 3,833,194 4,067,732
Cost of sales THERAR (2,530,133) (2,764,937)
Gross profit E5 1,303,061 1,302,795
Other income H AU A 7 46,754 62,428
Selling and distribution costs THE Mo tEK AR (531,672) (542,543)
Administrative expenses 1TER S (298,049) (300,236)
Impairment losses recognised under TEHREEEEERIE THER
expected credit loss model, net of reversal ~ JE{EETE - Kk EE (1,453) (718)
Other expenses HAb Rz (36,202) (33,162)
Other gains and losses HAb W R IE1E 8 (25,204) (25,420)
Finance costs R0 TN 9 (270) (259)
Profit before taxation Fr A& A 456,965 462,885
Income tax expense Frigfif X 10 (123,816) (119,989)
Profit for the year FRE T 11 333,149 342,896
Other comprehensive expense Hih2EE X
Item that may be reclassified subsequently — Hi&st@E#H S EIE.2
to profit or loss: HA -
Exchange differences arising on BRGINEBEEZ
translation of foreign operations MEH Z5E (25,340) (220,590)
Total comprehensive income for the year FAEERALRE 307,809 122,306
Profit for the year attributable to: AT ATEEFERER
Owners of the Company PA/NSIE ZS N 330,169 312,761
Non-controlling interests SEVEHIIE RS 2,980 30,135
333,149 342,896
Total comprehensive income (expense) for AT ATREIGEERNEE
the year attributable to: WA (FAsZ) 2% -
Owners of the Company PA/NSIEZS DN 308,456 103,915
Non-controlling interests I HI (647) 18,391
307,809 122,306
Earnings per share BRAF 15
— Basic (HK cents) — EZR (Bl 31.64 29.96
— Diluted (HK cents) - 8 (B 31.63 29.96

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 | —ZZE == F®




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

imOIIBHRNER

At 31 December 2023
7202312 31 H

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
i FTHET FAET
(restated)
€<=
Non-current Assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BERZE 16 1,679,372 1,616,034
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 179,994 186,398
Goodwill Bk 18 62,779 63,108
Intangible assets B AE 19 26,444 31,454
Interest in an associate BN R 2 S 20 116 116
Financial assets at fair value through profit & A F{Ezt ABZFZ &/
or loss BE 21 38,487 34,371
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIEE = 22 69,684 57,041
Loan receivable EURE SR 23 - 274
Prepayments for acquisition of property, IWEEYI - R MR
plant and equipment Frfstz & 42,941 34,322
Time deposits with original maturity over [REEAR —F A L2 7F A
one year T3k 27 77,244 78,364
Rental deposits HER e 25 2,516 1,789
2,179,577 2,103,271
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories "E 24 415,015 442,340
Trade receivables B F R IRR 25 372,854 430,898
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits = {th fEUFRIE - FBATF0IE &
tsn 25 66,318 88,121
Loan receivable FEUWE SR 23 274 547
Amount due from ultimate holding FEU S EAE IR A BIFRIA
company 26 4,558 4,174
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries JEW R Z BB A R F0E 26 34,349 34,582
Tax recoverable EIEEIEs A 29,539 13,987
Financial assets at fair value through profit A F(EFABZ Z &R/
or loss BE 21 215,679 204,239
Time deposits with original maturity over [REEAR —F A L2 F &
one year 55k 27 55,174 -
Time deposits with original maturity over REBAE A=A EER
three months but not exceeding one year  #BiB—F 2 & #fFK 27 111,342 20,073
Cash and cash equivalents ReE KB EEY 27 1,199,054 1,257,573
2,504,156 2,496,534
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2023 2022
2023 2022 &
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
FiaE FExT FHEIT
(restated)
(&E5)
Current Liabilities BEI=RE
Trade payables H IR 28 150,320 185,144
Other payables and accruals HEMENRIERERTEA 28 666,738 657,731
Amount due to ultimate holding company — JEf &A% A A FKIE 26 29,693 33,808
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries R RZRMBRRHE 26 4,332 3,623
Lease liabilities HEAE 29 8,559 6,249
Tax liabilities HIEAE 33,165 37,588
Deferred income EFEWA 30 3,378 2,826
896,185 926,969
Net Current Assets REEEFE 1,607,971 1,569,565
Total Assets less Current Liabilities HEERRBARG 3,787,548 3,672,836
Capital and Reserves EARRFEE
Share capital [N 31 2,941,441 2,941,441
Reserves @ 690,000 614,312
Equity attributable to owners of the RATHEE AEEREE
Company 3,631,441 3,555,753
Non-controlling interests FEPERIE R 43,262 43,909
Total Equity ERBE 3,674,703 3,599,662
Non-current Liabilities FkRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FERIBAG 22 93,117 53,655
Lease liabilities HEERE 29 1,113 2,126
Deferred income PEIEUA 30 18,615 17,393
112,845 73,174
3,787,548 3,672,836

FHBE2SAEZHEAMBRREEETEN2024
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 F3H26 HILERKBETIEL RIAT ATREE
March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by: z:

The consolidated financial statements on pages 93 to 215 were

KIYOTAKA ANDO SHINJI TATSUTANI

ZREE RBER
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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CUNSULIDATEIJ STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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SESENE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHZE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

Notes:

According to the articles of association and board resolutions of the
Company’s subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), 10%
of the profits after taxation, as determined under the PRC accounting
rules and regulations, are transferred to general reserve funds under “PRC
statutory reserve”. These transfers must be made before the distribution
of dividends to equity owners of those subsidiaries until the aggregated
amounts have reached 50% of their registered capitals. These reserves
should only be used for making up losses, capitalisation into capital, and

expansion of production and operation.

Merger reserve at 31 December 2023 represents (i) the difference
between the share capital issued by the Company, and the aggregate of
(1) the share capital of Winner Food Products Limited (“Winner Food")
and (2) the retained profits of Winner Food, net of non-controlling
interests, prior to the original acquisition of Winner Food by Nissin Foods
Holdings Co., Ltd.,
company, in 1989, arising from a group reorganisation on 1 January
2014, amounted to a debit of HK$238,168,000 and (ii) the difference
between the consideration paid for the acquisition of 66.01% equity
interest in Nissin Foods Vietnam Co., Ltd. (“Nissin Vietnam”) from
Nissin Foods Asia Co., Ltd., a fellow subsidiary of the Company, of
US$9,500,000 (equivalent to HK$74,435,000) and the share capital of
Nissin Vietnam attributable to the acquired interest of HK$344,401,000,
during the current year, amounted to a credit of HK$269,966,000.
Details of the acquisition of Nissin Vietnam are detailed in note 3.

the Company’s immediate and ultimate holding

On 22 December 2014, the Company acquired an additional 26%
interest in Winner Food from the non-controlling shareholder for a
cash consideration of HK$129,453,000. The difference between the
cash consideration paid and the carrying amount of the net assets
attributable to the additional interest in Winner Food acquired from the
non-controlling shareholder, amounting to HK$14,403,000, is credited
to “other reserve”. Following the completion of this acquisition, Winner
Food became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company acquired
additional interests in certain subsidiaries, including MC Marketing
& Sales (Hong Kong) Limited and Zhuhai Golden Coast Winner Food
Products Limited, from their non-controlling shareholders. The differences
between the cash considerations paid and the carrying amounts of the
net assets attributable to the additional interests acquired from the non-
controlling shareholders, amounting to HK$332,767,000, are debited to
"other reserve”.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= O\ Ay sy —1
GolREna®
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHZE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
(restated)
€<=
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETH
Profit before taxation BREE AT 8 A 456,965 462,885
Adjustments for: FEE
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESE 4,958 6,424
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BEREETE
equipment 28,939 23,767
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 13,730 15,722
Equity-settled share-based payment AR e i B AR (D BT R 1,684 1,697
Fair value changes on financial assets at EATFEFABENEHEEATE
fair value through profit or loss #H) (4,116) 2,839
Finance costs BT RN 270 259
Government grant related to acquisition BRANEE & E 2 BN AL
of assets (1,381) (1,345)
Impairment losses recognised in respect B EWF BRI REEE -
of trade receivables, net of reversal MR E 1,453 718
Impairment losses on property, plant and M - BE M&E 2 REEE
equipment 8,778 7,027
Impairment losses on intangible assets B EERERR - 3,270
Interest income FLEYA (27.896) (19,363)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BERREBE
equipment 2,970 619
Operating cash flows before movement in ~ &EE L BB 2K EHELTE
working capital 486,354 504,519
Decrease in inventories FERD 154,534 131,819
Decrease in trade receivables B SRR R 59,163 31,848
Decrease in other receivables, prepayments — Eth JEURIE « FB FRIE R IZ SR
and deposits 22,470 2,724
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from JEUR[R RSB A R FIE R (3Eh0)
fellow subsidiaries 233 (2,078)
Decrease in trade payables Z 5 T ERFUR (33,411) (78,305)
Increase (decrease) in other payables and H AR FOB M ERTE A O d)
accruals 12,442 (17,914)
Decrease in amount due to ultimate holding & & 442 B A B Z B
company (4,031) (609)
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to fellow [FET[E ZBHE A RFRIERE M C)
subsidiaries 709 (3,576)
Cash generated from operations CEEEZRS 698,463 568,428
Income taxes paid EFTISHE (121,966) (114,843)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES & EFBELECHEFE 576,497 453,585
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHZE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
(restated)
(% &E51)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REES
Placement of time deposits with original FHEHAR =AU EZEEBEFER
maturity of more than three months (211,836) (67,675)
Withdrawal of time deposits with original ~ 3eERE|HIE A =18 A U £ 2 EHFR
maturity of more than three months 11,097 69,047
Placement of time deposits with original GFHEIBR A —FU L2 FHFER
maturity of more than one year (5,549) -
Withdrawal of time deposits with original ~ $REREIEI B A—FU EZ FEER
maturity of more than one year 38,842 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BEE¥% - &5 MR & (254,127) (246,151)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWZE - WEREEZFTSHIE
and equipment 1,499 6,328
Interest received BB 27,896 19,363
Government grant in related to acquisition B WA BIEEEE 2 BT /AL
of assets received 6,441 3,483
Advance to ultimate holding company A B AR HEE AR 2 R EA R (403) (4,174)
Repayment from ultimate holding company &&4IERAFER - 4,265
Placement of rental deposits FHHEZS (727) (1,262)
Loan repaid BEEER 547 547
Redemption of government bond HE LI BT ES - 34,771
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING RETHFAZREFHE
ACTIVITIES (386,320) (181,458)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEES
Buy-back of own shares EEA=REg ) - (25,988)
Dividend paid to owners of the Company BNARREHEEAZKE (158,224) (182,333)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests ~ EASIEIRHI MRS 2 B2 8 - (82,906)
Repayments of lease liabilities THEBEEX (7,810) (8,118)
Share purchased from secondary market fR D EEEETEIIE N RE M5
under share award scheme BEMORMD (1,793) (1,664)
Interest paid on lease liabilities ERNHEEEETE (270) (259)
Consideration paid for business combination F:FEEHIT 7 284 GAA R E
under common control (74,435) -
Acquisition of additional interests in non-  UEEIE2 EHI B A RIFEIMERS
wholly owned subsidiaries - (408,279)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING METHIACRSRE
ACTIVITIES (242,532) (709,547)

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | B/BR M
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2023 2022
2023 & 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
(restated)
(&E5)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERBRSEEYRLDBE
EQUIVALENTS (52,355) (437,420)
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes HSNEBTE R B 2 B (6,164) (105,388)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RENZEERESEEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,257,573 1,800,381
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERZEER
AT END OF THE YEAR, REZEEY -
represented by cash and cash equivalents ~ LASR7T4E82 IR & IR 1,199,054 1,257,573
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Nissin Foods Company Limited (the “Company”) is a public
limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Its
immediate and ultimate holding company is Nissin Foods
Holdings Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in Japan with its
shares listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are 21-23 Dai Shing Street, Tai Po
Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong, and 11-13
Dai Shun Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New Territories,
Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) is principally engaged in the manufacturing and
sales of noodles, retort foods, frozen foods, beverage products,
snacks and vegetable products, and provision of research and
publicity services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERRAR A A
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") AND CHANGES
IN OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on 1 January 2023 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17 (including the October
2020 and February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two model Rules
Disclosure of Accounting

Policies

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

2.

IE AATE] RAISE] BB
LR ([ FBABREE
,JJJ) REMERBRE

RAFERFERZHTREIETES
B 53R 45 22 Al

RER - REGEVBRER  A5EE
BIXERA2023F1 A1 BEHBENAEER
FEAMRFEBNUATESSTMAY
([BEgFMAE]) BEAIE] REEE]
BBV IERE LR

BEPBHREENE7  RBAY
& (8152020910 A
%2022 F2 AEEY
TERELERIZE 179
(1BETA))

BAGHERNE SR FEHHEFIHER
CCHEN)

BAEGHENE 1295 1IE—RGELENE
(1BETA) ERABRENHE

HEFLIE

BRAGTERE 125 ERBENRE - XF
CHEY) ZEERR
ERGTENE 1 RRE SHEERKE
ER B ImE RN ER
HE 25 (BFTAR)

BT Xt &S - MAFEERET R
EAERBVBREENHARKEARFEE R
BEFENTBRRARRE R, HZELHE
EMBHRABIBELEEATE
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") AND CHANGES
IN'OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinues)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (continued)
2.1 Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS

1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time
in the current year. HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements is amended to replace all instances of the
term “significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if
the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting
policy information relating to material transactions, other
events or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses
to disclose immaterial accounting policy information, such
information must not obscure material accounting policy
information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also amended
to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step
materiality process” to accounting policy disclosures
and to judge whether information about an accounting
policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance and
examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance
but has affected the disclosure of the Group’s accounting
policies set out in note 3.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A

2.

& P ATET RAR(E
LR ([ FBABREE
,JJJ) REME

SETE IR
SHER

RAFEBRHER T REETER

MBRELER (&)

2.1 BHEBETERE1HKREE
HIBHREER|ERIHEE 29 (15

FTA) BRI ERZE
REBRAFEARERZFER
Ko BAEGTEAF 152585
BREKLBIT  NERSFTHEE
BB TERGTBER] —FANM
BER - WA PRI ZH
EH—HERE  ARERHYE
BRVBHRENEIZEREENZSE
MBS MERAEZRR - At ERRER
BBERX -

ZEERTATVES - BMES RRIAY
TEXR BEREERZIEE - Hit
FEABN - FRIBRERMDAIBE
Ko A WIEMBREARS - H
M EREKIERNA BT HRERA
FEBEAX - R ERREREN
BAEHEEER  ERENTGER
EBRGRBERER -

ERMBRESENEFRREF 2N
(BETA) fEHEARMEHE ([BBH
E1) IMEIEET A — B E R
Al F@*ﬁiaﬂﬁiﬁlimﬁﬁ i3
\@%Eﬁz%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁflﬁé\ﬁ
BRONEHBEVBREREEE

Koe ?ﬁ‘%i&%Eibﬂ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ
) o

ERZEET AP T H AL
B R RREEERNTZE - AR5
FEAEEMEIMEZGABERRK
B



APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") AND CHANGES
IN'OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinues)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year (continued)

2.2 Change in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) — Long
Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism in
Hong Kong
As disclosed in note 34, the Group has several subsidiaries
operating in Hong Kong which are obliged to pay LSP
to employees under certain circumstances. Meanwhile,
the Group makes mandatory MPF contributions to
the trustee who administers the assets held in a trust
solely for the retirement benefits of each individual
employee. Offsetting of LSP against an employee’s
accrued retirement benefits derived from employers’
MPF contributions was allowed under the Employment
Ordinance (Cap.57). In June 2022, the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region gazetted
the Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022
(the “Amendment Ordinance”) which abolishes the use of
the accrued benefits derived from employers’ mandatory
MPF contributions to offset severance payment and LSP
(the "Abolition”). The Abolition will officially take effect
on 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). In addition,
under the Amendment Ordinance, the last month’s salary
immediately preceding the Transition Date (instead of the
date of termination of employment) is used to calculate
the portion of LSP in respect of the employment period
before the Transition Date.
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N[]TES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR BI5E

|||l-ﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") AND CHANGES
IN'OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinues)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (continued)
2.2 Change in accounting policy as a result of

application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) — Long
Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism in
Hong Kong (continueq)

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong” which provides guidance for
the accounting for the offsetting mechanism and the
impact arising from abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong. In light of this, the Group has
implemented the guidance published by the HKICPA in
connection with the LSP obligation retrospectively so as
to provide more reliable and more relevant information
about the effects of the offsetting mechanism and the
Abolition.

The Group considered the accrued benefits arising from
employer MPF contributions that have been vested with
the employee and which could be used to offset the
employee’s LSP benefits as a deemed contribution by the
employee towards the LSP. Historically, the Group has
been applying the practical expedient in paragraph 93(b)
of HKAS 19 Employee Benefits to account for the deemed
employee contributions as a reduction of the service cost
in the period in which the related service is rendered.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") AND CHANGES
IN'OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (zontinues)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year (continued)

2.2 Change in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) — Long
Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting mechanism in
Hong Kong (continueq)
Based on the HKICPA's guidance, as a result of the
Abolition, these contributions are no longer considered
“linked solely to the employee’s service in that period”
since the mandatory employer MPF contributions after the
Transition Date can still be used to offset the pre-transition
LSP obligation. Therefore, it would not be appropriate to
view the contributions as “independent of the number of
years of service” and the practical expedient in paragraph
93(b) of HKAS 19 is no longer applicable. Instead, these
deemed contributions should be attributed to periods
of service in the same manner as the gross LSP benefit
applying paragraph 93(a) of HKAS 19. Accordingly, the
Group has recognised a cumulative catch-up adjustment
in profit or loss for the service cost, interest expense
and remeasurement effect from changes in actuarial
assumptions for the year ended 31 December 2023,
with corresponding adjustment to the LSP obligation.
The cumulative catch-up adjustment is calculated as the
difference at the enactment date (16 June 2022) between
the carrying amount of the LSP liability calculated under
paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19 before the Abolition and
the carrying amount of the LSP liability calculated under
paragraph 93(a) of HKAS 19 after the Abolition.

The application of the HKICPA guidance has had no
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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NUTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG 2.

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") AND CHANGES
IN OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES /zantinues)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture'

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or

Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements?

and HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
all amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of
approving the consolidated financial statements, a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

Merger accounting for business combination
involving entities under common control

Effective on 29 June 2023, the Company entered into a
capital transfer agreement with Nissin Foods Asia Co.,
Ltd. (the “Vendor”), a company wholly-owned by Nissin
Foods Holdings Co., Ltd., which is the ultimate controlling
shareholder of both the Company and Nissin Foods
Vietnam Co., Ltd., (the “Target Company”). The Target
Company'’s principal activities include manufacturing,
importing, and exporting instant noodles. Prior to the
transaction, the Target Company was a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Vendor. Following the transaction, the
Vendor became a non-controlling shareholder of the
Target Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION /zantinued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

Merger accounting for business combination
involving entities under common control
(continuea)

Under the terms of the capital transfer agreement, the
Vendor agreed to sell, and the Company agreed to
purchase, the 66.01% of all contributed capital in the
Target Company for a consideration of approximately
US$9,500,000 (equivalent to HK$74,435,000) (the
“Acquisition”), which was satisfied by the Company
through cash payment. Additionally, upon completion
of the Acquisition on 29 June 2023, the Company
has agreed to contribute an additional US$2,000,000
(equivalent to HK$15,671,000) to the Target Company
for a 0.99% additional interest. Following the capital
contribution, the equity interest held by the Company and
the Vendor will be adjusted to 67% and 33% respectively.
The capital injection of US$2,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$15,671,000) was settled on 29 August 2023.

The Acquisition was considered as a business combination
under common control as the Company and the Target
Company are both ultimately controlled by Nissin Foods
Holdings Co., Ltd. before and after the Acquisition and
the control is not transitory. The acquisition of the Target
Company was accounted for using merger accounting
in accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Guideline 5
Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations
("AG 5") issued by the HKICPA.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A

GEVMBRERRELERE
XEEBRER (2)

3.1

REPBBRREHRERE (B)

HBREGZHERZFEBEEHZ
EHETEE (B)

RBEEARERIGRGR  BEAREDE
EMANEIREBEBRARMEE
& 266.01% + K {E 4 /&9,500,000
E T (55 74,435,000 70) ([
BEHE])  ZREEHAAQRURS
FAEAT o o - W EIER 2023
F6HA29HFTKE - ARBERE
M B IZAFE8HNEE 2,000,000 5T
(#H=15,671,000/87T) © LAES
FIN0.99% R - SFETAKE - AN
NAIREFFHAEZREZSBIARE
67% K 33% ° ;& 582,000,000 37T
(#HZ7 15,671,000 7T) 272023
FQ8H20BEE -

WHEEEHR RS T 2 ¥B%4
Bt DEARAR KR BIZARERE
= T8 B % ¥5 A Nissin Foods Holdings
Co., Ltd. A& K IEERRHE ] o Y hE B
SARDIRBEEBGTMAGEMD
BEGTIESIESH [ HRAEHTA
prraptestEmE] ([&5rEsl%s5
1) WAAMHETEAAR -



BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION /zantinued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

Merger accounting for business combination
involving entities under common control
(continuea)

Under merger accounting, based on the guidance set
out in AG 5, the financial information incorporate the
financial statements items of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date when
the combining entities or businesses first came under the
control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are consolidated using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised in
respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the
net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation
of the controlling party’s interest. The adjustments to
eliminate contributed capital of the combining entities or
businesses against the related investment costs have been
made to merger reserve in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the prior years have been restated to include
the results of the Target Company as if the Acquisition
had been completed since the date the Target Company
first came under the common control. The consolidated
statement of financial position as at 1 January 2022
and 31 December 2022 have been restated to adjust
the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the
Target Company which had been in existence as at 1
January 2022 and 31 December 2022 as if those entities
or businesses were combined from the date when they
first came under the common control (see below for the
financial impacts).

The directors of the Company considered that the financial
information of the Target Company is insignificant to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, therefore, no
opening balances as of 1 January 2022 were presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ) GZEMBHRRENUEERE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY XEEBRER (2)
INFORMATION /zantinued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 31 HFEMBHBRREREE (B)

statements (continued)
Merger accounting for business combination

BRAEZEHERZEBEHZ

involving entities under common control EHETEE ()

(continueq)

(i)  Effect on the consolidated statement of profit or () HEHZE20229F1283181EF
loss and other comprehensive income for the year EHAgAaBEmLEMmEEIK
ended 31 December 2022: ARZTE

Effect of
business

combination of
entities under

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | H

The Group common control The Group
HEEGIEEE
ZEBEO
REE -7 REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T
(as previously

reported) (as restated)
(ScRIEHR) (#&=7)
Revenue A 4,024,980 42,752 4,067,732
Cost of sales THE R AR (2,730,373) (34,564) (2,764,937)
Gross profit EF 1,294,607 8,188 1,302,795
Other income E A 63,266 (838) 62,428
Selling and distribution costs ~ $4%& K 5 $4A A (533,572) (8,971) (542,543)
Administrative expenses THFAX (293,565) (6,671) (300,236)

Impairment losses recognised FEHA{Z & 5181818

under expected credit loss THERRERE -
model, net of reversal R £ [E (718) - (718)
Other expenses HEY (33,997) 835 (33,162)
Other gains and losses H s K B (26,857) 1,437 (25,420)
Finance costs U AN (259) - (259)
Profit (loss) before taxation — FRFRATEF (&) 468,905 (6,020) 462,885
Income tax expense RS RiF S (119,989) - (119,989)
Profit (loss) for the year FRaf (k) 348,916 (6,020) 342,896

E=E A O
/B Roon
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION /zantinued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

Merger accounting for business combination
involving entities under common control
(continuea)

(i)

Effect on the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2022: (continued)

L

. BEMBHRENELRE
XEEBRER (2)

3.1 GEMBBRREHEE (&)

HBREGZHERZFEBEEHZ

B g EE ()

() BEHZE2022%F12A83181LF
EEPsABEREMEEI
ARZFE : (8)

Effect of
business
combination of
entities under

The Group common control The Group
HEEGIE S
ZEBabt
REE -7 REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FA&T FHT FAT
(as previously
reported) (as restated)
(ScRIEHR) (&&=7)
Other comprehensive Hih2mE (BX) WA
(expense) income
Item that may be reclassified HE@EH HIEE
subsequently to profit or BmoHE -
loss:
Exchange differences ERGINEBEE
arising on translation of ZMEH ZRE
foreign operations (221,001) 411 (220,590)
Total comprehensive income  FHIRZEUWA
(expense) for the year (%) 4258 127,915 (5,609) 122,306
Profit (loss) for the year UTALTEEER
attributable to: wmA (E18)
Owners of the Company ZAN/NSIEZS DN 316,519 (3,758) 312,761
Non-controlling interests SRS 32,397 (2,262) 30,135
348,916 (6,020) 342,896
Total comprehensive income AT ATREGER
(expense) for the year 2ERBA (%) :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NETET YN 107,673 (3,758) 103,915
Non-controlling interests SIS 20,242 (1,851) 18,391
127,915 (5,609) 122,306
Earnings per share BRZEF]
— Basic (HK cents) — FZR (B 30.32 (0.36) 29.96
— Diluted (HK cents) - 58 (BAL) 30.32 (0.36) 29.96
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

. BEMBHRENELRE
XEEBRER (2)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION /zantinued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 3.1
statements (continued)
Merger accounting for business combination

REPBBRREHRERE (B)

BRAEZEHERZEBEHZ

combination of
entities under

involving entities under common control EHETEE ()
(continueq)
(i) Effect on the consolidated statement of financial (i) ¥2022F12 A31 HEHAELEE
position as at 31 December 2022: BERRRZ &
Effect of
business

The Group common control The Group
HEZEGIER
ZEBab
REH 7 REHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHIT
(as previously
reported) (as restated)
(S RTESR) (&&=75)
Non-current Assets FkRBEE
Property, plant and M - WE REE
equipment 1,580,304 35,730 1,616,034
Right-of-use assets EREEE 186,398 - 186,398
Goodwill [EES 63,108 - 63,108
Intangible assets mAE 31,454 - 31,454
Interest in an associate REFE AR 2w 116 - 116
Financial assets at fair value AT EFTABZEZ
through profit or loss EREE 34,371 - 34,371
Deferred tax assets RIERIB A E 57,041 - 57,041
Loan receivable JEUE K 274 - 274
Deposits paid for acquisition  UREEWE - E &
of property, plant and REFRE
equipment 34,322 - 34,322
Time deposits with original ~ RE|HIE—F A £
maturity over one year TFEHFR 78,364 - 78,364
Rental deposits HEFT® 1,789 - 1,789
2,067,541 35,730 2,103,271
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3 SAVMBHMREREERE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY XEFBRER @)
INFORMATION (zamtinues)
3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 31 HFEMBHBRREREE (B)
statements (continued)
Merger accounting for business combination BREGEZEFHERZEFEEHZ
involving entities under common control EHETEE ()
(continuea)
(i) Effect on the consolidated statement of financial (i) ¥2022F12 A31 HEHAELEE

position as at 31 December 2022: (continued) SRR R HE : (&)
Effect of
business
combination of
entities under

The Group common control The Group
HEZEFIERE
ZEBab
REH 7 AEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHIT
(as previously
reported) (as restated)
(S RTERR) (&&=75)
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories FE 431,610 10,730 442,340
Trade receivables B F R IRR 426,835 4,063 430,898
Other receivables, HAb EUGIE - B
prepayments and deposits I RIZE 85,661 2,460 88,121
Loan receivable FEE 5K 547 - 547
Amount due from ultimate  FEURSARIER A A
holding company RIE 4,174 - 4,174
Amounts due from fellow FEWRZAENB AR
subsidiaries =E 34,582 - 34,582
Tax recoverable AU el 18 12,698 1,289 13,987
Financial assets at fair value 2 AFEF ABZEZ
through profit or loss TRLEE 204,239 - 204,239
Time deposits with original ~ RE/HIB =AM &
maturity over three months BB —F 2
but not exceeding one year T HITFH 17,763 2,310 20,073
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEED 1,249,460 8,113 1,257,573
2,467,569 28,965 2,496,534
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. HEMBREEREERE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY REFBRER @)
INFORMATION (zamtinued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 31 HFEMBHBRREREE (B)
statements (continued)
Merger accounting for business combination BREFEZEFHERZEBFESHZ
involving entities under common control EHETEE ()
(continuea)
(i) Effect on the consolidated statement of financial (i) ¥2022F12 A31 HEHAELEE
position as at 31 December 2022: (continued) SRR R HE : (&)
Effect of
business

combination of
entities under

The Group common control The Group
HEZEFIER
ZEBab
REE we REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FHT FHT
(as previously
reported) (as restated)
(S RTESR) (#e=E=51)
Current Liabilities ik =R
Trade payables E SRR 179,942 5,202 185,144
Other payables and accruals — E-fth < 718 & =1
&M 653,197 4,534 657,731
Amount due to ultimate FERT R AT AR
holding company FRIA 33,808 - 33,808
Amounts due to fellow FERRIRWE AR
subsidiaries A 3,623 - 3,623
Lease liabilities HEBE 6,249 - 6,249
Tax liabilities HIEEE 37,588 - 37,588
Deferred income IREWA 2,826 - 2,826
917,233 9,736 926,969
Net Current Assets RBEEZRE 1,550,336 19,229 1,569,565
Total Assets less Current #BEERABEE
Liabilities 3,617,877 54,959 3,672,836
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION /zantinued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)
Merger accounting for business combination
involving entities under common control
(continuea)
(i) Effect on the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022: (continued)

. BEMBHRENELRE
XEEBRER (2)

3.1 GEMBBRREHEE (&)

HBREGZHERZFEBEEHZ
EHETEE (B)

(ii)

$2022F 12 A31 BHEBELEE
PR REZ

Effect of
business
combination of
entities under

TE:(F)

The Group common control The Group
HEEGIEE
ZEBEG
REE we REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T THT FHT
(as previously

reported) (as restated)
(ScRIEHR) (&&=75)

Capital and Reserves EXRf#E
Share capital &7 2,941,441 - 2,941,441
Reserves (] 577,489 36,823 614,312

Equity contributable to KNARHES AFEL

owners of the Company M 3,518,930 36,823 3,555,753
Non-controlling interests JEFEH i e 25,773 18,136 43,909
Total Equity DB 3,544,703 54,959 3,599,662

Non-current Liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBAE 53,655 - 53,655
Lease liabilities HEAR 2,126 - 2,126
Deferred income PRIEWA 17,393 - 17,393
73,174 — 73,174
3,617,877 54,959 3,672,836
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NUTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
|||i.|-\ E\ij ﬁiﬁ%ﬂfj DI

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ) GZEMBHRRENUEERE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY XEFBRER &)
INFORMATION /zantinued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial 31 HFEMBHBRREREE (B)

statements (continued)
Merger accounting for business combination

BRAEZEHERZEBEHZ

involving entities under common control EHETEE (&)
(continueaq)
(i) The effect on the restatement on the Group’s equity (i) NEBER2022F1H18 2

on 1 January 2022 is summarised as follows: mBIFERAWT
Effect of
business
combination of
entities under

The Group common control The Group
HEZEGIER
ZEBab
REH 7 REHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FAT FHIT
(as previously
reported) (as restated)
(S RTESR) (#e=E=51)
Share capital [Ee&N 2,941,441 - 2,941,441
PRC statutory reserve R EDEEREE 73,894 - 73,894
Capital reserve BAREE 1,099 - 1,099
Translation reserve BREEE 93,194 (46,866) 46,328
Merger reserve AU (238,168) 344,401 106,233
Shares held for share award  1R{ER) 2B+ El
scheme Ba 2B (230) - (230)
Other reserves HAbfEE 14,403 - 14,403
Retained profits (accumulated R M (RatEsiE)
losses) 1,065,006 (256,954) 808,052
Sub-total NEE 3,950,639 40,581 3,991,220
Non-controlling interests FERE e 165,622 19,987 185,609
Total HEt 4,116,261 60,568 4,176,829

118 NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERRAR A A



BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3.
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION /zantinued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements (continued)

Merger accounting for business combination

involving entities under common control

(continuea)

(iv)  The effect of the restatement on the Group's basic
and diluted earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2022 is as follows:

GEVMBRERRELERE
XEEBRER (2)

3.1 GEMBBRREHEE (&)

HBREGZHERZFEBEEHZ
EHETEE (B)

(iv) ZAEEHZFE2022912A831H
TEEZEREAREERT
BHFEMT

2022
2022 4F
HK Cents
AL
Basic and diluted earnings per share as IR EA R HE B ) 5 B EE 7

previously reported 30.32

Adjustments arising from business HEEHI T RS M EE AR
combination under common control (0.36)
As restated RIEEZ RIS ET 29.96

(v)  The effect of the restatement on the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
ended 31 December 2022 is summarised as follows:

Increase in net cash from operating activities A& ‘& EEEE ZIH
Increase in net cash from investing activities & EBEL IR
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ~ IR& KIS EEY

(v) AEEHZE20229412A31H
EFEZHEARERERED

FERmT
2022
2022 4F
HK$'000
FHIT
S IFERIE N 5,311
& FREL N 682
EANFEE 5,993
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NUTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR BI5E

|||i.|-\

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION /zantinued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Company gains control until the
date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION /zantinued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continueq)
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the
Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION /zantinued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Merger accounting for business combination
involving businesses under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements items of the combining businesses in
which the common control combination occurs as if they
had been combined from the date when the combining
businesses first came under the control of the controlling

party.

The net assets of the combining businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised in
respect of goodwill or bargain purchase gain at the time
of common control combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining businesses from the earliest date presented or
since the date when the combining businesses first came
under the common control, where this is a shorter period.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the businesses had been
combined at the beginning of the previous reporting
period or when they first came under common control,
whichever is shorter.

Gooadwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION /zantinued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
Information about the Group’s accounting policies relating
to contracts with customers is provided in notes 5 and 28.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. When
a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is also recognised in profit or loss.
When a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

0o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

124

Foreign currencies (continueq))

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans/state-managed retirement benefit schemes/the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ) GZEMBHRRENUEERE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY XEFBRER &)
INFORMATION (zantinueq)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 32 EAREIBERER (&)
(continued)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ) GZEMBHRRENUEERE

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY XEEBRER (2)
INFORMATION (zantinued)
3.2 Material accounting policy information 32 EAREIBERER (&)
(continued)
Employee benefits (continuead) ETEH (&)

Retirement benefit costs (continued)

For LSP obligation, the Group accounts for the employer
MPF contributions expected to be offset as a deemed
employee contribution towards the LSP obligation in
terms of HKAS 19.93(a) and it is measure on a net basis.
The estimated amount of future benefit is determined
after deducting the negative service cost arising from
the accrued benefits derived from the Group’s MPF
contributions that have been vested with employees,
which are deemed to be contributions from the relevant
employees.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION /zantinued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax expenses.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit and at the time of the
transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION /zantinued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)
Taxation (continueq)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and an associate, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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NUTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IR BI5E

|||i.|-\

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION /zantinued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Taxation (continueq)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than construction
in progress as described below). Property, plant and
equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION /zantinued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continueq)
Properties in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes are carried at cost, any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management including
costs of testing whether the related assets is foretiening
properly and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.
To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented
as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position. When the consideration cannot be
allocated reliably between non-lease building element
and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land,
the entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION /zantinued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continueq)
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets other than construction in progress less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Intangible assets

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION /zantinued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)
Intangible assets (continuea)
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
(continued)
Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject
to regulatory restrictions that result in such balances
no longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b)  cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with maturity of three months or less),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to a known amount of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash
equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes.
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NUTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION /zantinued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (continueq)

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a
first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental
costs directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental
costs which the Group must incur to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All reqular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION /zantinued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contract with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 75 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NUTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION /zantinued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Financial instruments (continuea)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;

and
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° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION /zantinued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)
All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ) GZEMBHRRENUEERE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY XEFBRER &)
INFORMATION /zantinued)

3.2 EREFREEER (B

136

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)
Financial instruments (continuea)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains
and losses” line item.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION /zantinued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets
The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets
(including trade and other receivables, loan receivable,
time deposits, amounts due from fellow subsidiaries,
amount due from ultimate holding company and bank
balances) which are subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The amount of ECL
is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION /zantinued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Financial instruments (continuec))

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION /zantinued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities (including trade payables, other
payables and accruals, and amounts due to ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

140

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY /zantinued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated, which is the higher of the value in use or fair
value less costs of disposal. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit (or a group of cash-generating
units) and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which results in
downward revision of future cash flows or upward revision of
discount rate, a material impairment loss or further impairment
loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of goodwill
is HK$62,779,000 (2022: HK$63,108,000). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 18.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A

4.

AR TR ZZEEZRIR
(#&)

AT TAER 2 ERRR

TX il BREAKR z EZBRLNTHEH
REFTHAERZ EMEBERIR - %F
RERTEPRFEERB A EEHEER
HEEHEARFHE -

BEZ A REE
BEREAOREAMGTESEBEZR
TELENV (SRSEEZEMAR) 2K
El&% - BMEBEEX D FERDERA
ZERE - FAEEREEAAKEMGE
MReELSEN (IRMEELFEMAER) &
EEZARRERERABEIRE - LA
HIHE - WERRRRASREENEL
FEBERBERABEZEYTARRESRE
g EFRIRE - RIRT g IR EARERBE
it — P RERRE -

R2023F12A31H BEE@EMEA
62,779,000/ JT (20224 : 63,108,000/5
7T) o BEARI Bl REETE 2 sHERMIEE 18



b.

REVENUE h. U
a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with a) XRBEEFEHNBANSIF
customers
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
20235124318 2025128318
Hong Kong Mainland Hong Kong Mainland
and other Asia China and other Asia China
(as defined (as defined (as defined (as defined
in Note 6) in Note 6) Total in Note 6) in Note 6) Total
BAREMEN IR B REMTN HEIR
(ExBMzE6) (ERRME6) i | (exflsze) (TERMFE6) @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FhRT TiEx TR Ti5r TiEx T
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(mE51) (=51 (=35l
Types of goods and services B K RHEH
Sales of goods HERM 1,510,016 2,316,550 3,826,566 1,614,434 2,447,107 4,061,541
Others At 3,195 3,433 6,628 3,481 2,710 6,191
Total st 1,513,211 2,319,983 3,833,194 1,617,915 2,449,817 4,067,732
Timing of revenue WA
recognition
A point in time E-RRE% 1,510,455 2,319,983 3,830,438 1,614,891 2,449,817 4,064,708
Over time —BERR 2,756 - 2,756 3,024 - 3,024
Total st 1,513,211 2,319,983 3,833,194 1,617,915 2,449,817 4,067,732

Note: Others mainly include revenue from sales of scrap noodle and

provision of research and publicity services.

M R 2 e ErRErRERTRNEE

ZHA -
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NUTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHZE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

B.  REVENUE (zamtinues) b, YN (&)

142

b)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers and revenue recognition policies
Sales of goods (revenue recognised at one point
in time)

For sales of goods (including noodles, retort foods,
frozen foods, beverage products, snacks and vegetable
products), revenue is recognised when control of the
goods has transferred, being when (i) the goods have
been loaded on board for export sales; or (ii) the goods
have been delivered to the customers’ specific location
for local sales and the Group received acceptance
confirmations from customers. Once the goods are loaded
on board for export sales or delivered to the customers’
specific location for local sales, the customers have full
discretion over the manner of distribution and price to sell
the goods, and have the primary responsibility for selling
the goods and bearing the risks of obsolescence and loss
in relation to the goods. The normal credit term is 30 to
60 days upon invoice issued.

The amount of consideration the Group receives and
revenue the Group recognises varies with changes in sales
rebates the Group offers to the customers. The Group
estimates sales rebates based on analysis of historical
experience and adjusts for the most likely amount of
consideration to be received. Revenue from these sales is
recognised based on the price specified in the contract,
net of the estimated rebates, which is estimated based
on experience. Revenue is recognised only to the extent
that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not
occur. A refund liability (included in other payables and
accruals) is recognised for expected rebates to customers
in relation to sales made at the end of the reporting
period. No element of financing is deemed present as the
sales rebates are payable on demand from customers.
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b.

REVENUE (zantinued)

b)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers and revenue recognition policies
(continued)

Sales of goods (revenue recognised at one point
in time) (continueq)

Under the Group’'s standard contract terms, certain
customers have a right to exchange for expiry products
at any time without a time limit. The Group uses its
accumulated historical experience to estimate the number
of exchange on portfolio level using the expected value
method. Revenue is recognised for sales which are
considered highly probable that a significant reversal in
the cumulative revenue recognise will not occur. Based
on accumulated experience, management considers the
amount of returned goods as immaterial due to large
volume of revenue with low value of individual items
sold. Therefore, the probability of a significant reversal in
revenue from future sales return is remote.

Provision of research and publicity services
(revenue recognised over time)

Revenue from provision of research and publicity
services are recognised over time because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs.

With the provision of research and publicity services are
at period of one year or less, as permitted under HKFRS
15, the transaction price allocation to the unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.

b.

YN &)

b)

EFEHNENER ()

HEE D (KRR — I8 RN
Wezz) (&)
REBAEENRESOER  5TF
F AR RECR IR E M T X
RIRS - AEEEREBERNBERL
8% EREHEENEALEREES
BHMNEEHE - IEEMs - 2R
REHRRFTRARATETSRLE
AEEE  SERWE - RECSER
MEs BEEERRCEREERNE
BYTEKX > HERGHE—(HEE
ENERGBREAERE - Bt K
Rt 3H S AR O /Y 3R U e B KB m Y
AREMEHE -

RBRTEREERE (R —REF
IR A W 2x)
REARLEEREAFRER R
BREAERDANEAEEREY - &
P RIAS BRAS AL FE AR AN SR [ PR KO P B 4
Z Mz o

R R EERB B —F A
N BEBMERELERNE 155
k- PERERBITENNIHEY
BN
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NUTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

6.  SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is organised into operating business units according
to the major place of operations of the relevant group entities.
The Group determines its operating segments based on these
business units by reference to their respective major place of
operations, for the purpose of reporting to the chief operating
decision maker, i.e. the managing director of the Company.

Specifically, the Group's operating and reportable segments
under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are as follows:

o Hong Kong and other Asia: Manufacturing and sales of
noodles, frozen foods and other products in Hong Kong
and overseas, and provision of research and publicity
services

o Mainland China: Manufacturing and sales of noodles,
frozen foods and other products in Mainland China, and

provision of publicity services

There are no aggregation of individual operating segments to
derive the reportable segment.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (zantimues)

Segment revenue and results

Segment information about these operating and reportable

segments is presented below:

For the year ended 31 December 2023

DEER (B)

PN T |
BERAZELERABREDBZABERE
FEAT -

HZE2023512A831HLEE

Hong Kong Reportable
and Mainland segments
other Asia China total  Elimination Total
EER BE:E
Hthzz REIR ABEF HeH G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TR THET TR
Revenue O
Segment revenue from external REMBEPZ
customers DEBA 1,513,211 2,319,983 3,833,194 - 3,833,194
Inter-segment revenue REGEON 189,389 221,070 410,459 (410,459) -
Segment revenue AEUA 1,702,600 2,541,053 4,243,653 (410,459) 3,833,194
Result £
Segment results DEEE 85,085 350,602 435,687 - 435,687
Unallocated income FVALON 18,858
Exchange loss, net [EHEETE (17,572)
Interest income FBWA 27,89
Fair value changes on financial assets XA BT ABHH
at FVTPL TREENTE
Z 4,116
Impairment loss on property, plant %1% - BER&HEZ
and equipment REER (8,778)
Loss on disposal of property, plant HENE  BER
and equipment R EE (2,970)
Finance costs BB AR (270)
Consolidated profit before taxation 43 & BFATE T 456,965
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

6.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continues) 6. SEPER ©)
Segment revenue and results (continued) DEBAREE ()
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZE2022F12A318LFE
Hong Kong Reportable
and Mainland segments
other Asia China total Elimination Total
NP B
Hb g e DEEE HiH A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT TAT THT FAT
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(m=5) (BE51) € =) (=751
Revenue A
Segment revenue from external RENBEFZ
customers /\"Mﬂ}\ 1,617,915 2,449,817 4,067,732 - 4,067,732
Inter-segment revenue A EUA 208,890 220,683 429,573 (429,573)
Segment revenue DEWA 1,826,805 2,670,500 4,497,305 (429,573) 4,067,732
Result £
Segment results NEEE 112,661 313,475 426,136 - 426,136
Unallocated income AOBBMA 43,065
Exchange loss, net EERTE (11,665)
Interest income HMEHA 19,363
Fair value changes on financial assets AT B ABZHH
at FVTPL TREELTE
oy (2,839)
Impairment loss on property, plant ~ ¥1% « BE k& ER
and equipment REEE (7,027)
Impairment loss on intangible assets & & EMHEER (3.270)
Loss on disposal of property, plant LENE  BER
and equipment R EE (619)
Finance costs BB (259)
Consolidated profit before taxation ~ 4ARFATEF 462,885

Inter-segment revenue is charged at prevailing market rates.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment results represent the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of certain other income, exchange loss,
net, interest income, fair value changes on financial assets at
FVTPL, impairment losses on property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets, loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment and finance costs. This is measure reported to the
chief operating decision maker for the purpose of resource
allocation and performance assessment.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (zantimues)

Segment assets and liabilities
No segment assets and liabilities are presented as the
information is not regularly reported to the chief operating
decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of performance. Therefore, only segment revenue
and segment results are presented.

Other segment information
Amounts included in the measure of segment results:

SEBER ()

AREEREE
ARTERE RS MRBIT EREEL
EBRRETHR2KABES  ALTESR
TInHEEN,BE - Bt - E255 30U
AR DELHELE -

Hitv o &R
FHENEETANSHE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BZ2023F 1231 HIFFE
Hong Kong
and Mainland
other Asia China Total
BER
Hth 5 M HE A it et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
Amortisation of intangible assets mILEERN 3,232 1,726 4,958
Depreciation of property, plantand % - BE&&ETE
equipment 17,389 11,550 28,939
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEETE 7,012 6,718 13,730
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ2022F 12831 HIFFE
Hong Kong
and Mainland
other Asia China Total
BER
H A ZEM R B A #aEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT T T
(restated) (restated)
(#eE5) (g&=751)
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEHE 3,232 3,192 6,424
Depreciation of property, plantand 1% « BE R RIEITE
equipment 12,987 10,780 23,767
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 6,003 9,719 15,722
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

6.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (zantinsed) 6. PEBER @)

Geographical information hEER

The Group’s revenue from external customers is mainly derived REBRBISELP Z2BAETERBUR
from customers located in Hong Kong (location of domicile), BB (FfEt) - FEAM RE MR 2 %
Mainland China and others, which is determined based on the PBA - IIREBEEPZFEMBE A&
location of customers, while the Group’s non-current assets are B2 IEREEEMAES R EMIEINIA K
located in Hong Kong and other Asia, and Mainland China, FEAL - IIRBEZEEE 2 HIBAUE K
which is determined based on the geographical location of SEERRAERSEE MR (WER) B
these assets or place of group entities that hold such assets, TE °

where appropriate.

2023 2022
2023 2022 &
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT T
(restated)
(&E5)
External revenue: SNEBULA
Hong Kong BE 1,229,961 1,309,448
Mainland China B A b 2,325,737 2,457,628
Others (Vietnam, Canada, Australia, United — EfiitE (GBIFE - g A -
States of America, Taiwan, Macau, etc.) BN - EE - 8B KRME) 277,496 300,656
3,833,194 4,067,732
2023 2022
2023 & 2022 FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET BT
(restated)
(&&=75)
Non-current assets (Note): EmBEE (M) -
Hong Kong and other Asia BB REATM 925,682 776,107
Mainland China B A 1,065,964 1,155,325
1,991,646 1,931,432
Note: Non-current assets excluded financial assets at FVTPL, deferred Wit : IERBEETBIERAFEFABREZE
tax assets, loan receivable, time deposits with original maturity MEE BRERHEEE BRENR  —F
over one year and rental deposits. N EFBRERAREERSE -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (zantimues)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the respective years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022, individually contributing over 10%
of the total revenue of the Group are as follows:

SERE R (&)
FREEEFZEH

THRERF ZWARBZE 2023 F %2022
F12 A31 BIERFEMBMEAEERBUA
HBiB10% :

2023 2022

2023 & 2022 F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT T

ustomer ' '

C Al ZEA 705,301 821,380

Customer B? BB 695,571 664,586

Customer C? B2 N/ATER? 490,650
L From Mainland China ! REFE A

OTHER INCOME

From both Hong Kong and Mainland China
The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group

’ KEEERFEA
3 ARSI G AR R B AU R 10% PA b

H it A\

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
(restated)
(i E5)
Government grant related to acquisition of BRI E = 2 BT AL
assets (note 30) (i3 30) 1,381 1,345
Government grant related to expenses BB MR 2 BUN R
recognised (Note) (BR3E) 11,372 29,383
Interest income from bond receivables FEMES 2 FI2HA - 918
Interest income from bank deposits RITIF A B A 16,521 15,755
Interest income from financial assets at FVTPL 12 A FEzF ABZHNEREEER
MEBMA 11,375 2,690
Miscellaneous income HMIEWA 6,105 12,337
46,754 62,428

Note: During the year, the Group recognised government grants of
HK$11,305,000 (2022: HK$11,591,000), represents subsidies
provided by the government of Mainland China. Additionally,
for the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised
government grants of HK$17,792,000 in respect of Covid-19-
related subsidies in Hong Kong under Employment Support
Scheme provided by the Hong Kong government.

=
Bl

T FR REERRIRAFRE 11,305,000 %
7t (20224 : 11,591,000/8 7t) + BI A [
A AT IR AL RO R RE o UEA - BLZE 2022
F12A3MALLFE  AEEREBBF
RHER [RBLZE] B TE B Covid-1948 7
AL FE R IR AT B 17,792,000 /8 7T °
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O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

8.  OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HtWEEEE
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FAIT
(restated)
(g =E=51)
Exchange loss, net ME 5 518 55 (17,572) (11,665)
Fair value changes on financial assets at FVTPL {2 AFEF AIBENE R EE
NEEEF) 4,116 (2,839)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BEREEZEE
equipment (2,970) (619)
Impairment loss on property, plant and Y - WRE R&E 2R ERTE
equipment (8,778) (7,027)
Impairment loss on intangible assets | EE 2 RERE - (3,270)
(25,204) (25,420)
9.  FINANCE COSTS 0. BAFEEA
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHT
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 270 259
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10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE i HREX
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current tax: BERTHIE -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BAENEH 12,750 26,229
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax B 1 B FTAS AR 89,538 83,181
Mainland China Withholding tax AR A FE N ER 857 10,231
103,145 119,641
(Over) under provision in prior years: LAEFE (BB BB
TR -
Hong Kong Profits Tax HEBNEH (1,133) 385
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax AR T EE TSR (843) (796)
(1,976) (411)
101,169 119,230
Deferred tax (note 22) EEFLE (BIsE22) 22,647 759
123,816 119,989

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2,000,000 of profits of the qualifying group entity will be
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed
at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a
flat rate of 16.5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of Mainland China subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

The EIT Law requires withholding tax to be levied on distribution
of profits earned by Mainland China entities for profits
generated after 1 January 2008 at rate of 5% for Hong Kong
resident companies, which are the beneficial owners of the
dividend received.

BREMEBHFNEREHE  aEKEER
EEMNE2E BB m M8 ik8.25% MW
REHH - MiBBE2E BB T EFBZ
16.5% MY KRBT o DRFE MRS RIS
KHIEER 2 EEEBR 2 8N GEER
& 16.5% FIATIIE o

RIBFBECEMRESRE (DEMSEE]D
REMBREEIED - & B R B
REIMEFEZHRESH25% °

CEMEBERE  PEANMERAEL
BEREX (REKREEREAAN) BHEM
BRE 2 72008 4F 1 A1 B& & 4 2 am FlfE
HOR R IRES - 78R 5% B R S TEHT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

10.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE zantinues) 10.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

ErEHBHAZ (&)

HitpAhAERELE Z HIBR AR ADEER
ZBITHEGE -

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled from the
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit

FRMEHA X R

or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

aREAMEME2EK

AKFZ BB E SRR -

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
(restated)
(&g&:75)
Profit before taxation B 75 B 5 ) 456,965 462,885
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5% IRANHIFTSFITHE 16.5% 51 &
P& TA 75,399 76,376
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax ~ NEJ IR ST 7 i S/ 2
purpose 6,115 3,146
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BERBRBRAZ B2
purpose (4,987) (6,542)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REWRMIBEE NG E 83 4,577
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries MR B AT & 2 B8 A 7
operating in Mainland China TRBEzZE 30,879 29,852
Overprovision in prior years LA FE BRa e (1,976) 411)
Withholding tax attributable to undistributed A B PRyt fff &8 /2 B A 4% 5 B 5l
profits of Mainland China subsidiaries FE(ETEHEL 17,416 11,612
Income tax at concessionary rate RERBMETEFTER (165) (165)
Others Hh 1,052 1,544
Income tax expense for the year FRNAEHRAX 123,816 119,989
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11.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR . FEWi@F
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAIT
(restated)
(&%)
Profit for the year has been arrived at after G PAEFZ B
charging:
Amortisation of intangible assets M A ERH 4,958 6,424
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN N2 4,427 4,824
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense R AR X 2 F &R A 2,530,133 2,764,937
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BREREEITE
equipment 152,308 155,417
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories and 5 : ATF S BT E AR 2 FIE
included in cost of sales upon sales (HHERFAHERAR) (123,369) (131,650)
28,939 23,767
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENS 13,730 15,722
Total depreciation eEBEsE 42,669 39,489
Donation charged to profit or loss (Note i) FTABRMBR (M) - 100
Expenses relating to short-terms lease BEEEHEE M 7,724 9,660
Research and development expenditure R 36,202 33,162
Staff costs (Note ii) B ITAA (MEEii)
Directors’ emoluments (note 12) EEMe (MHFE12)
— fees - 1,000 1,000
— other emoluments - Htb & 19,175 19,428
— equity-settled share-based payment - R A E AR A AR
BN 1,684 1,251
21,859 21,679
Other staff costs excluding directors’ TEFBESMWE 2 M E TKA
emoluments (Note ii) (MH5E i) 705,501 707,705
Total staff costs | TR 727,360 729,384
Less: Amount capitalised in inventories and i : BIFEEFE R X8
included in cost of sales upon sales (HERFIASEERKA) (330,011) (354,140)
Less: Amount included as research and B SIA XIS 2
development expenditure as shown above AR (19,264) (20,276)
378,085 354,968

Notes:

Wi

Donation was made to a charitable fund amounted to
HK$100,000 (2023: nil) during the year ended 31 December

2022.

ii. Contributions to retirement benefit scheme included in other ii.

staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to

HK$38,596,000 (2022: HK$38,494,000).

HE2022F12A31HILFEE  MEEHE
£ EH BB A 100,000 7T (20234

) o
H E2023F12A8318 L FE - 3 A
Hth B8 TR AN BRI E 7 5T 814 500R
38,596,000 7T (2022 4F : 38,494,000
I °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

12.  DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS 12 EEREFEHTEME
2023 2022
2023 F 2022
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Directors’ fees (Note i) B5wE (KEED 1,000 1,000
Other emoluments: (Note ii) HAab B2 - (FIEEN)
Basic salaries and allowances EARH & MoE8h 19,175 19,428
Equity-settled share-based payment LAt R A B UARR ) A E BB AT 3R 1,684 1,251
21,859 21,679
Notes: 5T
The directors’ fees were mainly for their services as directors of i EEHMSEESREEEETARAREM
the Company and its subsidiaries. BRARES -
ii The other emoluments were mainly for their services in i Hitle X 2P REEREBERRRIRAK
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company SEEBHRME RS -

and the Group.
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12.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (zantinies)

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors and chief

executive of the Company are set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2023

2. EXRERATEME
ENRENFARNEEREERTEZ

&I T

H#Z2023512A31HLEE

(%)

Other emoluments
A e
Retirement Equity-
Basic benefits settled
Directors' salaries and Discretionary scheme  share-based
fees allowances bonus contributions payment Total
NEREE
2558 BINER URG A
BEHe REE RiETA eI ERAR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TER TR
A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS A BITES
Mr. Kiyotaka Ando (Note) ZHEREE (M) - 6,578 - - 1,268 7,846
Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa BEBLL - 3310 - - 144 3,454
Mr. Shinji Tatsutani RAEREA - 2,122 - - 105 2,827
Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka JIRRALE (20235
(resigned on 30 June 2023) 6 A30AEHT) - 1,219 - - 43 1,262
Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada WA EE - 3,107 - - 124 3,231
Mr. Katsunori Hiroi B RAITE (20235
(appointed on 1 July 2023) TR1BEZ) - 1,112 - - - 1,112
Mr. Xi Xiaotong ZEfEE (R 2035
(appointed on 1 July 2023) 7TR1REZRT) - 1127 - - - 1,127
B) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE  B) B 3H{1E%
DIRECTORS
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto IAGREL (20235
(resigned on 1 July 2023) 7R1HET) 125 - - - - 125
Mr. Masaru Takahashi BfEELE 250 - - - - 250
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano B EE by 250 - - - - 250
Mr. Toshiaki Sakai RAMERE 250 - - - - 250
Professor Keiko Ito FRETHR (R 20235
(appointed on 1 July 2023) TR1BEZT) 125 - - - - 125
1,000 19,175 - - 1,684 21,859
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HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

12. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (zantinies) 1. EEREREVITEME @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZE2022F12A31ALFE
Other emoluments
Afb#e

Retirement Equity-

Basic benefits settled

Directors'  salariesand  Discretionary scheme  share-based
fees  allowances bonus  contributions payment Total

IERER

E1E¢ RIRAER IRIDE
EEHE REE O BEEL GHEfR ERAER 5t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Th Th ThT TR TAL AT

A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS A BiTES
Mr. Kiyotaka Ando (Note) wREEEE () - 6,655 - - 897 7,552
Mr. Toshimichi Fujinawa BETBLL - 3,455 - - 112 3,567
Mr. Shinji Tatsutani RAEREE - 2,850 - - 77 2,927
Mr. Kazuo Kawasaka SRR S - 3,246 - - 104 3,350
Mr. Yasuhiro Yamada LBAEE - 3,222 - - 61 3,283

B) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE  B) B JFH(T2SE

DIRECTORS
Dr. Sumio Matsumoto IAmXEL 250 - - - - 250
Mr. Masaru Takahashi BEEEA 250 - - - - 250
Professor Lynne Yukie Nakano S ENE 250 - - - - 250
Mr. Toshiaki Sakai RHME R 250 - - - - 250
1,000 19,428 - - 1,251 21,679
Note: Mr. Kiyotaka Ando is the Executive Director, Chairman of the sk : ZREBEREEABAEENTEE EFR
Board and Chief Executive of the Group. REBATE -
There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief FRN - BEEHESHEFERITEMEK
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during RAIEMEEAMNE 2 2HE -
the year.
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13.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included four directors (2022: five directors), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 12. Detail of the remuneration
for the year of the remaining one (2022: nil) highest paid
employee who is neither a director nor chief executive of the
Company is set as follows:

TEL

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYRIE

13. A2maiHES

FR ARELEERFHEEEENEE
FQ022F: hBEH) FEZMEHF
BE MR 1245 -
FE) ReH

FRHT —H (2022
BE (LFARREERE

FHTE) <HEFFIFERIIMT

2023
2023 &
HK$'000
FHT

1,901

2022
2022 5
HK$'000

FHTT

The number of the highest paid employee who is not the
director of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following band is as follows:

HK$1,500,0001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 Z 2,000,000 7T

BTIREMENIEARAEERDFE

BABAT

2023
2023
No. of

employees

BEAR

2022
2022 F
No. of
employees

BEAB

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during both years.

RAEFE  AEESENETMHEST
EE MMEAMAXREESIRMALEHE
iy O B2 X A R BR B AR (B o
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HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

14, DIVIDENDS u BE
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Dividends recognised as distribution during ~ FRAERADRZEE
the year:
2022 Final - 15.16 HK cents 2022 FRHE - @R 15.16 (1L
(2022: 2021 Final - 14.56 HK cents and (20224 : 2021 FRH -
special — 2.91 HK cents) per share Fh%14.56 B LR -
2.914L) 158,224 182,333
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend RIBEERRE  ARBESERENEE
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023 of 15.82 2023F 12 A3 B EFERMREGRE
HK cents per ordinary share, in an aggregate amount of A% 15.82 %81l - &3£165,112,000 7T -
HK$165,112,000, has been proposed by the directors of the MEEFRRENEERREAFTRSHERS
Company and both are subject to approval by the shareholders A{EE °
in the forthcoming annual general meeting.
15.  EARNINGS PER SHARE 5. SlRER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RRFHEE ABRMRERERREERFT)
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the ERATEIRFTH -
following data:
2023 2022
2023 F 2022
(restated)
(&=751)
Earnings figures BREBEAENT ¢
Profit for the year attributable to owners of ~ BEREANMEERFI S
the Company for the purpose of basicand AN &) A A (G G R F)
diluted earnings per share (HK$'000) (F%T) 330,169 312,761
Number of shares R EE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares st EREARZF|ME 2 L@
for the purpose of basic earnings per share  JN#EF39 % 1,043,655,222 | 1,043,782,893
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares in  BERITIERL D BT 5 2
respect of outstanding share awards BECEB ) 2 Bk s g 36,328 58,658
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FtERESERFIME 2 L@
for the purpose of diluted earnings per g1
share 1,043,691,550 1,043,841,551
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16.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. #13% - BB RHRE
Machinery Furniture
Owned Leasehold and and Motor ~ Construction
properties improvements  equipment fixtures vehicles in progress Total
BEE MENEEE BERME  GAREE AE ERIE &
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
cosT A
At 1 January 2022 (restated) RN2F1A18 (BEF)) 1,599,726 64,615 1,080,259 150,003 23,003 68,035 2,985,641
Additions (restated) AE (885)) 1578 219 63,529 7,451 118 146,178 219,073
Disposals e (3,050) (2,119 (8.259) (2,379 (709) - (16,516)
Reclassification ENNE - - 16,190 1,404 - (17,594) -
Exchange realignment i3 (81,865) (1,209) (54,569) (14,336) (921) (5337)  (158,236)
At 31 December 2022 (restated) B2022%128318
(mE3) 1,516,389 61,507 1,097,150 142,143 21,491 191,282 3,029,962
Additions AE 16,345 - 50,050 5,465 1,331 172,782 245973
Disposals e 6,532) (8,291) (87,154) 6,209) (1.826) - (110012)
Redlassification ENNE 183,497 6,517 129,758 262 - (320,034) -
Exchange realignment ERAE (15,135) (53) (23,102) (2,057) (505) (1,608) (42,460)
At 31 December 2023 R20BE12A318 1,694,564 59,680 1,166,702 139,604 20,491 2422 3123463
DEPRECIATION AND IMPARMENT ~ $TERJI(E
At 1 January 2022 (restated) R2022451 A1 (8E7) 475,822 31,344 696,575 100,942 16,477 - 131,160
Provided for the year (restated) FERE (8E3)) 55,808 9,621 77,604 10,099 2,285 - 155,417
Impairment loss charged to profitor ~ FFABGHFERE
loss (Note) (i) - - 5,064 1963 - - 7,027
Eliminated upon disposals (restated)  HER S5 (571 - (1613) (5,081) (2,240) (685) - (9,619)
Exchange realignment Eia% (16,320) (52) (36,042) (7,163) (480) - (60,057)
At 31 December 2022 (restated) 025128318
(mE5) 515,310 39,300 738,120 103,601 17,597 - 1413928
Provided for the year FERE 56,146 8,741 74,412 11,029 1,980 - 152,308
Impairment loss charged to profitor 3t A B2 ERIE
loss (Note) (t3E) 6,138 - 2,611 29 - - 8,778
Eliminated upon disposals HERHE (3,552) (8.291) (85,689) (6,209) (1,802) - (105,543)
Exchange realignment ERAE (13,073) (32) (9,954) (2,015) (306) - (25,380)
At 31 December 2023 R2023E12A31A 560,969 39,718 719,500 106,435 17,469 - 1,444,001
CARRYING VALUES FEE
At 31 December 2023 R0B3E12A318 1,133,595 19,962 447,200 33,169 3,022 242 1679372
At 31 December 2022 (restated) M025128318
(mE5) 1,001,079 22,207 359,030 38,542 3,894 191,282 1,616,034
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

e A ()

BRERTIZIN . LAWE - BFERERER
BEFH ARG RBEERABRESER

16.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT /zantinued) 16.

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except
for construction in progress after taking into account of their

estimated residual values, are depreciated on a straight-line AT FRGETE -

basis at the following rates per annum:

Owned properties 3% - 5% 2SR Y/ES 3% E5%

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the terms of HEMERE REEFHN20%
the leases or 20% (B85 HE B%E)

Machinery and equipment 9% - 30% =N E ] 9% £ 30%

Furniture and fixtures 14% - 20% EMRRE 14% Z20%

Motor vehicles 18% - 30% E 18% £30%

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2023, the management of Mk - B E2023F12A3MBIEFE - AEE

160

the Group determined there was indication for impairment on
certain production lines due to cost inefficiency with carrying
amounts of HK$8,778,000. The recoverable amounts of the
property, plant and equipment have been determined based on
their value in use. The value in use is determined taking into
account the valuation performed by management, based on
the cash flows forecasts derived from the most recent financial
budgets for the next five years and a pre-tax discount rate of
11.29%. Accordingly, impairment losses of HK$8,778,000 had
been recognised in profit or loss during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the management of
the Group determined there was indication for impairment on
certain production lines with carrying amounts of HK$7,027,000.
The relevant assets were fully impaired during the year ended
31 December 2022 because the management considered that
the recoverable amounts of such assets, determined based on
value in use, are minimal. Accordingly, impairment losses of
HK$7,027,000 had been recognised in profit or loss during the
year ended 31 December 2022.
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FAEGREK AR ERE M H IR ETR -
ME BMEREEOTKRBSEIER
FREEEE - TRAEBEDNGTRERRE
Fri#fT 2 GELERRRAE 2 KA
EEEE RS ETE R AITE X
11.29% ° At - FAERBRERMRE
588,778,000 8 7T °

HE2022F 12831 BLEFE  AEEE
B ERAKRMERT,027,0008 LHET
AESAREDNR - 8122022912 431
AIEFE  BREEETE2RME  HaR
ERERAZSEEENEREEETEN
Al E e FEE N o FEik - 7,027,000 7T
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11.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 1. EREEE
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
THELH HEWZE wEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT FHT
As at 31 December 2023 72023128311
Carrying amounts IREE 170,237 9,757 179,994
As at 31 December 2022 #2022 12A31H
Carrying amounts BREE 178,335 8,063 186,398
For the year ended 31 December & Z2023F12H31H
2023 IEFE
Depreciation charge WEER (6,062) (7,668) (13,730)
Exchange realignment PE 5 %R (1,767) (71) (1,838)
For the year ended 31 December #Z%2022% 128311
2022 ILFE
Depreciation charge WEER (6,031) (9,691) (15,722)
Exchange realignment b 5 R (11,643) (368) (12,011)
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHIT
Expense relating to short-term leases ERARHAEENFRE 7,724 9,660
Total cash outflow for leases BEERSRY 15,804 18,037
Additions to right-of-use assets EREEERE 9,164 6,621
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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11.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (cantinveq)

For both years, the Group leases office premises, staff quarters
and motor vehicles for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed terms of one to five years (2022: one to
three years), but may have extension and termination options.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term
and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings where
its manufacturing facilities are primarily located. The Group is
the registered owner of these property interests, including the
underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were made
upfront to acquire these property interests. The leasehold land
components of these owned properties are presented separately
only if the payments made can be allocated reliably.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for staff
quarters and motor vehicles. As at 31 December 2023 and
2022, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio
of short-term leases to which the short-term lease expense
disclosed above.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$9,672,000 are recognised
with related right-of-use assets of HK$9,757,000 as at 31
December 2023 (2022: lease liabilities of HK$8,375,000 are
recognised with related right-of-use assets of HK$8,063,000).
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.
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18. GOODWILL 18. HE

Guangdong  MC Marketing Shanghai

Shunde & Sales Eastpeak

Nissin (Hong Kong) Trading
Foods Co., Ltd Limited Co. Ltd. Total

ERIEERE EBRZE LEREES
RRERAT BRAHE BRAHE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET FTER

AT COST AND CARRYING VALUES &R AL A

At 1 January 2022 ®2022F1 818 8,414 31,668 25,157 65,239
Exchange realignment R - - (2,131) (2,131)
At 31 December 2022 ®2022% 12318 8,414 31,668 23,026 63,108
Exchange realignment [ 5 3% - - (329) (329)
At 31 December 2023 W2023%12831H 8,414 31,668 22,697 62,779

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above cash
generating units (“CGU") and their major underlying
assumptions are summarised as below:

Guangdong Shunde Nissin Foods Co., Ltd.

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined based
on value in use calculation. The Group performed impairment
review for the goodwill of Guangdong Shunde Nissin Foods
Co., Ltd based on the cash flow forecast derived from the most
recent financial budgets and estimated future cash flows for the
following five years as approved by the management and using
a pre-tax discount rate of 11.7% (2022: 10.4%) per annum.
The cash flows beyond five-year are extrapolated using a 1.0%
(2022: 1.0%) per annum growth rate. Key assumptions for the
value in use calculation, are those regarding the discount rates,
growth rates and expected changes to selling prices and cost
during forecasted periods. Management estimates discount
rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates
are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices
and direct costs are based on past practices and expectations of
future changes in the market. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change of these assumptions would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount of this CGU to exceed its
aggregate recoverable amount.

NERSEABEMZAIREESRIEER
HIZHBARRZMZWT

ERIEZEBERREBRAT

ReELEM AR SBENEBRERE
BFRFIEEE - AEBREBERESRETEAE
ERIEEAEREMBRAT ZEEEITR
B EBRADERERE Ez &R
PHBEURRAREFEARERE - F
RAzE8FHATIRERE11.7% (2022 F :
10.4%) - BBAF 2R MREAA1.0%
(2022F 1 1.0%) 2 F IR FHEEH o (@
REAFEFZZ2ETEBRXLEBEETR
o 38R R P K R TE DRI BB R R 8 1B KAk
RZBHEY - EEEMEZIREER
BRI MSHERNBMEEZTERAS
EEBMZHTER - BRETERITE
BEBAGE - HEBREBENAZEY
AR LA T 518 0l R R SR 35 2 T8 B
fLtEd - BRERE  ZERB/2EME
BT e ENZ R ELEENZ
REAEBBETKOASE -
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18.

GOODWILL (zantinveq)

MC Marketing & Sales (Hong Kong) Limited

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. At 31 December 2023,
the recoverable amount of this CGU is determined taking into
account the valuation performed by management, based on
the cash flows forecasts derived from the most recent financial
budgets for the next five years and a pre-tax discount rate of
13.8% (2022: 15.0%) per annum which reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the CGU. The cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 2.0% (2022: 3.0%) per annum
growth rate. This growth rate does not exceed the average
long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key
assumptions and key parameters for the value in use calculation
include budgeted sales and expected changes to selling prices
and cost, which are determined based on management’s
expectations for the market development and market growth
forecasts. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of this CGU to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of this unit.

Shanghai Eastpeak Trading Co. Ltd.

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. At 31 December 2023,
the recoverable amount of this CGU is determined taking into
account the valuation performed by management, based on
the cash flows forecasts derived from the most recent financial
budgets for the next five years and a pre-tax discount rate of
10.5% (2022: 11.0%) per annum which reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the CGU. The cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 2.0% (2022: 3.0%) per annum
growth rate. This growth rate does not exceed the average
long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key
assumptions and key parameters for the value in use calculation
include budgeted sales and gross margin and expected changes
to selling prices and cost, which are determined based on
management’s expectations for the market development
and market growth forecasts. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount of this CGU to exceed
the aggregate recoverable amount of this unit.
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19.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9. BELEE
Customer
Trademarks relationship Total
5L EFBRAR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT FHT
COST B
At 1 January 2022 #2022 1818 78,180 25,123 103,303
Exchange realignment b 5% (403) (2,128) (2,531)
At 31 December 2022 7R2022% 12 A31H 77,777 22,995 100,772
Written off in the year F A EH (4,358) - (4,358)
Exchange realignment [ 3, 38 B8 - (465) (465)
At 31 December 2023 7R20234 12 A31H 73,419 22,530 95,949
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT ~ #$5 &m(&
At 1 January 2022 R2022F1A1H 55,674 5,459 61,133
Amortisation for the year FNEH 3,682 2,742 6,424
Impairment loss recognised in profit A IBzEHEREY R EE 1B
or loss (Note) (Bf3E) 3,270 - 3,270
Exchange realignment PE 5 A% (197) (1,312) (1,509)
At 31 December 2022 7R2022%F 12 A31H 62,429 6,889 69,318
Amortisation for the year FNEH 3,232 1,726 4,958
Eliminated on written off i EH 4 8 (4,358) - (4,358)
Exchange realignment M 4 3 B - (413) (413)
At 31 December 2023 7M20234F 12 A31H 61,303 8,202 69,505
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2023 7H2023412A31H 12,116 14,328 26,444
At 31 December 2022 72022412 8318 15,348 16,106 31,454

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the

following periods:

Trademarks 10 — 15 years

Customer relationship 13 years

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2022, the management of
the Group identified indicator of impairment on certain trademark
with carrying amount of HK$3,270,000. The recoverable amount
of the trademark was determined based on their value in use.
The relevant asset was fully impaired during the year ended 31
December 2022 because the management considered that the
recoverable amount of such asset to be minimal. Accordingly, an
impairment loss of HK$3,270,000 was recognised in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

LBV EEAGERAAEH - ZEE
TPEERIATFHABSEE -

EEe 10-154F
EFBE 134
W5t REE 20229512 A31BILFE - ALH

EREMHTES TIREEA3,270,0007 7T
RPEEFEREDTR - ZEiZma e s
AOENEFEREEET - BE202F
12A3MBLFE  HEEECTEERE -
RHREEERAEMEENTRESE
AIE o Et - F{EE1E 3,270,000 TR
HZE2022F12 A3 BIEFEEEST#R

=
s °
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
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20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE N. REBEANTZHER
2023 2022
2023 F 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiExT FHEIT
Cost of investment in an associate RIELETRBZIHERAR 120 120
Exchange realignment b 5% (4) 4
116 116

Particular of the associate of the Group is as follows: REEBEATFHBOT

Proportion of ownership
interest held by the Group

AEB iR
Name of associate Place of incorporation 2023 2022  Principal activities
BENREE SEAR AR 32 3t B 2023 F 20225  EEXH
IEREREEFRAR Mainland China 25% 25%  Designing, producing an
R A, publishing advertisements
B3t BUERBHRS

The followings are the summarised financial information of the

associate:

2023
2023 5
HKS$'000
FTHET
The Group’s share of result of the associate ~ ANEE D (HEFE QB E4E -

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in an A& BHAE & A AR 2
associate BREEAE 116

AT RBERAMBEERE

2022
2022 %
HK$'000
THAT

116
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21.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS . BATEFANEGZHNERE
E
2023 2022
2023 & 2022 FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Financial assets at FVTPL: EERAFEFABEN
SEEE .
Listed equity investment in Hong Kong (Note i) &8 iR E (MizEi) 4,874 10,237
Unlisted equity investments (Note ii) FE bRk E (BEEi) 28,341 18,862
Club debenture (Note iii) eATES (FsEiii) 5,272 5,272
38,487 34,371
Financial asset mandatorily measured at #&IRAFEF ABRTEN
FVTPL: SRIERE
Structured notes (Note iv) HEEEEE (MiEiv) 215,679 204,239
254,166 238,610
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEHAEMELZOFTET
Current assets MENAE 215,679 204,239
Non-current assets SEmENEE 38,487 34,371
254,166 238,610

Notes:

The listed equity investment represents ordinary shares of an
entity listed in Hong Kong. This investment is not held for trading,
instead, it is held for long-term strategic purposes. The directors
of the Company have elected to measure this investment at
FVTPL.

The unlisted equity investments include an amount of
HK$2,963,000 (2022: HK$2,173,000) which represents
investment in 5% unlisted equity issued by a private entity
established in Mainland China. This entity is principally engaged
in the testing and inspection of the safety and quality of food
products manufacturing and sales of instant food. The remaining
HK$25,378,000 (2022: HK$16,689,000) represents investment in
26.68% unlisted equity issued by a private entity in India, which
is engaged in processing and export of frozen-dried seafood,
spices and herbs. The Company does not have the right to
participate into the board decision and normal operation decision.
Therefore, the management considers the Company does not
have significant influence over the private entity in India.

The directors of the Company have elected to measure these
investments as FVTPL.

=
Bl

EHBREREENEELTEENTE S
B e ZBEUFFEEE - EARKIERY
KEEME - ARFERDBREFEZR
B R AR AR ©

3 bk R E B $52,963,000% T
(20224 : 2,173,000 7T) * R &+
AL 2 A BT Z5% L™
BAPZEE ZERIEREREME
2EEAARBERAREEREEHNR
& & £ 725,378,000 jT (20224 :
16,689,000 7T) FEN —BENEFLAERE
1722668%FELMBAFR ZIRE » &%
ARREMIRE DAL G« TR K
BE - APRIERELHESEREKAT
EBAEK - At - EBERARARRKE
EOLAZTBYESKTES -

ARBERCREFEZFRERRAY
BEFt ARz -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

21.

22.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(continueq)

Notes: (continued)

Club debenture is stated at fair value which is determined by
reference to market price.

The structured notes of US$27,621,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$215,679,000) (2022: US$26,184,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$204,239,000) are issued by a
financial institution in Hong Kong. These structured notes are
interest-rate linked instruments with enhanced interest rates
which accrue on a daily basis and will be automatically extended
every month by an additional month unless the Group exercises
the right to redeem the instruments on maturity date. Thus,
it is not held solely for payment for principal and interest and
therefore, it is measured at FVTPL.

Details of the fair value measurement of financial assets at
FVTPL are set out in note 36(c).

DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation of the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred
tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

21.

22,

BATEFNEGEHNEME
E (#)
FE ()

GHESEATEIE - ATENSE
TEEE -

27,621,000 7t (1HE 7 £9215,679,000
#7T) (2022 4 © 26,184,000 %7 (FBE R
#7204,239,000%87T) K AEEIERIEH —
HESSRMEERT ZESEBLEERA
Pl T A - HFIXIZBTEIRS @ B
FEAREEMN B BRI TEE R T A RF] -
GRIBEAEHERIMEA - Bt HIF
EEANRINEAERFEMIBE - FLt -
HARFERAER -

BAFEFABGENEREENAFER
EBFIEHNMEE36() °

IEIEHIR
BEFIRAMBRRE - B TREREE
EREEDRARN - T ARNB2EE
BT EHEAE BB R A 1T 2 7T

2023 2022

2023 & 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Deferred tax assets FEREFRIBEE (69,684) (57,041)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIABE 93,117 53,655
23,433 (3,386)
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22.

DEFERRED TAXATION (antinued)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets

recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior
years:

2. IRERHIE (&)

AT RE R RERFEDHEREZBRER

HABREEREE

Undistributed

Accelerated earnings of the
tax Mainland China

depreciation subsidiaries Tax losses Others Total
FEIRH
WERAR
MEREHE RAREBA HEFA Ht Foh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TR TiEx TR TiEr
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(HzE1) (W=z2)
At 1 January 2022 1202251710 36,022 19,371 - (61,634) (6,241)
(Credited) charged to profit or loss &S (GrA) M (4,341) 1381 - 3,719 759
Exchange realignment BiAE - 1222 - 874 2,096
At 31 December 2022 2022% 128318 31,681 21,974 - (57,041) (3,386)
Charged (credited) to profit or loss RERTMR (GTA) 19,081 16,559 (13.967) 974 22,647
Exchange realignment B A% - 3,822 10 340 4172
At 31 December 2023 20235124318 50,762 42,355 (13,957) (55,727) 23,433
Notes: MI3E
1. Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on 1. RHE B EFTETUE - 7200861 A
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by Mainland 1ERE . LB B A B A RIERER 2 R
China subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred M sk kB ABATAIE - 25t
taxation has been provided for in the consolidated financial B A3 B B A B R 9 B i B R S B R
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to M 2= ¥ #)847,100,0007% JT (20224 :
undistributed profits of Mainland China subsidiaries amounting to 439,480,000 70) MérE Wik &P at
approximately HK$847,100,000 (2022: HK$439,480,000). TRIRFEDIIA ©
2. Amount mainly represents deductible temporary differences 2. ZeEFERERKEN - B HE RE

arising from provision for retirement benefits, accrued salaries
and promotion expenses.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has other
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$222,908,000 (2022: HK$228,164,000) available for
offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately HK$222,908,000 (2022:
HK$228,164,000) of such deductible temporary differences.

FHERRXCEFETAES 2 ARG L2
e

RIREHIR - ANEE A H A R E
M EE #9222,908,0008 JT (20224 :
228,164,000 7T) A 43K 85 R 5% F ©
£ Bt 49222,908,000/8 T (20224 :
228,164,00078 7C) A $0 6k B B 14 2= 5E e
RELEFIEEAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

22.  DEFERRED TAXATION /zontinueq) 2. IRIERIE (&)
Notes: (continued) fisE : (48)
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had unused tax losses 3. M2023F 12 A31H  AREBARSHZF
of approximately HK$212,575,000 (2022: HK$130,081,000 TE & B4 A212,575,000%8 7T (2022 4F -
(restated)) available for offset against future profits. A deferred 130,081,000 7T (4 E%I))) + A R IK 84
tax asset has been recognised in respect of approximately RACHF o ABLAY 84,588,000 7T (2022
HK$84,588,000 (2022: nil). No deferred tax asset in respect FR)BRELEHBEE - WERY
of the tax losses of approximately HK$127,987,000 (2022: T8 &5 18 #9127,987,0007% 7T (20224 :
HK$130,081,000 (restated)) has been recognised due to the 130,081,000/ 7T (&£ E71)) MRIELS
unpredictability of future profit streams. HEE - b Th R SR TR R R A% B 2k
TR e
Included in unrecognised tax losses as at 31 December 2023 were R2023F 12 A31 B2 AR EEER A
losses of HK$104,542,000 (2022: HK$124,114,000) that will #E AT B HIJE i 2 518 104,542,000 78
expire as follows: 7C (2022 % : 124,114,000/ 7T) :
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
2023 2023 - 19,982
2024 2024 F 21,976 21,976
2025 2025 F 19,949 19,949
2026 2026 F 34,977 36,151
2027 2027 & 26,056 26,056
2028 20284 1,584 -
104,542 124,114
The remaining unrecognised tax loss as at 31 December 2023 and 20234 k2022F 12 A31H 2 T K
2022 will be carried forward indefinitely. TR E B A EIR R4 -
2 £
LOAN RECEIVABLE 23. BWESK

23.

The loan receivable is interest-free and is repayable by quarterly
instalments over a period of ten years, beginning in July 2014
and with the last payment in 2024. Repayments are guaranteed
by the shareholders of the borrower.

Details of impairment assessment of loan receivable are set out
in note 36(b).
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7R B2024F REBEERL) BEH
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24.

25,

INVENTORIES U =FE
2023 2022
2023 2022 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
(restated)
(#&=:751)
Raw materials JRA R 145,627 151,482
Work in progress TEE R 62,677 57,251
Finished goods D 206,711 233,607
415,015 442,340

TRADE RECEIVABLES/OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 25.

& 5 B ARTR, H i FEU X

DEPOSITS I EfRIERIESE
Trade receivables B 5 EWERER

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
(restated)
(&E=71)
Trade receivables — sales of goods B SRR - HEmm 378,228 434,819
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (5.374) (3,921)
372,854 430,898

At 1 January 2022, trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to HK$480,613,000 (restated).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

25.  TRADE RECEIVABLES/OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 25.

DEPOSITS (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of
allowance for credit losses, presented based on the invoice date,
which approximates the respective revenue recognition dates at
the end of the reporting period.

B 5 FEW AR H fi FE U X
- BRRERESE (&)

EHEKERR (&)

AT ARMEHRIZER A H (ER U AR
RAMRE) 2528 5B (HkR(E
EEBRRE) 2RBROM -

2023 2022

2023 & 20224

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAET

(restated)

(&&&:7)

0 to 30 days 0E30K 268,154 335,137
31 to 90 days 31E90K 92,198 81,089
91 to 180 days 91 E 180Kk 12,502 14,672
372,854 430,898

The average credit period for sales of goods is ranged from 30
days to 120 days.

As at 31 December 2023, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$154,449,000 (2022: HK$215,023,000) (restated) which
are past due as at the end of the reporting period. Out of the past
due balances, HK$6,393,000 (2022: HK$5,342,000) has been
past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default
as the customers have good repayment history during the year
and over the past years, and these customers are sizeable foods
distributors and retailors in Hong Kong and the Mainland China.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set
out in note 36(b).

11 NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERRAR A A

HEEMmZFHEERNFI0HE1208 -

MR2023F12A31H AEBE2E HEK
RSB IERME A5 154,449,000 7%
7T (2022 4F : 215,023,000 7T (KK &E71)))
ZFEWERSR - A ER G BRE @A -
R HA 58 » 6,393,000/8 7T (2022 £ -
5,342,000 7T) 2@ EI90 RSk IA | - M
BREBEY AAREPRAFENBTAF
BERIFENCTE  BRZEEFPREA
FHBERHARREROEARTER
WZEREFPHEEEMBES -

B 5 R WR R Z R E R S B M
36(b) °



25,

TRADE RECEIVABLES/OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND

DEPOSITS (continued)

Other receivables, prepayments and deposits
The following is the analysis of other receivables, prepayments

B 5 FEW AR H fi FE U X
- BRRERESE (&)

HtpEWRRIR - BN RERES

LA A i AR EL A B JOGROR - TR AR

and deposits at the end of the reporting period: H RIS 29T -
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
(restated)
(se=E5)
Other receivables Hth et 5RIE 24,696 41,872
Prepayments TEfTFRIA 15,109 18,713
Prepaid value added tax and other taxes TR ER R E AT 10,516 8,653
Rental deposits HEZRe 2,516 6,799
Utilities and other deposits KERAMIZE 15,997 13,873
68,834 89,910

Analysed as: pakiiP = I

Current RNER 66,318 88,121
Non-current FERNEA 2,516 1,789
68,834 89,910

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables are set

out in note 36(b).

H A & W AR SR 2 R B AT A B B M

36(b) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

26.  AMOUNT/(S) DUE FROM (TO) ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY/
FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables from
related companies (which are unsecured, interest-free and with
credit terms ranging from 30 to 40 days) presented based on
the invoice date, which approximate the respective revenue
recognition dates at the end of the reporting period.

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries:

26. U (FB1T) RN A
/TE) Z Mt B R SR IR
AT AR SR AR R B 1 (SE AT
RASIEE) 2512 BB AR SEKER
(BRIER 2B RAB30E0REEH)
2 IR -

e W [5) 2 B B8 2 R 0OR -

2023 2022

2023 F 2022 %

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

0 to 30 days 0E30K 23,263 28,642
31 to 90 days 31290k 11,086 5,940
34,349 34,582

At 31 December 2023, included in the Group’s trade receivables
with fellow subsidiaries are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$11,086,000 (2022: HK$5,940,000) which are
past due as at the reporting period. No balances are past due
over 90 days or more at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables to related
companies (which are unsecured, interest-free and with credit
terms ranging from 30 to 40 days) presented based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period.
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2023128318 AEEKRERRK
BRAIZEBEZEUERBIERAELER
11,086,000 7T (2022 F : 5,940,00078
L) ZEMWEER - BERIERREHE S
Hy o 7A20234F %2022 12 A31 1 » &
R HARB 90 Rk LA E o
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26.

AMOUNT(S) DUE FROM (T0) ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY/
FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES (zontinuez)

Amount due to ultimate holding company:

5. MM (REA) BASHRER A
S ERMBARIE (£

BN RAZER AR

2023 2022
2023 2022 &
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT T
0 to 30 days 0&30K 11,808 16,511
31 to 90 days 31 290K 7,091 6,502
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180K 10,070 3,608
Over 180 days i 180 K 724 7,187
29,693 33,808

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries: AN PASE S
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
0 to 30 days 0EF30K 4,231 3,584
31 to 90 days 31290k 6 7
91 to 180 days 91 £180K 95 32
4,332 3,623

Other than disclosed in above, the remaining amount is in
non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Details of impairment assessment of amounts due from ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries are set out in note
36(b).

B EXPrREE 2N RBRFARIEES
HE - EEA RERARBEREEE -

63 St ONCIDNIEESIN)E-MNCIE -8 b

ERHE BN 36(b) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

27.  TIME DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2. EHRERURBRERREE
B
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from iR 17 #5 £ 120.01% £5.33% (2022 F :
0.01% t0 5.33% (2022: 0.01% to 3.85%) per annum. 0.01% & 3.85%) 2 TiHFF KT8 -
The time deposits with original maturity over three months but [REIEAE =18 A LA H(ET B —F 8 5E 5
not exceeding one year carry fixed interest rate ranging from F M 0.10% £5.33% (2022 F : 0.21%
0.10% t0 5.33% (2022: 0.21% to 2.39%) per annum. %£2.39%) ZEFEFHEETE ©
The time deposits with original maturity over one year carry REBE—F L EOEBFRIZ1.90% %
fixed interest rate ranging from 1.90% to 3.85% (2022: 3.15% 3.85% (20224 : 3.15% £3.85%) 2
t0 3.85%) per annum. TEFFEGE -
Details of impairment assessment of time deposits over three ZEAN BB -—FERERARR S
months or over one year, and cash and cash equivalents are set kBeSEMRAFHFBEHNME
out in note 36(b). 36(b) °
28.  TRADE PAYABLES/OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 8. BHEMRHEMEMRR
EREFER
Trade payables BEZEMNIRM
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented LTARBESHRZEZAHZIE S
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: FEATARFERER 4T -
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
(restated)
(#e=E5)
0 to 30 days 0E30K 110,643 137,038
31 t0 90 days 312 90K 38,534 34,410
91 to 180 days 91Z 180 K 922 13,680
Over 180 days i 180K 221 16
150,320 185,144
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 60 days. ERERZFHEERAOX -

116 NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BERRAR A A



28.

TRADE PAYABLES/OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS /cantinued)

28. EBSEMIRMHithEMNK
EHREFER &)

Other payables and accruals HisEARERETER
The following is the analysis of other payables and accruals at AT AR RS BRH B R IE R BT &
the end of the reporting period: Rz -
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
(restated)
(se=E5)
Accruals for promotion and advertising EEREERAX ZEGTER
expenses 254,799 243,762
Construction payables FETEEEEFRIA 12,052 7,028
Staff costs and welfare payables 8 TR R FERS 12 A 109,007 91,833
Value added tax and other tax payables FERIGER R EMBIIE 9,249 20,400
Refund liabilities (Note) REEE () 124,998 122,767
Other payables and accruals EMENRIEREER 156,633 171,941
666,738 657,731

Note: The refund liabilities arose from outstanding rebates in relation to

the goods sold to certain customers.
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NUTES T0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
|||i.|-\ E\ij ﬁiﬁ%ﬂfj DI

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

29.  LEASE LIABILITIES 8. HE&AR
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAIT
Lease liabilities payable: ENEEE8E:
Within one year —FNR 8,559 6,249
Within a period of more than one year but —F A LB BART
not exceeding two years 770 1,370
Within a period of more than two years but ~ FRFIA BT @BBERF
not exceeding five years 343 756
9,672 8,375
Less: Amount due for settlement with B mEBAEE AR 12MEAR
12 months shown under current liabilities BHAM R S E RO (8,559) (6,249)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months ~ FERENBEE TR 12{EF 1%
shown under non-current liabilities FH M RN A E ROE 1,113 2,126
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to HERARHEEABNME TGS E TN X
lease liabilities range from 3.45% to 4.5% (2022: from 3.5% to N F3.45% £4.5% (2022 F M F3.5%
4.75%). F£4.75%) °
Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies of the HEREUEREEER 2 HEEEIIE -

functional currencies of the relevant group entities.
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30.

DEFERRED INCOME

0. ETEN
TR B F BN ED

The following is the movement in deferred income in the

current and prior year.

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 &
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
At the beginning of the year F1) 20,219 21,391
Government grant received in relation to BLUE & EE PR /R AL
acquisition of assets (Note) (FF#E) 6,441 3,483
Amortisation in the current year REF S (1,381) (1,345)
Exchange realignment PE 3 S % (3,286) (3,310)
At end of the year FIR 21,993 20,219
Analysed as: DIE
Current ViE2) 3,378 2,826
Non-current IETE 18,615 17,393
21,993 20,219

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group received
government subsidy of HK$6,441,000 (2022: HK$3,483,000) for
the acquisition of machinery in Mainland China. The amount has
been treated as deferred income. The amount is amortised and
transferred to income over the useful lives of the relevant asset.

Mt -

H OE2023F12A31B L FE K&
] 3t 7 FR B A b, U B R S BT A B
6,441,000 7T (2022 4F : 3,483,000/% 7T) °
ZEERABETEMARE - 225N I8
BECAFHANBHEIERZHA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHZE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

31.

SHARE CAPITAL 3. B
Number of
shares Share capital
BB E [
HK$'000
T
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHRE :
At 1 January 2022 K202 1H1H 1,047,790,480 2,941,441
Share bought back and cancelled (Note) B LI 8s 2 Bty (HaE) (4,099,000) -
At 31 December 2022 and R2022F 12 A31B R
31 December 2023 2023412 A31H 1,043,691,480 2,941,441

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
bought back its own ordinary shares through The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as follows:

Number of

ordinary shares

bought back

2EE

ERRREE

Month of buy-back (Note)
& A 6 i)

January 2022 2022F1R 4,099,000

HZE2022 12831 BILEE  KAAFSE
BEEBMARIERATRBEL S L
BRI ¢

Aggregate

Consideration per share consideration
BRKE paid
Highest Lowest 24
&& -3 BRE

HK$ HK$ HK$'000

BT BT TR

6.50 6.17 25,988

Note: The Company was authorised at its annual general meetings to
buy back its own ordinary shares not exceeding 10% of the total
number of its issued shares as at the dates of the resolutions
being passed. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company bought back 4,099,000 ordinary shares, and all were
cancelled during the same period. No share was bought back for
cancellation during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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31.

32.

SHARE CAPITAL (zontinues) N A ®)
Details of the shares held under the share award scheme (note AT AIREM R 32 I Hh REET &I A 2 %
32) are set out below: IS -
Average Number of Value of
purchase price shares held shares
FHBEE EROEE B EE
HK$ HK$'000
BT FET
At 1 January 2022 M2022F1A1H 4.4 52,320 230
Shares purchased from secondary f& 1D E2ENETEIIE T &
market under share award scheme E-_MIGEBENRN 6.3 264,510 1,664
Shares vested under share award RIERNDRBFEC RSB
scheme 19 6.0 (301,310) (1,801)
At 31 December 2022 R2022912 A31H 6.0 15,520 93
Shares purchased from secondary f& 1D 2RI EIE T &
market under share award scheme E-_MIGEENRGD 6.2 287,000 1,793
Shares vested under share award RIERNORBFECHES
scheme 17 6.3 (266,420) (1,684)
At 31 December 2023 2023412 A31H 5.6 36,100 202
. y £h 75
SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 3. UK ARERBAZRXS

On 7 March 2016, a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) was adopted by the Company. The Share
Award Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing from 7 March 2016. Pursuant to the rules of the
Share Award Scheme, the Group has set up a trust for the
purpose of administering the Share Award Scheme and holding
the awarded shares before they are vested.

On 31 March 2022, 30 June 2022 and 10 October 2022, a total
of 301,310 award shares (the “2022" Awarded Shares”) of the
Company have been awarded and vested to certain selected
employees (including but not limited to directors, executives,
officers and other employees, whether full-time or part-time, of
any members of the Group) at no consideration.

MR2016F3 A7H » AR AIHEM K =ZE
T8 (MR BB T 81 - B 2B & &
B2016F3A7ABAEM  AHTF - R
B EENGTEI 2 R A - REEBRLE
U ERRDERERREBAIREAE
HBEIR -

M2022463 8318 202246 A308 &
2022108108 » £ E301,310 A 2
AEEENAR 1D ([2022 F BRI ) EAE
REETEEBRETEEEREES (BEE
TRARNEEEMKERRIZES  1TH
AE - BABERHEMES (TwmEhisik
) e
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HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

32.  SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS /zantinuer) 3. URMBAERARRS (@)
On 6 April 2023 and 29 December 2023, a total of 266,420 M2023F4A6H K&2023F12H298 -
award shares (the “2023 Awarded Shares”) of the Company B 266,420 AN T RN () ([2023 F
have been awarded and vested to certain selected employees BRG] EXEREXZTEEBRET
(including but not limited to directors, executives, officers CRFREE (BREETRPAEBIMRKE
and other employees, whether full-time or part-time, of any RAIZES - (THAE - @ABE REAM
members of the Group) at no consideration. BE (TwmEBFHER)) -

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s TEREBFNEEFEHARTRMDEE
share award held by employees during the year: K E) -
Number of shares awarded
RERGHEA
Balance as at Awarded Vested Balance as at
1 January during during 31 December
Category of grantees Date of grant Vesting period 2023 the year the year 2023
R03E R203E
1818 124318
ERAER RILRH | B 28 FRER FRER &8
Directors 6 April 2023 6 April 2023 - 99,880 (99,880) -
5% 0354868 0354868
Directors 29 September 2023 29 September 2023 - 166,540 (166,540) -
EE 203%59A 298 20234598298
- 266,420 (266,420) -
Number of shares awarded
Ll
Balance as at Awarded Vested Balance as at
1 January during during 31 December
Category of grantees Date of grant Vesting period 2022 the year the year 2022
W00E 00
1A1R 12A31R
ERABE KA FR4E i ERER) ENGRE i
Employees 31 March 2022 31 March 2022 - 81,600 (81,600) -
g8 02F3A318 202234318
Directors 30June 2022 30 June 2022 - 112,620 (112,620) -
£ 2022567308 2022%6A308
Directors 10 October 2022 10 October 2022 - 107,090 (107,090) -
£% 02810108 02F10A108
- 301,310 (301,310) -
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32.

33.

34.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS /zantinued) . UBRKAERERXS &)
The estimated fair values of the 2022 Awarded Shares and R B IR 2 TG A(E - 2022 F 58
2023 Awarded Shares are HK$5.63 and HK$5.94 respectively AR ) ]2 2023 FHEENIR D 2 et AT ED
per share based on the market trading price of the share at the R AERR5.63 7T % 5.948 7T 2022 F #
grant date. The total fair value of the 2022 Awarded Shares and B (D K 2023 FEEENIR D < R FEHBRED
2023 Awarded Shares are HK$1,697,000 and HK$1,684,000 A5 1,697,000 7T M 1,684,000 7T °
respectively.
The Group recognised the total expense of HK$1,684,000 for RNEENREZE2023F12A831HIEFE
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: HK$1,697,000) in RARRRE 2R REERM B8
relation to share award granted by the Company. 1,684,000/ 7T (20224F : 1,697,000/ 7T) °
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 3. BAKIE
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition B % 4B R ERA B HRER A
of property, plant and equipment BEcEBRBEDE BER
contracted for but not provided in the BB EARTH
consolidated financial statements 49,983 93,033
RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME U, RIREFRIEFE

Defined contribution plan

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme
which is registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (the "ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong.
The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. Employees who
were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment
of the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the
ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all
new employees joining the Group on or after 1 December 2000
are required to join the MPF Scheme.

ERAKEE

AEE 2 RRIBR RN BIRGIEMZ
EBHAET 8 ([BREAGE]) REER
BRFHIEAER T ERPIK B HIER
EaEtd ([BEestal])  ZEFTEZE
ERASEEESRRE  AXFEATE
ZESRHA - ERED B LATABE
RAGTEIREZRETEBEBE2 EBE
BNGHEERBESFTE - HMNE2000
FIRZAVARZEMAREEZ AR

BRIWASHBEDE -
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34.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME (zaminuer)

Defined contribution plan (continued)

For members of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the plan
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a monthly
cap of HK$1,500.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from
both employees and the Group at 5% of the employee’s basic
salary. The pension costs charged to profit or loss represent
contributions paid or payable to these funds by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of these schemes.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in Mainland China
are members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the Government of Mainland China. The Group’s
Mainland China subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their employees’ payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make
the required contributions under the scheme.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of HK$38,596,000
(2022: HK$38,494,000) represents contributions payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
plans.

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were no forfeited
contributions which arose upon employees leaving the
retirements plan and which are available to reduce the
contributions payable in the future years.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A

34,

BRIAEFIRTE (2)

EREMEREE (&)
HEESEKEMS ~EBERHEES
FHEERREETIE Z 5% FETEEDHR

FAMRERA1,50087T -

BEERAFERERMAKSERREEER
ez 5% FAFHHK - BIEEMRZE
RERAERNEBRZEAEMREZLE
EEHREEL 2K

ARB 2 FEAEHBAREESETE
B EE 2 IR EIRRREMEE - AAQ
T¢IW%W% FIRREETIEZ X

D HRRZGR IR R ET 8K - AR 3%
Ehﬂ%%ﬁﬁ 7R B R 5% R ARAE AR
FNzE—BEERRBZAIMEEHR
TR e

>

}

W IE = R 2 48 B % 38,596,000/ 7T
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34.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME (aninuer)

Defined benefit plan

Obligation to pay LSP under Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57)

For the Group’s subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong, pursuant
to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57, the Group has the
obligation to pay LSP to qualifying employees in Hong Kong
under certain circumstances (e.g. dismissal by employers or
upon retirement), subject to a minimum of 5 years employment
period, based on the following formula:

Last monthly wages (before termination of employment) x 2/3
x Years of service

Last monthly wages are capped at HK$22,500 while the
amount of long service payment shall not exceed HK$390,000.
This obligation is accounted for as a post-employment defined
benefit plan.

Furthermore, the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
passed in 1995 permits the Group to utilise the Group’s
mandatory MPF contributions, plus/minus any positive/negative
returns thereof, for the purpose of offsetting LSP payable to an
employee (the "Offsetting Arrangement’).

The Amendment Ordinance was gazetted on 17 June 2022,
which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits derived from
employers’ mandatory MPF contributions to offset the LSP. The
Abolition will officially take effect on the Transition Date (i.e.,
1 May 2025). Separately, the Government of the HKSAR is also
expected to introduce a subsidy scheme to assist employers for
a period of 25 years after the Transition Date on the LSP payable
by employers up to a certain amount per employee per year.

34,

BIREFIFTE (&)

EFBEBAEE

RIZEE (IEIBIXA]) (% 57 B) X7
RARHE &5
RAREREELENHEBEAR - RER
BiEPIES7E - AEEREERBETH
(B RIBEIERKR) ERUATAN
AR RENELSEEXNRARES -
REERARSF

RIE—EATE (RBEELR) x 2/3 < IR
BER

RE—EATE ERR22,500%8T Mk
HRB LW TS 18390,000E 7T °
FZEEERBREERENABIAR

EESN - 1995 FIBIBRY A BIE ATE LTS
RO AFF RSB R ERAKE R BRE SR
B L/ REERIE BRI A
HEEHRENRRRES (EEZH]) -

BRI IEFIR2022F6 178 HIE - B

BB BB ER T EENBIIMHIEE
e R RHRGE € - BUELZHEB R A
JEBE (BN202545 A1H) IEXNAER © It
G BB AT R BUF TR ERE B
B 25 FNHE L —BHAETE - LEBIE
FXNEBNEISF —EoENRERY
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34.

3b.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME (zaminuer)

Defined benefit plan (continued)

Obligation to pay LSP under Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57) (continueq)

Under the Amendment Ordinance, the Group’s mandatory MPF
contributions, plus/minus any positive/negative returns, after
the Transition Date can continue to be applied to offset the
pre-Transition Date LSP obligation but are not eligible to offset
the post-Transition Date LSP obligation. Furthermore, the LSP
obligation before the Transition Date will be grandfathered
and calculated based on the Last monthly wages immediately
preceding the Transition Date and the years of service up
to that date. The Amendment Ordinance has impact on the
Group’s LSP liability with respect to employees that participate
in MPF Scheme and the Group has accounted for the offsetting
mechanism and its abolition as disclosed in note 2.2.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the generation
of profits from its operations. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with its capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends and
new share issues.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. ERTH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) &MITAEDE
2023 2022
2023 & 20224
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T T
(restated)
(BE5)
Financial assets EWMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFABSZEMEE 254,166 238,610
Financial assets at amortised cost IR A S REE 1,897,942 1,887,081
Financial liabilities EA =N
Amortised cost HSH A AR 716,836 737,139
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) EREMEEBERBER

policies
The Group’s major financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes.

The risks associated with the financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

REEZ T ESR T ANEBMTHR

=

S F T AR ZER SRS ER
(% ﬁﬁﬂ ‘T'JT‘HE REMERR

[y =& E

»R El/\ méﬂﬁiﬂ“”ﬁ
“?ﬁﬂﬁZﬁ%FTXﬁ%OE
[EEE R ERZE R ARRE
BREHREE 25 -
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36.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (zantinued) 6. IR ©
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) ¢REMESEREREEK (&)

policies (continued)
Market risk mEE R
The Group does not enter into or trade in derivative AN EN R E R IR B M9ET L3k
financial instruments either for hedging or speculative BEMESRMTIE - FR  FAEEZ
purposes. There has been no change to the Group's misEEsS TRt E LR
exposure to market risks or the manner in which it AmEE) o

manages and measures the risk during the year.

(i)  Currency risk ()  EEER
The Company and several subsidiaries of the KRR RAREETHE ARG
Company have foreign currency sales and BEINE - SAREBEEEINE
purchases, which expose the Group to foreign [2\BE o

currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign R EER - NEBAINE R
currency denominated monetary assets and BrEBKEEREBBECZR
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting HEWT :

period are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
EE =L
2023 2022 2023 2022

2023 F 2022 2023 & 2022 &
HK$'000 HK$'000 | HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T FET T

(restated) (restated)
(g=71) (gg=751)
United States Dollar (“US$”) =t ([ZET]) 344,081 182,111 21,812 12,288
Japanese Yen (“JPY") RE([HE]) 7,602 13,283 19,628 17,721
RMB AR 388,456 332,970 146,027 153,653
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36.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continueq)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

As HK$ is currently pegged to US$, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s exposure
to fluctuation in HK$ against US$ is limited. The
Group's currency risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuations of JPY and RMB against HK$.

The Group currently does not have a foreign
exchange hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange exposure should the
need arises.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity
to a 5% (2022: 5%) increase and decrease in the
relevant foreign currencies against the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities. 5% (2022:
5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
end of the reporting period for a 5% (2022: 5%)
change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates an increase in profit for the year
where the relevant foreign currencies strengthen
5% against the relevant functional currencies of the
relevant group entities. For a 5% weakening of the
relevant foreign currencies against the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit for the year and the balances below would be
negative.

36.

ST H (&)
(b) ¢REARSEEERKE (&)

mE R ()

() EEERE (&)
ES AR RETENS AR
REERAEAEEMAT 2
THELZEXRESHRAKRE
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36.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continueq)

(i)

(if)

Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

JPY against HK$ HEX AT
RMB against HK$ AREH BT

36.

ST H (&)
(b) ¢REARSEEERKE (&)

TSR (&)
() EEm@EE (&)
BREEDHN ()
Profit for the year
FRER
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 %
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
502 (185)
10,121 7,486

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate time deposits and lease
liabilities. The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to the fluctuation of
prevailing market interest rate on time deposits
and bank balances. The Group currently does not
have interest rate hedging policy, however, the
management monitors interest rate exposure on
dynamic basis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
overall interest rate risks for bank balances and
structured rates are not significant as bank balances
and structured rates are all short term and interest
rates are currently at low level with no significant
changes are expected for the foreseeable future.
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36.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continueq)

(iii)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities measured
at FVTPL. The Group is also exposed to certain price
risks in relation to unquoted equity securities for
investees for long term strategic purposes which
had been measured at FVTPL. The Group monitors
the price risk through regular reviews of the market
price of the listed equity securities and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risks at the end of the reporting period. Sensitivity
analyses for unquoted equity securities with fair
value measurement categorised within Level 3 were
disclosed in note 36(c).

If the prices of the listed equity instruments had
been 35% (2022: 35%) lower, the profit for the
year would decrease by HK$1,706,000 (2022:
HK$3,583,000) for the Group as a result of the
changes in fair value of investments at FVTPL.

The management does not anticipate a significant
increase in market bid price on the listed equity
instrument in the next financial year having regard
to the trends in the market bid price. Accordingly,
no sensitivity analysis for increase in such prices is
presented.

36.
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36.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group’s
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade
receivables, amounts due from fellow subsidiaries which
are in trade nature, other receivables, loan receivable,
amount due from ultimate holding company, bank
balances, time deposits with original maturity over three
months and time deposits with original maturity over
one year. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated
with its financial assets, except that the credit risks
associated with loan receivable is mitigated because it is
secured over the guarantee provided by the shareholders
of the debtor.

Trade receivables and amounts due from fellow

subsidiaries which are in trade nature arising from

contracts with customers

(i) Trade receivables
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group
uses an internal credit scoring system to assess the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed to
customers are reviewed regularly. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 22%
(2022: 24%) and 74% (2022: 66% (restated)) of
the total trade receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.
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36.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continueq)
Trade receivables and amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries which are in trade nature arising from
contracts with customers (continued)

@

(ii)

Trade receivables (continued)

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade balances
individually for customers with significant balances
and others based on provision matrix based on
shared credit risk characteristics by reference
to repayment histories for recurring customers
and past due exposure for the new customers.
Impairment loss of HK$1,453,000 (2022:
HK$718,000) was recognised during the year.
Details of the quantitative disclosures are set out
below in this note.

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries which are in
trade nature

The Group performs impairment assessment under
ECL model. The balances with fellow subsidiaries
are considered as low credit risk since those fellow
subsidiaries are with good repayment history and
strong financial capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term. Thus, the
directors of the Company consider the impairment
loss was insignificant to be recognised during the
year.

6. €T H (&)
(b) ¢REARSEEERKE (&)

=E R R EETE ()

g

BRIELZ B ZEWFRI L

JEY R Z 1B 2 Al (BB S
&) (&)

(i)

(ii)

Z SRR (&)

o REEREHEESR
BARHEBEREHBOREPZ
B ST ERRERE
I 1% B 4 B T B E b TR
Bfffh - BREXRMNEER
BEEG 2ZEEFEEPH
EREL LB ELNERN
BmERER - FRERNES
81,453,000/ T (20224 :
718,00087T) - ERA={L
B A

BRI B ARRIE (BE
FME)

AEBERBEHEEBRERN
EITRERE - BREZMER
AIMESRRAERER - HR%
ZREAMBRARESRIFER
R EEMBEN - L
REEHANAHNRERESR
e Bk ARBAEZEAR/R
FAEREBERIERTRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BHZE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

36.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues) % £MTHE#)
(b) SREREERBEERBE (£)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

194

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continueq)
Other receivables/loan receivables/amount due
from ultimate holding company/bank balances/time
deposits with original maturity over three months/
time deposits with original maturity over one year/
bond receivables

@

(ii)

Loan receivable

The directors of the Company estimate the
estimated loss rates by using 12m ECL based on
historical credit loss experience of the debtor.
Based on assessment by the directors of the
Company, the loss given default is low in view of
the regular settlement of debtor without any delay
in settlement of instalment in the current and
previous years. Thus, the directors of the Company
consider the impairment loss was insignificant to be
recognised during the year.

Other receivables and amount due from ultimate
holding company

The directors of the Company make periodic
individual assessment on the recoverability of
other receivables and amount due from ultimate
holding company based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportive forward-looking information. The
directors of the Company believe that there are no
significant increase in credit risk of these amounts
since initial recognition and the Group provided
impairment based on 12m ECL basis. Thus, the
directors of the Company consider the impairment
loss was insignificant to be recognised during the
year.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A

EERERBEFS (&)

E YR TEWKE S TEHK

RAFER D IR RITAE RS

[ 2/ H 8 48 = 18] A 69, & BifF

IR BIRI A —F L FERIER

JEW &S

() FERER
RARESERNEHEANBE
EEEIBER - L1218 A TES
EEEIBE HTIEAER - R
BARDREENTE  ERR
RNEERBEFE  EHAN
TE R E ST IEE S B4
B ENBRERE - At
RAREZRANFRERK
BEBBNTRE -

(i) b MR TR N U R R R
NG
ARBESFENEL XA
% BELREAERARE
1 B0 B R S E B MR IR e e
W iR AR PR IR ISR IR A A] (@ 4R
Y1 i E BB R RE AL » AR A
EEHE ZSFHENEER
B )R HE R R R B KR
e mASER 128 EEE
EEBRME - Bt AR
FIEER /N FAERNRE
B RE -



36.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continueq)

Other receivables/loan receivables/amount due

from ultimate holding company/bank balances/time

deposits with original maturity over three months/
time deposits with original maturity over one year/
bond receivables (continued)

(i)  Time deposits with original maturity over three
months, time deposits with original maturity over
one year, bank balances
The credit risks on bank balances, time deposits
with original maturity over three months and time
deposits with original maturity over one year are
limited because the counterparties are financial
institutions with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies. The Group
assessed 12m ECL for bank balances, time deposits
with original maturity over three months and time
deposits with original maturity over one year by
reference to information relating to probability of
default and loss given default of the respective
credit rating grades published by external credit
rating agencies. Based on the average loss rates, the
directors of the Company consider the impairment
loss was insignificant to be recognised during the
year.

ST H (&)
(b) ¢REARSEEERKE (&)

EERERBEFS (&)

E YR TEWKE S TEHK

RAFER D IR RITAE RS

[ 2/ H 8 48 = 18] A 69, & BifF

S IREIBIH —F X _FERIES

JEWES (&)

(i) REBE=Z@ANLETHE
FREEBBE—FULEHE
A RARITHE S
RITHES - REHA @A
FEHERRRREE —F U
FTEBEZROEERRBRER
AAEHF R HEREETR
BEL T EETRNS R
o REEZEHINBEHT
BHBEBEMHBEESAEERN
BREHNMERENBLREE
B EHEIRITA R - R EIH
H=MAMNEESHFEHREEREE
HA—FU EEBFERN12ME
RAEHMEEEE - RIEFHIE
KE - ARBEERANRFR
HREBEBEBNTRE -
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O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HZE2023F 12 A3 HIEFE

36.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continueq)

Impairment assessment
The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Internal
credit rating

AR EER

Low risk

BER

Medium risk

hER

Watch list

)

Loss

BhE

Write-off

i

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED |

Description

B

The counterparty has a low risk of default
and does not have any past-due amounts

O B EERATE

BFTEONER

Debtor frequently repays after due dates
but usually settle in full

EBARERIMARES  BREE
PEER

There have been significant increases in

credit risk since initial recognition through

information developed internally or
external resources

RERNBEHFIMIERABEEERR
B TR BERAR A ELE AN

There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit-impaired

BREBRTAECRAEENE

There is evidence indicating that the debtor

is in severe financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic prospect of
recovery
BREFRTEBANREAMBERE -
EXEEYERABRNEFIE

36.

ST H (&)

(b) THEAMEEBEERBE (&)

=E R R EETE ()

JBLEEFA

AEBENABEERBRIFRBIEAT

EhlE

Trade receivable

and amounts

due from fellow
subsidiaries which
are in trade nature
B S ERERR
DGR NG
(BEZME)

Lifetime ECL

- not credit-impaired
L HREEERR

- REEEERE

Lifetime ECL

- not credit-impaired
2HREHEEESE

- AEECERE

Lifetime ECL

- not credit-impaired
L HRBEERR

- AEEEERE
Lifetime ECL

— credit-impaired
PHEBEERR

- BEEERE

Amount is written off

R

Other financial assets
at amortised cost

REHERATHRN
HitemEE

12m ECL

REARBEESE

12m ECL

NEAAESHEESE

Lifetime ECL
- not credit-impaired

2 HRMEEER
- REECERE
Lifetime ECL
- credit-impaired
PHRBEEER
-BERERE

Amount is written off

KB



36.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS /zantinued) 6. &I HE @)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) ¢REMESEREREEK (&)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) EERERBEFFE (&)
Impairment assessment (continued) JREFE ()
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of TREIIAEEDHEERIFERE
the Group’s financial assets which are subject to ECL EEBMENEERRES
assessment:
2023 2022
2023F 002F
External Internal 12m ECL or Gross carrying Gross carrying
credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL amount amount
5 A A RREEFES
RER RETR 2HRAEERR REAE RESE
HKS'000 HK$'000
Thx T
(restated)
(& E3))
Financial assets at amortised
costs B
RESEANRZSRER
Trade receivables N/A Low risk (Note 2)  Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 194,719 239,161
B RWER @R EEp (W) 2HEREEFE (BEEE)
Low risk Lifetime ECL (not credit- 178,135 191,737
impaired)
vl ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁfgéﬁﬁ
(EERE)
Loss Credit-impaired 5374 3,921
BB EEHE
378,228 434,819
Loan receivable NA Lowrisk (Note )~ 12mECL 274 821
U ER TEm BRR (MF1)  12AABHESER
Amounts due from fellow N/A Low risk (Note ) Lifetime ECL (not credit 34,349 34,582
subsidiaries X impaired) -
FENRZNBARNE T BER (HE2)  2HABEERE
(EERE)
Amount due from ultimate holding ~ N/A Low risk (Note 1)~ 12m ECL 4,558 4,174
company
J‘%*W B TER ERR (MF1)  1AREHEEEE
Time deposits with original maturity A1 -Baa N/A 12m ECL 111,342 20,073
over three months N o
REMB=EAN LEHFR TER 12EARREERR
Time deposits with original maturity A1 -Baa N/A 12mECL 132,418 78,364
over one year - e
REHE—F LR HER TER 12EAEHEEEE
Bank balances AT -Baa N/A 12m ECL 1,198,938 1,255,625
FITHS TR 12EABREERR
Other receivables NA Low risk (Note 1) 12m ECL ) 43,209 62,544
Hth R T EEp (1) N2EABHEEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

36.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continueq)
Impairment assessment (continued)

Notes:

1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the
Group uses an aged analysis based on past due days to
assess whether credit risk has increased significant since
initial recognition and concluded that there is no significant
increase in credit risk for loan receivable, amount due from
ultimate holding company and other receivables.

2. For trade receivables and amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries in trade nature, the Group has applied the
simplified approach to measure the loss allowance at
lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with significant outstanding
balances and amounts due from fellow subsidiaries which
are in trade nature, the Group determines the expected
credit losses on these items by using a provision matrix,
grouped by historical repayment pattern of customers in
the past three years.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
uses internal credit rating to assess the impairment for
its customers in relation to the trade receivables because
these customers consist of a large number of customers
with common risk characteristics that are representative
of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in
accordance with the contractual terms.

The estimated loss rates used is estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure relevant information about specific debtors is
updated.
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36.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continueq)
Impairment assessment (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, impairment
loss of HK$1,453,000 (2022: HK$718,000) was
recognised.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL

6. €T H (&)
(b) ¢REARSEEERKE (&)

EERERBEFS (&)
JRIEFHE (&)

HZE2023F 12831 BILFEE  #R
8L 1B 5 18 1,453,000 7% 7T (2022 F -
718,000/87T) °

TRITERBEBEITERE SR

that has been recognised for trade receivables under the ERmRANPEREEEEED -
simplified approach.

Lifetime ECL

(credit-impaired)

> HEHEERFE

(EERE)

HK$'000

T

As at 1 January 2022 7202251810 3,203

Impairment losses recognised, net of reversal  HERRBEETE © HKRED 718

As at 31 December 2022 72022 12A31H 3,921

Impairment losses recognised, net of reversal  TERRERIE - KL 1,453

As at 31 December 2023 M2023%12H31H 5,374

Changes in loss allowance for trade receivables are mainly
due to the net impact of additional ECL allowance of
HK$1,453,000 (2022: HK$718,000) during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

B SRR R EEREES EEMH
RELZE 2023412 A 31 B IEFEEES
TEEA{E B SR B 1% 5 88 1,453,000 %8
7T (20224 : 718,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

36.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (zantinued) 6. IR ©
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) ¢REMESEREREEK (&)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk B E TR
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group REBRSESRER  AEBEER
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash HRHEEBEARHAZRERE®
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to ZEYIKE  REAKEEEERNE
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of & WREReRERBS2HE -
fluctuations in cash flows.
The following table details the Group’s contractual TRHAIAEE2RAEZEHEE
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been BN ZRDEASEEZNF &R
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of AEFTE B EZARITRRERN
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the RS-
Group can be required to pay.
Liquidity risk table B E R R
31 December 2023 2023412 H31H
Weighted
average  On demand Total
interest or within 4t0 12 1to3 undiscounted Carrying
rate 3 months months year  cash flows amount
il RERKE nz KBRS
THRE  H=EARK T=EA -B=F RELE fREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TARL
Trade payables Ul - 150,320 - - 150,320 150,320
Other payables and accruals £/t & (< 208 B gt
BR - 532,491 - - 532,491 532,491
Amount due to ultimate [ER SRR ARTIE
holding company - 29,693 - - 29,693 29,693
Amounts due to fellow ERRZNEARE
subsidiaries - 4332 - - 4332 4332
Lease liabilties HERRE 4.4 2,163 6,631 1,188 9,982 9,672
718,999 6,631 1,188 726,818 726,508
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36.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues) 36.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

ST H (&)
(b) ¢REARSEEERKE (&)

Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity risk table (continued)

31 December 2022

mEEZERE (&)
mBETERE (B)

2022412 A31H

Weighted
average  Ondemand Total
interest or within 41012 1t03  undiscounted Carrying
rate 3 months months year cash flows amount
i REXE mE AHRE
THFE  H=EAR TZfEA —E=F mERE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TATL TATL TATL TATL
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(#E3]) (#E3]) (#=3))
Trade payables EVTE T - 185,144 - - 185,144 185,144
Other payables and accruals — E /B (< 508 B /&t
ER - 514,564 - - 514,564 514,564
Amount due to ultimate FE TR IER A R HUE
holding company - 33,808 - - 33,808 33,808
Amounts due to fellow ERRZNEARFE
subsidiaries - 3,623 - - 3,623 3,623
Lease liabilties HEaR 4.34 1,820 3,756 5,636 11,212 8,375
738,959 3,756 5,636 748,351 745,514
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O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

36.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues)

(9}

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The
management is to determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. For
instruments with significant unobservable inputs under
Level 3, the Group engages third party qualified valuers
to perform the valuation. The management works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.
The management reports the findings to the board of
directors of the Company regularly to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used).

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A
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36.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (zantinued) 6. IR ©
() Fair value measurements of financial (0 ERMIEQNFENE (&)
instruments (continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that KEFZLE 1B EL L FE
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis BEZE2RIEEZ L FE (B)
(continueq)

Fair value as at

Valuation
RMSIBH2AFE Fair value technique(s) Significant
Financial assets 2023 2022 hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable inputs
SHEE 2023% 002F AHEER HEXTRIERASE EATUBEAAUE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAL
Listed equity 4,874 10,237 Level 1 Quoted prices in an active ~ N/A
investment market
THRARE E-ER RNEETSZ BE TEA
Club debenture 5272 5272 Level 2 Quoted prices ina market ~ N/A
for identical assets
efEs £ZER BETERSEE HE TR
Unlisted equity 28,341 18,862 Level 3 Price to earnings ratio Discount rate of 30% (2022: 30%) (Note a)
investments adjusted for marketability ~ and price to earnings ratio multiple of 8.72

(2022: 9.63) (Note b), taking into account
management’s experience and knowledge
of market conditions.

¥ EmRARE F-ER MAX (FTERBLEL) BRE30%(2022F < 30%) (Hia) &
MEEE#872(2022%  9.63)
(MizEb)  DEZEERENERR

HTEHRAE T RMERE -
Structured notes 215,679 204,239 Level 2 Quoted prices provided by~ N/A
financial institution
ERERE FZER SRMERE BE @R
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

36.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cantinues)

(9}

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(continued)

Notes:

a)

b)

A slight increase in the discount rate used in isolation
would result in a slight decrease in the fair value
measurement of unlisted equity investment, and vice
versa. If the discount rate was 0.5% higher/lower to
30.5%/29.5% (2022: 30.5%/29.5%) while holding all
other variables constant, the carrying amount of the
unlisted equity investment would decrease by HK$181,000
(2022:HK$112,000) or increase by HK$181,000
(2022:HK$112,000) as at 31 December 2023.

A slight increase in the price to earnings ratio multiple
used in isolation would result in a slight increase in the
fair value measurement of unlisted equity investment,
and vice versa. If the price to earnings ratio multiple was
5% higher/lower to 8.18/9.15 (2022: 9.15/10.11) while
all other variables constant, the carrying amount of the
unlisted equity investment would increase by HK$917,000
(2022: HK$1,520,000) or decrease by HK$917,000 (2022:
HK$1,520,000) as at 31 December 2023.

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during
the year.
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36.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (zantinueq) 6. EFTE &)
() Fair value measurements of financial (0 SWMIEQAFEFE (&)
instruments (continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements FE=RAFHEGEZHER
Financial assets
at FVTPL
BAFERA
BENEREE
At 1 January 2022 7202291 HA1H 19,502
Fair value loss NEEEBE (640)
At 31 December 2022 2022F12 A31H 18,862
Fair value gain N ERE 9,479
At 31 December 2023 7M2023% 12 A31H 28,341
Fair value gains or losses on financial assets at FVTPL are BAFEFABENEBREENRD
included in ‘other gains and losses’. Pk E R A [ B k&
Bl e
Fair value of financial assets and financial WHEERZMEEELLFE
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on GTEZEHEEHTHAR
a recurring basis (but fair value disclosures are Z R FE(IERHKERFE)
required)
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying ARABEERR - WBHERAERS
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities MBHRERARzeREEREMAR
recognised at amortised cost in the consolidated financial ZAREERE N FERSE -
statements approximate their fair values.
The fair values of the financial assets and financial FsRmEENSRAGZ ATETD
liabilities above have been determined in accordance with REAREBEAZNERERES

generally accepted pricing models based on a discounted ITEERE
cash flow analysis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

31. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 31.

Apart from the balances with related parties as disclosed in
the consolidated statement of financial position and respective

[BR Bt 77 2 3R

BRIMR A ISR R S B M A P I BR L 7S
B2 @O AEBECEERB ST

notes, the Group has entered into the following transactions TR :
with related parties:
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
(restated)
(g&=751)
Ultimate holding company BAERAT
Outsourcing manufacturing and procurement M A EE I R EEAK T
of finished goods 61,152 65,683
Purchase of raw materials BEEREME 30,642 30,894
Purchase of equipment and parts BB &N E 193 580
Royalty charges paid (Note) BERENE (M) 11,605 18,418
Research service 7T R 7S (2,756) (3,024)
Note: The amount represents royalty paid to ultimate holding company M ZeRERERERAEEERBEETE

REEE fh B B 2 B T AR R sl 0 8 i A i
IR 73%2%1% (REREZFR

for the rights to use certain trademarks and technical know-how
in connection with the manufacturing and sales of certain licensed

206

products which is calculated at certain percentage on the net sales MEEE M F R — DD
of these licensed products.
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
(restated)
(#&=51)
Fellow subsidiaries SN PN
Food testing fee RmiwllE 4,009 3,310
Outsourcing manufacturing and procurement ML AE B M ERBEAK
of finished goods 35,645 39,680
Purchase of raw materials BB H Rk 4,262 4,673
Sales of raw materials and finished goods SHE RAM R KK (156,477) (116,105)

The compensation to key management personnel consist mainly
of directors’ emoluments as disclosed in note 12.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | BB R RAR A A
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38.

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has equity
interests in the following subsidiaries comprising the Group:

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ Date of paid ordinary
registration/ incorporation/ share capital/
Name of subsidiaries  operation registration registered capital
R/ ML,/ BRIRAR
WRARER EEMY Raigzk LERE/RER

REAEREERAT Mainland China 17 October 2013 RMB147,000,000
Dongguan Nissin
Packaging Co., Ltd.*
(Note 2)

FEARREERART  TEMM 01310178 AR% 147,000,000
(MzE2)

UREAERM Hong Kong 27 April 2018 HK$5,000,000
(B%)BRAR
Kagome Nissin
Foods (H.K.)
Co., Ltd. (Note 1)

REHERR (BR) B 2018548278 5,000,000/
ARAE (1)

U

REAERAAEBRAE  Mainland China 19 February 2014 RMB235,000,000
Fujian Nissin Foods

Co., Ltd.* (Note 2)

BRAFRGERAR  HEMM 014528198 AR¥235,000,0007
(Fx2)

EREERERA Mainland China 13 November 1994 HK$130,000,000
BRAF

Guangdong Shunde

Nissin Foods

Co., Ltd.* (Note 2)

ERIEERBRGAR  PEMNM 199411138 130,000,000/
A (Hizr2)

8. MELARRE
R B - AR FRA TARARE

B8 X B R A AR
Attributable
equity interest
held by the Company Principal activities
KARREZ
TR ARG TEER
2023 2022
W3F | 202%F
(restated)
(8=5)
100% 100% Manufacturing of packaging
materials of instant noodles
products

EENABERBENH

70% 70% Import, purchase and sale of
beverage products in
Hong Kong, Macau

and Mainland China

£EE  RMRREALER
REEHHER

100% 100% Manufacturing of instant
noodles products

EEMREER

100% 100% Manufacturing and and sales of
instant noodles products

TERHENREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F12 A31 BILFE

38.  PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES (zontinuez)

Name of subsidiaries

HEARER

RERm(TE)RE
BRAT
Nissin Foods
(China) Holding
Co., Ltd.* (Note 1)
BERm (FE) K&

(
BRAT (W1

RERm(EE)
BRAR
Nissin Foods (H.K.)
Company Limited
(Note 1)

BiERR (B%) BR
DA (M)

BERM(EE)
ERERAT
Nissin Foods (H.K.)
Management
Company Limited
(Note 1)

Nissin Foods Vietnam
Company Limited
(Note 1)

Nissin Foods Vietnam
Company Limited

(FEE 1)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operation

R/
EEBY

Mainland China

hEIR

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Vietnam

i)

Date of
incorporation/
registration
AL/
A

29 October 2001

20015104298

25 August 2015

201568250

6 July 2001

20015768

5 March 2011

201143450

Issued and fully
paid ordinary
share capital/
registered capital
BRIRAR
EEREY/HERER

RMB1,443,797,800

AR 1,443,797,800 7

HK$10,000,000

10,000,000 %7

HK$200

20057

US$66,000,000

66,000,000 7

38.

BB A B 1S (&)

Attributable
equity interest
held by the Company
LN A
TR

2023 2022
WBF | 2002F
(restated)
(m=51)

100% 100%

100% 100%

100%

100%

67% 66%

Principal activities

TREK

Investment holding in Mainland
China and purchase and
sale of instant noodles
products

EPRRETRARRR
BENREER

Sales and distribution of
noodles, retort foods,
frozen foods, beverage
products and snacks in
Hong Kong and Macau

EEERRFIHERDH
Mg ZERG R

R BHERRTR

Provision of administrative
and human resources to
group companies

REERRRETHEAS
ERRH

Manufacturing importing and
exporting instant noodles
products

EEEOREONREER

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | H
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38.

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES /zantinued)

Name of subsidiaries

HEARER

BELE(RE « F%)
BRAR
Nissin Koikeya Foods
(China & HK) Co.,
Limited (Note 1)

RERLE
(mEl o F%) AR
DA (M)

KERMERAH
Winner Food
Products Limited
(Note 1)

XERMERAT
(HtsE1)

MC Marketing & Sales
(Hong Kong) Limited
(Note 1)

EARZERDA
(Ftt1)

HEMSERKERA
BRAF
Zhuhai Golden Coast
Winner Food Products
Limited*
HETRSREKERE
BRAR

MIBERMERAA
Zhejiang Nissin Foods
Co., Ltd.* (Note 2)

MIBERMERAA
(Fr2)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operation

R/ i/
R

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

&

Hong Kong

i

Mainland China

MERL

Mainland China

ERL

Date of
incorporation/
registration
MR,/
A H

27 September 2013

013594278

11 April 1969

1969F4A 1A

17 January 1978

1978414178

3 July 1993

199347 A3H

25 November 2014

2014511 A 250

Issued and fully
paid ordinary
share capital/
registered capital
BRIRAR
EBRE/HERER

HK$10,000,000

10,000,000 %7

HK$29,975,000

29,975,000/

HK$1,000

1,007

HK$84,000,000

84,000,000 7T

RMB350,000,000

AR 350,000,000 7C

o

8. MBAREEE (&)

Attributable
equity interest
held by the Company
KARREZ
TR ARG
2023 2022
03E | 2002F
(restated)
(&=5)
66% 66%
100% 100%
81% 81%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal activities

IRER

Purchase and sales of snacks

mg
mi
A
pus

Manufacturing and sales of
instant noodles products
and frozen foods

EERAENREERRAR

A0
R

Importation and distribution of
beverages and food products

ENRDEAHERRER

Manufacturing and sales of
instant noodles

TERHENREER

Manufacturing of instant
noodles products

EEMREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F12 A31 BILFE

38.  PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES (zontinuez)

8. MBABEE @)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ Date of paid ordinary Attributable
registration/ incorporation/ share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiaries  operation registration registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
R/ MR,/ BRIRAR RAAREL
(if: PNEEL EENY Eaigzk EERE/fEs TR AR TEER
2023 2022
20235 20225
(restated)
(=51

HEABREERAT  Mainland China 10 December 2003 RMB107,567,517 100% 100% Manufacturing of packaging
Zhuhai Nissin materials of instant noodles
Packaging Company products
Limited* (Note 2)

KERFRKARLR  PERL 203F128108  AR¥107,567,517 7T EEDNRAERDEMH
(FzE2)

BBREER AR Hong Kong 4 March 2021 HK$23,000,000 100% 81% Investment holding
Hong Kong Eastpeak
Limited (Note 1 &

Note 6)

EEREBRAT £ 221F3848 23,000,000 RERR
(st 1 Rizte)

HEREZESERAT  Mainland China 6 March 2021 RMB20,000,000 100% 81% Trading of instant noodles
Shanghai Eastpeak products
Trading Co. Ltd.*

(Note 3)

LEREBZERRT  TEAN 22193068 ARM¥20,000,0007 BEIREER
(F3E3)

BEXAERBMRAT  Hong Kong 21 January 2020 HK$7,500,000 100% 100% Inactive
ValleyFarm Holdings
Limited (Note 1)

FRABRBBAR  BA 221F1A218 7,500,000/ BEA¥ER
(Ftst1)

BEa%K{IERAR  Hong Kong 22 January 1991 HK$63,886,738 100% 100% Trading of packaging materials
Ming Fong Packaging
& Chemicals Limited
(Note 1)

REBRLIARRT F3 1991515228 63,886,738/ BEARNH
(FiFzE 1)

BELE—TRR Taiwan 19 December 2023 NT$26,000,000 100% N/A Importing and trading of
BRAT noodle and confectionery
Nissin Deame Iccho
Co, Ld

BELA-TROBR RE 2023F128198  26,000,000575% 100% | TR EEREERGRER
AR

* English translated name is for identification only.

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | H
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38.

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES /zantinued)

Notes:
1. These companies are directly held by the Company.

2. The subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company through
Nissin Foods (China) Holding Co., Ltd.

3. This subsidiary is indirectly held by the Company through Hong
Kong Eastpeak Limited.

4. All Mainland China subsidiaries are wholly foreign-owned
enterprises registered in Mainland China.

5. No debt securities have been issued by its subsidiaries as at 31
December 2023 and 2022.

6. The impact for acquiring additional equity interest in Hong Kong
Eastpeak Limited and Nissin Foods Vietnam Company Limited is
immaterial to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The Company considered that its non-wholly owned subsidiaries
with individual non-controlling interests are not material to the
Group. Therefore, no summarised financial information of these
non-wholly owned subsidiaries is presented.

38.

BB A B 1S (&)

UL
1 RELAREAATEERE -

2 MEBARRAARSEBABRMA (HE)
REFRABEESES -

3 ZHBARIAARAREBEEREGRA
AREEE -

4 P o B A 0 P B R R T P B 3 R
MMM E DS -

5 20234 K%2022912 8318 - HK B
NRIEBEITEGRE S ©

6. U B & 78 R I1& B BR A &) LA & Nissin Foods
Vietnam Company Limited A9 %8 9 g 25
REBRGEMBERETEEALE o

ARRRBEEA BRI ESNIEE
EMNBARYAEEMEALNERK -
b BERZEFEENBRRZIIME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

39.  RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING N MERFEEZABEZHE
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TREI AN EBRETHEECEEY
(RRESRIIERLEE) 256 - BEE
BELZABEARESRENARESRK
ERTEE RERERERTHEIER
MEEBHRERE -

from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

2]

Lease Dividend

liabilities payable Total

HEESE EBHRE et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FHIT T

At 1 January 2022 R2022F1H1H 11,212 - 11,212
Financing cash flows BMERSRE (8,377) (265,239) (273,616)
Exchange differences PEH =28 (1,340) - (1,340)
New leases entered RISZFTAEAY 6,621 - 6,621
Interest expenses FEFAZ 259 - 259
Dividend declared EEIRRKRE - 265,239 265,239
At 31 December 2022 7R20229F 12 A31H 8,375 - 8,375
Financing cash flows HERERE (8,080) (158,224) (166,304)
Exchange differences PN = (57) - (57)
New leases entered BV EiED 9,164 - 9,164
Interest expenses FEFZ 270 - 270
Dividend declared EEIRRE - 158,224 158,224
At 31 December 2023 7R20234F12A31H 9,672 - 9,672

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | H
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40.

COMPANY'S FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following are the statement of financial position of the

N, TARZHMBER

AR ARRAFR 2023 4E K% 2022412 A 31

Company as at 31 December 2023 and 2022: Bz B#ikRE
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FAET
Non-current Assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E G 588,942 461,724
Right-of-use assets REEE 4,296 4,479
Trademark [ 12,116 15,348
Investments in subsidiaries REE AR ZIE 2,621,025 2,326,558
Financial assets of FVTPL BRATEFABRz 2REE 38,487 34,371
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 13,528 -
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WEEMZ - FE MR ET RS
plant and equipment 10,464 3,562
Loan to subsidiaries BENENGIE SN - 45,593
3,288,858 2,891,635
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories 58 90,052 95,925
Trade receivables H AR 1,543 1,920
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits ~ Efth fBULZRIE « FEM I ML ® 11,540 12,509
Amount due from ultimate holding company JEU &4 12AZ A B IA 434 1,310
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSHH B A BIFRIA 136,621 265,516
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEUR[E KB A RZE 10,384 27,393
Loan to a subsidiary [ — M B AT E K - 85,904
Tax recoverable BEdEE e 10,092 11,741
Financial asset at FVTPL BAVESABGZZEHEE 215,679 204,239
Cash and cash equivalents Be MRS EY 241,846 125,700
718,191 832,157
ANNUAL REPORT 2023 | — T =FF R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O BT TR IRRMISE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F 12 A31BIEFE

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | H

40.  COMPANY'S FINANCIAL INFORMATION /zonined) 0. EXARZMBER &)
2023 2022
2023 F 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiExT FHEIT
Current Liabilities RBAR
Trade payables B S IR 21,725 19,039
Other payables and accruals HAbE B R ERTE A 108,887 75,073
Amount due to ultimate holding company FEN BRI A B FIE 22,727 24,066
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR N ENGIE e 100,222 24,279
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FEHR Z M B AR5 IE 1,529 1,548
Deferred income WERRIER 400 -
Loans from subsidiaries HEAE 20,000 85,905
275,490 229,910
Net Current Assets REBEEFE 442,701 602,247
Total Assets less Current Liabilities HWEERRBERE 3,731,559 3,493,882
Capital and Reserves EXR#HE
Share capital A&7 2,941,441 2,941,441
Reserves i 744,102 528,561
Total Equity EReE 3,685,543 3,470,002
Non-current Liabilities kRBEE
Deferred income IRIEUW z 1,533 -
Deferred tax liabilities FREFIEE & 44,483 23,880
3,731,559 3,493,882

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March

2024 and are signed on its behalf of:

KIYOTAKA ANDO

RERE
DIRECTOR
EF

E=E A O
/B Roon

BRAA

RABZHABERNRECEETSHR2024F 3
A26 H#tERFERZELHATALTRE

BE

SHINJI TATSUTANI
RBER
DIRECTOR

EF



40.  COMPANY'S FINANCIAL INFORMATION /zantinied) 0. FABRZHBER #)
The followings are the movements in the Company’s reserves: ITARARRE Z #HEE
Shares
held for Share
Share Award award Retained
Scheme reserve profits Total
RER A
BT E R 13
BEZkG HEEE REEA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT AT FAT
At 1 January 2022 R2022F181H (230) - 453,875 453,645
Profit and total comprehensive income FRENEREZE
for the year LNt - - 283,204 283,204
Recognition of equity-settled MR AR A E A
share-based payment B BERET R - 1,697 - 1,697
Share purchased from secondary market ~ FR/3 BN EIET A
under share award scheme FE-mEREENRD (1,664) - - (1,664)
Share vested under share award scheme 1R IER 7 2€EN:t B BB 1,801 (1,697) (104) -
Buy-back of own shares (note 31) EEE FR (F:E31) - - (25,988) (25,988)
Dividend recognised as distribution BRBARLRE
(note 14) (FizE14) - - (182,333) (182,333)
At 31 December 2022 2022612 A31H (93) - 528,654 528,561
Profit and total comprehensive income FRENERZE
for the year W \fa%E - - 373,874 373,874
Recognition of equity-settled MR AR R A E LA
share-based payment W BEREZ - 1,684 - 1,684
Share purchased from secondary market PR3 2B EIET A
under share award scheme E-MHEENRR (1,793) - - (1,793)
Share vested under share award scheme  1RIERR () 2B+ 212 BB 1,684 (1,684) - -
Dividend recognised as distribution BRRARLIRE
(note 14) (FizE14) - - (158,224)
At 31 December 2023 202312 A31H (202) - 744,304
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

h IS

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023 & 2022 4 20214 20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHIT FAET FAET
(restated)
(ge=:75)
Result E
Revenue ILON 3,833,194 | 4,067,732 3,866,335 3,518,847 3,087,781
Profit before taxation FRAEERTR 456,965 462,885 441,576 433,942 352,638
Income tax expense FriSHi X< (123,816) (119,989) (102,341) (101,378) (73,720)
Profit for the year FERE A 333,149 342,896 339,235 332,564 278,918
Attributable to: AT AR
Owners of the Company ZANSIEZS DN 330,169 312,761 303,821 301,912 250,964
Non-controlling interest FEPERIE RS 2,980 30,135 35,414 30,652 27,954
Total “ast 333,149 342,896 339,235 332,564 278,918
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023 F 2022 4F 20214 20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT FHIT T T
(restated)
(#eE5)
Total Assets BERE 4,683,733 4,599,805 5,259,569 5,183,875 4,633,930
Total Liabilities BERE (896,185) (926,969) (1,143,308)  (1,140,692) (921,612)
Total Equity HEmiaE 3,674,703 3,599,662 4,116,261 4,043,183 3,712,318
Net current Assets MENVE EFE 1,607,971 1,569,565 2,048,465 2,231,262 2,135,991

NISSIN FOODS COMPANY LIMITED | B/BR M
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For the latest information ahout the Group, please visit:

BRNEENRHEH & &S5

Nissin Foods’ corporate website —

BERmEEAY -

Corporate and financial information, links to related companies,
subsidiaries and key brands, sustainability highlights and reports, and
media materials, all in one place.

— MR IRECERMBEN - HEQR - WEBARHEEEREHE
B UBERRNSHRERE  HEBEA -

www.nissingroup.com.hk

Nissin Foods (Hong Kong) Charity Fund’s website -
HERm (B8) ZEEE&@ -

The charitable arm of the Group formed by way of a trust deed, the
Charity Fund drives projects to advance education, make provisions
for people in need, and carry out charitable works that are beneficial
to the Hong Kong community.
HARASBEAGREZOAXNKIINEERE - AEESMTRIER
2 HMESHHE - BETEATRERE  THRITERESELEN www.nissincharity.com.hk
ET{k-

Nissin Foodium membership programme on WeChat -

WERBARMBRESEE -

Offering a host of exclusive benefits, exciting rewards, and interactive
games for members to discover and enjoy. In Mainland China, it is also
an e-commerce platform.

RE—FRINBEZEE BEREREFEHESEERKREER &t
EEFEAM TR —EEFRIHTAE -

Nissin Foodium Mainland China

FEAL A ERRBRE

Nissin Foodium Hong Kong

BEABERBABRE
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